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Annual Letter to Stockholders

It is never easy to write an annual letter to stockholders. How can management
compress a year’s worth of activity into a few short pages? How can we adequately
describe the cumulative effect of events, many having little or nothing to do with Edison
Schools, that impacted us and affected the value of our stock? Any effort to do so is
bound to be insufficient. Instead, we suggest that you read the pages that follow closely
to form your own view of our Company, its performance during fiscal 2002 and its
prospects.

We enter fiscal 2003 with record enrollment of approximately 80,000 students on
a full-time basis in 150 schools, making us the 36" largest school district in the country.
Additionally, this summer we enrolled approximately 35,000 students in summer school
programs. We are the lead outside manager of schools in Philadelphia’s bold school-
improvement initiative, serving over 13,000 students. And we are now actively marketing
to districts the achievement management systems developed for use in the schools we
operate.

Our student achievement results remain outstanding. Our overall annual rate of
gain on both independent criterion-referenced tests and norm-reference tests is over two
and a half times better than the average major public school system in the United States.
Parental satisfaction with the schools we manage remains high, with almost twice as
many parents giving our schools a grade of “A” than parents at traditional public schools.

And on the business front, the investments we have made since inception to create
and implement our school design are paying off. The $500 million in capital we have
raised has enabled our schools to succeed, and the success of our schools has fueled our
growth. We now operate in 23 states and 48 cities. We anticipate that fiscal 2003
financial results will produce EBITDA, net of stock-based compensation expense, in
excess of $20 million. Additionally, we expect to see our first net income produced in the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2003.

Clearly our work attracts controversy. We are the most scrutinized school system

in the country today. However, our goal of significantly improving education for our



nation’s children while building a successful business remains unchanged. We appreciate
your support in this endeavor, and look forward to the time when we can definitively
demonstrate our long-term achievement of positive academic and financial results to the
benefit of our varied constituencies—the children we serve, the parents who entrust their
children to our care, the school districts and charter boards that enlist our assistance in

their effort to bring quality education to all children and you, our stockholders.

Sincerely,

%

H. Christopher Whittle, Founder and
Chief Executive Officer
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Benno C. Schmidt, Jr., Chairman

C A P §V

Christopher D. Cerf, President and
Chief Operating Officer
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EXPLANATORY NOTE

This Annual Report on Form 10-K/A is being filed by Edison Schools Inc. for the sole purpose of
correcting certain typographical and formatting errors in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2002 (the "10-K") and filling in data that was inadvertently omitted in Item 7,
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, under the
heading "Management Agreements: Renewals and Terminations." This Annual Report on Form 10-K/A

is substantially identical to the 10-K in all other respects.
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Some of the statements under "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Result of Operations," "Business" and elsewhere in this Annual Report are forward-looking
statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. We have based these forward-looking statements on our current
expectations and projections about our ability to, among other things:

e implement our business strategy;

e expand our customer base and increase the number of students enrolled in schools
managed by us;

e control costs;
e improve the academic achievement of students in our schools; and

e finance and manage our rapid growth.

In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by words such as "may," "will,"
"should," "expects," "plans," "anticipates," "believes," "estimates," "predicts," "potential" or "continue,"

or the negative of these and other similar words.

nn

Forward-looking statements are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other
factors that may cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance, achievements and prospects to
be materially different from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. These risks,
uncertainties and other factors include those identified under "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Additional Risk Factors That May Affect Future
Results" and elsewhere in this report. You should also carefully review the risks outlined in other
documents that we file from time to time with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including our
Quarterly Reports on form 10-Q that we file in fiscal 2003. All forward-looking statements included in
this Annual Report are based on information available to us up to and including the date of this document,
and we expressly disclaim any obligation to alter or update our forward-looking statements, whether as a
result of new information, future events or otherwise.

We are a Delaware corporation, and our principal executive offices are located at 521 Fifth
Avenue, 11th Floor, New York, New York 10175 and our telephone number is (212) 419-1600. Our web
site address is www.edisonschools.com. The information on our web site is not incorporated by reference
into this Annual Report and should not be considered to be a part of this Annual Report. Our web site
address is included in this Annual Report as an inactive textual reference only.



PART I
Item 1. Business

Edison is the nation's largest private operator of public schools serving students from
kindergarten through 12th grade. We contract with local school districts and public charter school boards
to assume educational and operational responsibility for individual schools in return for per-pupil funding
that is generally comparable to that spent on other public schools in the area. Over the course of three
years of intensive research, Edison's team of leading educators and scholars developed an innovative,
research-backed curriculum and school design. We opened our first four schools in August 1995, and
have grown rapidly in every subsequent year. In the 2001-2002 school year, we served approximately
74,000 students in 133 schools located in 22 states across the country and the District of Columbia. This
represents an increase of 17,000 students and one new state from the 2000-2001 school year. For the
2001-2002 school year, approximately 52,000 students were enrolled in our schools in grades pre-K-5,
approximately 17,000 in grades 6-8 and approximately 5,000 in grades 9-12. In the 2002-2003 school
year, we expect to enroll approximately 80,000 students in 150 schools located in 23 states and the
District of Columbia. Additionally, during the summer of 2002, we served approximately 35,000
students in our summer school program. Our net revenue was $465.1 million in fiscal 2002. We attribute
our growth in part to the demonstrated success of our schools, as measured by significant improvements
in student academic performance and high levels of parental satisfaction.

Our model offers public school authorities, who face widespread concern about disappointing
student achievement, the benefits of a large private sector company with national support systems. We

believe those benefits include:

e the ability to create, implement and support a superior educational model through focused
research and development; and

e increased emphasis on accountability for achieving improved academic performance.

These benefits contribute to an enhanced educational experience that we believe has proven
attractive to public school authorities, parents and teachers alike. Elements of that experience include:

e arich and challenging curriculum based on clear standards and high expectations for all
students;

e asignificantly longer school day and year in schools that adopt this part of our model;

e an enriched technology program;

e an emphasis on the professional growth of teachers through a commitment to training, an
explicit career ladder and a school management structure that allows teachers to
participate in the leadership of the school;

e asupport system focused on improving student achievement;

e exposure to foreign language beginning in kindergarten in schools that adopt this part of
our model; and

e an emphasis on parental involvement and character development.



We have an experienced and talented management team led by H. Christopher Whittle, founder
of several media enterprises, including the first national electronic news system for middle and high
schools in the United States, Benno C. Schmidt, Jr., former President of Yale University, Christopher D.
Cerf, former Associate Counsel to President Clinton from 1994 to 1996, John E. Chubb, senior fellow at
the Brookings Institution and noted author and speaker on education reform, and Charles J. Delaney,
former president of UBS Capital America. In addition, the management team includes a number of
former public school system superintendents.

Industry Background

During the 2000-2001 school year, over 14,500 school districts comprising approximately 90,640
K-12 schools enrolled an estimated 47.2 million students. Despite the growth in spending on public
education over the last decade, student achievement has progressed very little and remains low. For
example, on the National Assessment of Educational Progress, only approximately 27% of students in
grades 4 and 8 met grade level standards in mathematics in 2000, the last year for which results are
available. In reading, only approximately 32% of students in grades 4 met grade level standards in 2000,
and only approximately 33% of students in grades 4 and 8 met grade level standards in 1998. Only
approximately 25% of students in grades 4 and 8 met grade level standards in writing in 1998. The
National Assessment of Educational Progress, a testing program conducted by the U.S. Department of
Education since 1970, uses tests specially designed to measure how well students meet grade level
standards established by a national panel of education experts. The tests are administered to random
national samples of students at three grade levels every other year, or every fourth year, in major subjects.

Public education is currently high on national, state and local political agendas. President Bush
and both major national political parties have placed education at the center of their national platforms,
and many state and local authorities have enacted or encouraged measures to implement significant
educational reforms. Some of these reforms are programmatic innovations occurring within public
schools. Examples include expanded levels of teacher training, higher standards, more rigorous testing
and more effective technology. Other initiatives have sought to reform the public education system itself
by embracing the market-oriented concepts of competition, accountability and a broader range of parental
choice. Key reform initiatives include the following:

e No Child Left Behind. On January 8, 2002, President Bush signed into law the No Child
Left Behind Act (NCLBA), a comprehensive education reform package that will have a
wide range of effects on the education establishment. Many of the provisions of the
NCLBA are designed to lift the achievement level of under-performing students in
traditionally low-achieving schools. This new legislation mandates that schools that fail
to meet adequate yearly progress must take a series of steps to remedy their poor
academic performance. These steps may include: providing supplemental services to its
students; offering school choice options to its students; spending more Title I funds on
professional development for teachers; reopening the school as a charter school; and
contracting with a private management company. Additionally, all newly hired teachers
must be highly qualified—a new teacher must hold at least a bachelor's degree and must
demonstrate knowledge of the subjects he or she is teaching by passing a rigorous state
test.

e Charter Schools. Since Minnesota first enacted legislation in 1991, 39 states and the
District of Columbia have passed charter school legislation. Under the typical charter
school statute, identified entities, such as the state board of education or a state
university, are authorized to grant a specified number of charters to community groups or
non-profit entities to create a public school. A growing number of charter boards in turn
contract with private sector organizations to operate the schools. In return for a large
measure of autonomy from regulation, the charter school is accountable for student
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academic performance. Many charter school statutes limit the number of charter schools
or the number of students that may enroll in charter schools. Currently, there are 2,700
charter schools in operation, with an estimated enrollment of over 575,000 students in 36
states and the District of Columbia.

e Contract Schools. Contract schools are public schools operated by private organizations
based upon management agreements with local school boards. Unlike charter schools,
contract schools do not require specific statutory authority, but are created through a
contract between a school management company and a school board in accordance with
existing authority.

e JVoucher Programs. Voucher programs provide for the issuance to parents of tuition
vouchers worth a certain amount of money that they can redeem at any approved school
of their choice. These programs allow students to choose among public schools, which
would have to compete for students, or possibly even attend private schools. Legislation
in Wisconsin has provided vouchers in Milwaukee since 1990, and legislation in Ohio
has provided for vouchers in Cleveland since 1996. In June 2002, the Supreme Court
ruled that the Cleveland program did not violate the First Amendment of the U.S.
Constitution, which has encouraged voucher advocates across the country, although in
August 2002 a Florida circuit court ruled that the state's 1999 voucher legislation violated
the state constitution. Voucher legislation has also been introduced in several other
states, and private philanthropists have funded a number of voucher programs.

e Choices Offered by School Districts. School districts are offering increased choice to
their students by, for example, establishing magnet schools serving students within the
district and allowing students to attend schools across district lines. Magnet schools are
specialized public schools offering unique programs, such as curricula emphasizing math,
science or the arts.

e State Takeover Statutes. Some states have exercised their ability under local law to
divest local school boards of their authority to manage an identified school or schools
within the district. These states include, among others, Maryland, New Jersey, Michigan
and Pennsylvania. One of those states, Maryland, has opted to contract with us to
provide educational services at three identified schools in Baltimore. As a result of a
program instituted under Pennsylvania's Act 46, the School Reform Commission of the
School District of Philadelphia has contracted with us to manage 26 schools.
Additionally, as a result of a program instituted under Pennsylvania's Educational
Empowerment Act, we are currently managing 10 schools in Chester, Pennsylvania.

Incorporating elements of both a market-oriented approach and programmatic innovation, we are
a leader in offering reform alternatives to local school boards searching for new approaches to education.
For the 2001-2002 school year, we operated 83 contract schools with a total enrollment of 50,000
students and 50 charter schools with a total enrollment of 24,000 students. Of these contract schools, 16
were operated under charters granted by school districts, which provided the facilities. We categorize
these schools as contract schools because we do not provide the facilities and therefore the economics of
these arrangements closely resemble those of a contract school. The remaining 67 contract schools were
operated under management agreements with local school boards. We also operated summer school
programs during the summer of 2002 serving approximately 35,000 students at 178 school sites in
partnership with 51 school districts.



The Edison Solution

As a private enterprise with national scale, Edison offers school districts and charter boards a
vehicle for overcoming many of the inherent constraints that have impeded systemic reform of public
schools. The Edison solution consists of two equally critical and mutually reinforcing components:

e a research-backed curriculum and school design that we believe yields significant
improvement in student academic achievement as reflected in average annual gains of six
percentage points against state criterion-referenced tests and five percentiles per year
against national norm-referenced tests from the 1995-1996 school year through the 2000-
2001 school year; and

e support systems designed to ensure consistent, replicable and effective implementation of
our educational model as we expand into a wide range of communities across the nation.

Examples of the latter include a national teacher and principal recruiting system; an infrastructure
to support teacher and principal training both before and after a school opens; a national distribution
network for curriculum materials, technology equipment and supplies; and information and support
systems to track and enhance student progress against identified goals.

We believe that many public school authorities are attracted to the Edison solution because,
unlike some other school reform initiatives, it enables them to stimulate positive, market-oriented,
comprehensive school reform within the framework of the existing, locally controlled public school
system. By entering into a partnership with us, such authorities enjoy the resources, systems, continuity
of focus and commitment to ongoing research and development associated with a national private sector
company while at the same time retaining local control of public education. For example, our
management agreements typically provide for the district or charter board to maintain ultimate oversight
and supervision over the school. In addition to regular reporting requirements and the ability to terminate
the management agreement on performance grounds, such oversight may take several forms, including
the right to reject Edison's candidate for school principal and the right to make adjustments to the
curriculum.

Research Behind The Edison Solution

The Edison school design and curriculum grew out of a comprehensive three-year research
project conducted by a team of approximately 30 full-time professional employees and numerous outside
experts under the leadership of Benno C. Schmidt, Jr., the former President of Yale University. Our
design team included respected education researchers, curriculum developers, teachers, principals, school
administrators, writers, technology specialists and experts in school finance and management. Together,
they brought a wide range of perspectives on improving education through the reform of curriculum,
instruction, assessment, professional development, school organization and most other elements of
education. The research leading to the development of our solution was extensive and systematic; our
staff members interviewed educators, reviewed a wide range of school programs and attempted to
assemble the best scientific evidence of the effects of potential reforms in K-12 education.

The Edison Curriculum and School Design
Our schools combine innovative curriculum and instruction methods with structures to assess and

guide students, hold school administrators accountable for student performance and encourage and
facilitate parental involvement in their children's education.



Curriculum

Demanding program of study. Our curriculum is guided by detailed and demanding student
academic standards that specify what students should know and be able to do at the end of each school
year in twenty fields of study, from reading, writing and mathematics to economics, geography, visual
arts and foreign languages. Our curriculum is also rich in content. For example, students at the junior
and high school levels normally study three years of world history and literature and two years of U.S.
history and literature. In addition, all high school students have the opportunity to complete biology,
chemistry and physics by the end of 11th grade, and we offer a wide range of advanced placement courses
to students in the 11th and 12th grades.

Professional development. Our professional development program provides opportunities for
teachers and principals to learn how to implement our program and develop their skills as educators. We
typically provide teachers and principals with two weeks of training before a school first opens and
additional support and training during the school's initial year. In addition, in schools that have chosen a
longer day teachers generally have two periods every day for professional development, and our school
calendars provide at least three days for ongoing training each year. We also offer several major national
curriculum conferences annually for different specialists within our schools and many regional
conferences.

Proven instruction methods. We use instruction methods derived from systematic research. For
example, our elementary schools implement either Success for All, a K-5 reading program developed at
Johns Hopkins University and refined through experimental studies directed by Johns Hopkins
University, or Open Court, another research-based program from SRA-McGraw Hill. Our schools
generally use mathematics programs developed through years of research by the University of Chicago
School Mathematics Project.

Emphasis on core values. We believe schools cannot be successful unless the students display
certain values, such as the willingness to take responsibility for themselves and their education, respect
for teachers and other students, and the desire to become educated. Our educational program is built
around a defined set of core values: wisdom, justice, courage, compassion, hope, respect, responsibility
and integrity. We believe these core values help us promote strong character in our students and a
positive learning environment. Our students receive instruction in these core values at every grade level.
For example, students in our elementary schools read out loud and have group discussions of morality
stories written for children. Also, our teacher training in student discipline, classroom management and
instruction is based on a character education program that incorporates these values.

Regular assessments of student performance. We routinely monitor our students' progress against
academic standards. We connect our standards and instructional programs with state standards and
assessments, and we believe our students are well prepared for state and local tests, for which we are held
accountable. Each quarter teachers complete a unique report card, known as a Quarterly Learning
Contract, which is a special narrative report card that tracks student progress against academic standards
and sets specific goals for students. We believe this is a contrast to the typical American report card that
grades progress relative to each teacher's subjective classroom standards. Students also receive traditional
letter grades in the Quarterly Learning Contract. Our students take all standardized tests required by state
and local authorities. We have introduced a monthly electronic benchmark assessment system that
provides us with detailed measurements of student progress toward achieving grade level academic
standards. We use these assessments to determine whether we should adjust our instructional programs to
help our students achieve the academic requirements of their grade level. With the 2002-2003 school
year, we have begun to introduce state-specific monthly benchmark content in a number of states in
which we operate. This state-specific content will help teachers adjust their instruction in order to
improve student mastery of state learning outcomes.



Extensive remedial instruction. The Edison curriculum is designed to meet the needs of all
students, regardless of ability. We employ one-on-one tutoring to help students master the academic
requirements of their grade level. Intensive remedial instruction in reading is available at all grade levels.
In addition, those schools that adopt our longer school day and year provide more time for instruction.

Support for students with special needs. We instruct special education students in mainstream
classrooms, to the extent we believe it is responsible to do so. However, special education staff members
are available at each site to provide a full continuum of services, including additional support in regular
classrooms, resource rooms and self-contained environments for students with greater needs. We offer
students who have limited English proficiency English-as-a-second-language programs or bilingual
programs, depending on community preference and needs.

School Design

Students and teachers are organized into small schools-within-a-school. Each of our schools
consists of small, flexible schools-within-a-school, called academies, where teachers typically follow the
same students from grade to grade for several years. We believe this organization ensures that students
are better known by their teachers, helps foster student-teacher relationships and encourages teachers to
feel more ongoing responsibility for individual students. Within each academy, students are generally
organized into multi-grade groups, called houses, of 100 to 180 students each. Students typically remain
within the same house until they graduate from the particular academy. Each house is led by four to six
teachers, who usually work with students of every level of the house for the duration of their academy
experience and are responsible for the core academic program of instruction in math, science, history,
geography, civics, economics, reading and language arts.

Longer school day and year. In contract and charter schools that choose to adopt this part of our
program, our students are in school an average of 1,500 hours each year after the first year of their
school's operation and our school year is approximately 200 days. Based on these figures, we believe
many of our students spend more time in school each year than students in most other public schools.
This provides our students with substantially more time for learning than many public school students and
enables us to implement a richer curriculum. Our typical school schedule also provides our students with
less time during the shorter summer vacation to forget what they learned during the school year.

Increased integration of technology. Our schools feature significant technology resources. We
generally provide each of our teachers with a laptop computer. Computer labs are available in all schools
to facilitate assessment of student learning, and each classroom has at least one computer available for
student use. In schools where program funding allows, we provide every family with a student above the
second grade a computer and a modem for use at home, following the first year of their school's
operation. To encourage and increase communication and enable the sharing of best practices, teachers,
students and parents are electronically connected via The Common, our Internet-based, internal message,
conferencing and information system that connects all our schools. We also have a distinctive program
called Technology as a Second Language to teach school staff, students and families to use technology
effectively.

Immediate and comprehensive change. In contrast to the small steps that school reform usually
must take, we believe it is important that schools launch a comprehensive package of change all at once.
We therefore make a substantial initial investment to purchase computers and other technology,
implement our curriculum and train teachers prior to commencing management of a school. This enables
our schools to integrate new curriculum, technology and professional development and pursue excellence
in all areas immediately and aggressively.

School-level accountability. We hold each school accountable for a high level of demonstrated
student progress as measured by conventional standardized tests, official performance assessments and
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our own assessments. Staff compensation and promotions within our schools are generally linked to
performance. Parents of students in our schools are encouraged to share accountability for their children's
progress by co-signing the Quarterly Learning Contract, under which they make a moral commitment to
help their children achieve specified academic goals. The Quarterly Learning Contract serves as the
report card for our students and indicates to parents how well their children are performing relative to our
annual academic standards. In addition to educational accountability, our schools are also held
accountable for financial management and student, parent and community satisfaction.

Principals accountable for school performance. Principals at our schools are appraised and
compensated based on meeting student academic performance, financial management and community
satisfaction goals. They are also responsible for public reporting of their school's accounts and budgets.
Principals receive school report cards that track progress on all accountability criteria, and principals are
in turn appraised and compensated based on progress against the accountability criteria. Principals for
our contract and charter schools are chosen in consultation with the school district or charter board and
normally hired four to six months before the school opens. This allows our operational vice presidents to
work closely with the new principals for several months to thoroughly introduce them to our education
system. In addition, new principals receive two weeks of formal training on our education system.

Dedicated teachers. We believe our schools attract motivated and dedicated teachers due to the
following factors:

e our innovative curriculum and approach to education;

e our commitment to professional development of teachers;
e increased access to resources and technology; and

e generally competitive salary levels.

Our schools are staffed by four levels of teachers: lead teacher, senior teacher, teacher and
resident teacher. We believe this four-tier seniority system provides an attractive career path and allows
new teachers to be mentored by more experienced teachers. Teachers are hired based on classroom and
educational experience, expertise in a particular subject area, evidence of leadership abilities in the
context of teams, and interaction with staff, students and families. Lead teachers have responsibility for
the organizational management of the teaching team, and classroom instruction is the primary focus of
senior teachers, teachers and resident teachers. In addition, lead teachers serve on the management team
of the school, which is led by the principal and also includes the business services manager. In this
respect, teachers are offered the opportunity to participate in the management of the school.

Partnerships with families. We are committed to keeping families engaged in their children's
education, both at school and in the home. We actively encourage parental involvement in the education
of their children through interaction with teachers, involvement in school affairs and numerous volunteer
opportunities. In addition, by co-signing the Quarterly Learning Contract, parents commit to monitor the
progress of their children in meeting stated educational goals. Further, where funding is sufficient for
implementation, we believe our program of providing, following the first year of a school's operation,
computers to the families of our students above the second grade has increased parents' level of
involvement in the school.

Edison Extra (Summer School). During the summer of 2002, Edison Extra, Edison's extended
learning division, served approximately 35,000 students in summer school programs at 178 school sites in
51 districts in Missouri. Edison manages none of these schools during the regular academic year. Edison
Extra's program serve students in grades K-12 and includes instruction in all subject areas. The programs
typically provide 168 hours of instruction for students during a five-week period. Edison Extra creates
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site-specific educational programming, with core classes in academic subject areas in the morning and
elective courses in the afternoon.

The Edison Operating System

The systems we have built to ensure consistent and effective implementation, replicability and
scalability are as essential to our model as the Edison curriculum and school design itself. Although there
are many outstanding public schools in the United States, we believe that the basis for such success has
been highly individualized, often, for example, dependent on an especially dynamic principal. Edison has
designed its support systems with the objective of not only creating excellence, but also being able to
replicate it in a consistent manner in a widely diverse array of schools across the country.

Operational Vice President structure. Edison's operational professionals—including regional
operational vice presidents and operations vice presidents or directors who offer additional support in
specific geographic areas—provide the most critical link between our central operations and each school
site. They are accountable for building and ensuring the operation of successful schools, defined as
schools that measurably enhance student achievement over time and meet financial objectives. They
work closely with regional achievement directors from the education division to assess school progress
against specific achievement goals. In meeting their responsibility, operational vice presidents make
frequent site visits, analyze school academic and financial data, coordinate central support operations that
meet the needs of each school and hold regional training sessions for principals and teachers.

Education Division. Our Education Division oversees the implementation, modification, support
and effectiveness of our educational design. The Education Division's 65 employees, together with
approximately 150 of our teachers who we annually certify as trainers, provide a continuous stream of
support to our schools through the coordination of school wide and national training programs,
development of curricular standards and assessment of design effectiveness at each school. The
Achievement Department within the Education Division deploys senior educators with a span of control
of roughly 10 schools apiece to help schools focus their instructional programs intensely on raising
achievement. The Education Division also collects, analyzes and publishes educational data for use by
our schools, our school district and charter board clients and the public.

Assessment. The Assessment Department within our Education Division monitors student
achievement, school design and customer satisfaction criteria of our schools, and analyzes these data to
understand and measure our schools' performance. This department also prepares monthly and annual
reports on school performance for our principals and operational vice presidents.

Recruiting. Strong educational leadership and teaching ability are vital to the successful
implementation of the Edison design. Our Recruitment Department works year-round to attract
outstanding principal candidates through a variety of recruitment strategies, including direct headhunting,
national advertising and cultivation of outstanding internal candidates. The department also recruits
outstanding teacher candidates through a network of school-based recruitment coordinators and through
targeted recruitment efforts at over 100 college campuses, historically black colleges and highly regarded
teacher organizations.

Real estate. Prior to finalizing a management agreement, we typically review the physical
condition, technology infrastructure, suitability and student capacity of each school site, and estimate the
costs of preparing the facilities for an Edison school. Once the management agreement is finalized, we
either contract with local architects and construction managers to make the necessary modifications or
work closely with client school districts, depending on the terms of the management agreement. In some
independent charter school management agreements, we may be responsible for new construction, major
renovation or conversion of a commercial or industrial property. We often will provide construction
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management and real estate development and financial advisory services to charter schools. For more
information on our real estate arrangements, see "Properties."

Start-up. As a management agreement is finalized, the assigned operational vice president sets up
a local start-up office, hires a start-up staff, and begins to complete each step outlined in our Start-up
Manual, a multi-volume guide that directs each phase of the start-up process. The start-up office serves
as the center for all school operations, including student enrollment, staff recruitment and coordination
with the central office.

Purchasing. Our Supply Chain Management Department is responsible for coordinating both the
purchase and the delivery of each school's curriculum and technology. We believe our size and growth
have allowed us to achieve economies of scale by realizing more competitive prices from vendors than
could most school districts.

Enrollment. We provide technical expertise and on-site support to assist each school in reaching
its targeted enrollment. The Student Enrollment Department supports a variety of student recruitment
strategies, including door-to-door distribution of recruitment literature, neighborhood information
sessions, posting of fliers in public areas, use of available print and electronic media and interaction with
community-based organizations. In the event that the number of students seeking admission to an Edison
school exceeds the school's capacity, an open admissions lottery is held to determine which students are
admitted and which are placed on the school's waiting list.

Business services. We hire business services managers to manage the day-to-day administrative
operations at Edison schools. Business services managers, who handle either a single school or a cluster
of schools, are responsible for managing the school's budget, processing all site expenditures and
coordinating student transportation, food and personnel services. We also employ financial analysts in
our central office to assess prospective management contracts and monitor the budgets of our existing
schools. Our central office also monitors real estate financing and performs traditional financial
administrative functions.

Technology. Our Technology Department oversees the creation, modification, and
implementation of the technology components of the Edison curriculum and school design. The
department creates specifications for each school and start-up office, oversees technology-related building
modifications and equipment installation, recruits and selects the school or community technology
manager, trains the technology manager and provides additional field support as needed.

Family and community partnerships. Formal parent orientation begins once the student body has
been selected, but all parent meetings and community information sessions that lead up to final student
selection are part of families' introduction to Edison and the contract or charter school. The parent
orientation process is organized at each site by the school's student support manager, a professional
member of the school staff who facilitates community interaction and coordinates social services within
the school. The student support manager works closely with the school's principal throughout the start-up
process to recruit parent volunteers, hold welcome meetings, orient parents to the Edison curriculum and
school design and coordinate the school's grand opening celebration.

Pre-opening training. We provide a comprehensive, pre-opening professional development
program for principals and teachers at each of our new sites. Our national leadership training gives new
principals an intense overview of the Edison design, including the start-up process, curriculum, student
academic standards, school organization, school culture, technology, financial management and measures
of accountability. Training for all instructional school staff takes place during the summer before the
opening of the school and includes training on instructional methodology, classroom management and the
core curriculum in each teacher's area of expertise.
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Ongoing training. We maintain the successful operation of each of our schools through frequent
site visits by our support personnel and through ongoing professional development for school staff. In
addition to local training, principals and teachers regularly convene for national conferences, where
training typically focuses on student achievement, leadership strategies, design modifications, community
relations, new support services or subject-specific training sessions. Principals and teachers can also
utilize The Common, our on-line network, to access additional resources and interact with individuals
from other Edison schools.

Site monitoring and accountability. To ensure that each Edison school makes continuous
progress in each of these areas, we generate a Monthly Achievement Profile (MAP) for each school site.
The MAP provides a snapshot of benchmark results, information related to attendance, enrollment,
student and teacher mobility, quality of instruction, student management, teaching materials, and
professional development. These reports are available online to site and central personnel. Monthly
financial estimates are also generated. In addition, we compile a year-end Student Report Card for each
school site. The report includes information about student performance on standardized tests; levels of
parent, staff, and student satisfaction; the degree to which the school adhered to and implemented the
Edison school design, and the degree to which the school met its budgetary requirements. The School
Report Card serves as the basis upon which the school principal is evaluated and, where state law permits,
compensated.

The Edison Solution Implemented

For the 2002-2003 school year, we are operating 150 schools located in 23 states and the District
of Columbia with a combined student enrollment of approximately 80,000. This represents an increase of
approximately 6,000 students and one new state from the 2001-2002 school year. We also offered
summer school programs at four of our schools and 178 non-Edison schools in the summer of 2002.

We operate two types of schools: contract and charter. In the case of most charter schools, we
are required to arrange for a facility. In some cases, however, we operate charter schools under a charter
granted by the local school board, which provides the facility. In these cases, we categorize and count
these schools as contract schools because we do not provide the facilities and therefore the economics of
the arrangement more nearly resemble those of a contract school. We believe that Edison, which is
currently operating 99 contract schools, is the major provider of contract schools for traditional K-12
instruction in the United States, although other providers are now also operating contract schools.

We consider grades pre-K-5, 6-8 and 9-12 to each be a school, and we count grades pre-K-5, 6-8
and 9-12 as separate schools, even if they are located in the same building. As we expand, we often
introduce new grade levels gradually rather than simultaneously opening all grade levels within a school.
We consider ourselves to have opened a new school if we introduce at least one grade level at a different
school level, for example, if we add grade 6 at a location housing an existing pre-K-5 school. In some
cases, we count grades pre-K-6 as one school if it is the local practice to configure elementary schools in
this manner. For the 2002-2003 school year, we have 112 principals, and each principal is generally
responsible for all the Edison schools on his or her campus. Our students have generally been from
economically disadvantaged backgrounds, and approximately 73% of our students participated in the
federal free and reduced lunch program during the 2001-2002 school year. These students come from
families with incomes at or below 185% of the poverty level established by federal authorities.

The following table provides information about the schools we are operating for the 2002-2003
school year.

Expiration
Client Location Schools Commenced Grades School Date
Chula Vista Elementary School District Chula Vista, California 1 1997 K-6 Contract* June 2008
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Client

Ravenswood City School District
Fresno Unified School District

Long Beach Unified School District
Napa Unified School District

San Francisco Unified School District
West Covina Unified School District

Academy School District No. 10

Colorado Springs School District No. 11

Wyatt-Edison Charter School

Board of Area Cooperative Educational
Services

Friendship Public Charter School

Southeast Academy of Scholastic Excellence
Public Charter School

Thomas A. Edison Charter School of
Wilmington, Inc.

Dade County Public Schools

Drew Charter School, Inc.

Chicago Charter School Foundation
Peoria Public Schools

Springfield Public Schools

Perry Township

Davenport Community School District
Wichita School District No. 259

New Baltimore City Board of School
Commissioners and the Maryland State
Department of Education

Seven Hills Charter School

Battle Creek School District

Detroit Academy of Arts and Sciences
Detroit-Edison Public School Academy
YMCA Service Learning Academy
Edison-Oakland Public School Academy
School District of the City of Flint
Inkster Public School District

School District of the City of Pontiac
Duluth Public Schools Academy

Hope Community Academy Charter School
Derrick Thomas Charter School

Kansas City Municipal School District

Westport Allen-Edison Village Educational
School

Westport Community Secondary Schools

Location

East Palo Alto, California
Fresno, California

Long Beach, California
Napa, California

San Francisco, California
West Covina, California

Colorado Springs,
Colorado

Colorado Springs,
Colorado

Denver, Colorado

Hamden, Connecticut

Washington, D.C.
Washington, D.C.

Wilmington, Delaware

Miami, Florida
Atlanta, Georgia
Chicago, Illinois
Peoria, Illinois
Springfield, Illinois
Indianapolis, Indiana
Davenport, lowa
Wichita, Kansas

Baltimore, Maryland

Worcester, Massachusetts
Battle Creek, Michigan
Detroit, Michigan
Detroit, Michigan
Detroit, Michigan
Ferndale, Michigan
Flint, Michigan
Inkster, Michigan
Pontiac, Michigan
Duluth, Minnesota

St. Paul, Minnesota
Kansas City, Missouri
Kansas City, Missouri

Kansas City, Missouri

Kansas City, Missouri
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Commenced

1998
1999
2000
1998
1998
1998
1998

1996

1998
1998

1998
2000

2000

1996
2000
1999
1999
2000
2002
1999
1995
2000

1996
1998
1997
1998
1999
1999
1997
2000
1998
1997
2000
2002
1999
1999

1999

Grades

K-8
K-6
K-5
K-6
K-5
K-8
K-5

K-8

K-8
K-8

K-11
K-8

K-5
K-6
K-12
K-8
K-6
K-5
K-5
K-8
pre-K-6

K-8
K-8
K-10
K-8
K-8
K-8
K-12
pre-K-12
K-8
K-9
K-4
K-5
K-5
K-8

6-12

School

Contract
Contract*
Contract
Contract*
Contract*
Contract*

Contract

Contract*

Charter

Contract

Charter

Charter

Charter

Contract
Charter

Charter

Contract
Contract
Contract
Contract
Contract

Contract

Charter
Contract
Charter
Charter
Charter
Charter
Contract
Contract
Contract
Contract*
Charter
Charter
Contract

Charter

Contract*

Expiration
Date
June 2003
June 2004
June 2005
June 2003
June 2006
June 2003
June 2005

June 2006

June 2003
June 2003

June 2003
June 2005

June 2005

June 2006
June 2005
June 2007
June 2004
June 2005
June 2007
June 2004
June 2005
June 2005

June 2006
June 2003
June 2006
June 2002**
June 2004
June 2004
June 2005
June 2005
June 2003
June 2003
June 2003
June 2007
June 2004
June 2004

June 2004



Client Location Schools ~ Commenced Grades
Schomburg Charter School, Inc. Jersey City, New Jersey 1 2000 K-5
New Covenant Charter School Albany, New York 2 2000 K-7
Harriet Tubman Charter School Bronx, New York 1 2001 K-5
Stepping Stone Academy Charter School Buffalo, New York 1 2001 K-5
Riverhead Charter School Riverhead, New York 1 2001 K-4
Charter School of Science and Technology Rochester, New York 2 2000 K-9
Charter School For Applied Technologies Tonawanda, New York 2 2001 K-6
Clark County School District Las Vegas, Nevada 7 2001 K-8
Nash-Rocky Mount Public Schools Whitakers, North Carolina 1 1999 K-5
Alliance Community Schools, Inc. Dayton, Ohio 4 1999 K-7
Chester - Upland School District Chester, Pennsylvania 10 2001 K-12
Mariana Bracetti Academy Charter School Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 2 2000 6-9
School District of Philadelphia Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 26 2002 K-9
Renaissance Academy-Edison Charter Phoenixville, Pennsylvania 3 2000 K-9

School
Lincoln-Edison Charter School York, Pennsylvania 1 2000 K-5
Dallas Independent School District Dallas, Texas 7 2000 Pre-K-6
Tyler Independent School District Tyler, Texas 1 1999 6-8
Milwaukee Science Education Milwaukee, Wisconsin 1 2000 Pre-K-8

Consortium, Inc.
Milwaukee Urban League Academy of Milwaukee, Wisconsin 1 2001

Business and Economics, Inc.

150

* Indicates charter schools operated under a charter granted by the local school board.

**  Contract has not yet been renewed, although we are still providing management services.

Expiration

School Date
Charter June 2002**
Charter June 2004
Charter June 2006
Charter June 2006
Charter June 2006
Charter June 2005
Charter June 2006
Contract June 2006
Contract June 2004
Charter June 2004

Contract June 2006***

Charter June 2006
Contract June 2007
Charter June 2005
Contract* June 2005
Contract June

Contract June 2006
Charter June 2005
Charter June 2006

***  Contract remain in force, although discussions are in progress to change the nature of this relationship.

**%%  Notice of early termination at the end of the 2002-2003 school year has been received.

During school year 2001-2002 we changed our relationship with one charter board for which we
managed three schools. That relationship was discontinued altogether prior to the end of the school year.
A management contract with one district client representing two schools was not renewed. Further,
management agreements with six clients representing 13 schools were discontinued prior to their
expiration. Finally, we also discontinued management of two of four schools under one district contract.

The 20 closed schools enrolled approximately 7,400 students in the aggregate.

Competitive Strengths

Our experience suggests that the following are some of the competitive strengths that will allow

us to continue to grow:

e Quantifiable academic improvement.

Student achievement in our schools has been

substantial, as measured by a range of state and local tests. From the 1995-1996 school
year through the 2000-2001 school year, for those schools that we have operated long
enough to generate trend data, typically by a school's second year with Edison, our
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students, on average, gained six percentage points per year against state criterion-
referenced tests and five percentiles per year against national norm-referenced tests.

Parental satisfaction. Our schools enjoy high parental satisfaction. According to a
survey prepared for us by an independent market research firm for the 2001-2002 school
year, covering all of our schools then in operation, over 50% of the parents of our
students gave our schools grades of A or A-. This compares to 28% of parents who gave
on average a grade of A or A- in a national sample of U.S. public schools for the 2000-
2001 school year in a similar study conducted by a different market research firm.

Extensive infrastructure. We have a series of systems and support personnel that permit
us to implement our curriculum and school design in contract and charter schools in
communities across the United States. The systems were developed over our previous six
years of operating schools and include curriculum development, recruiting capabilities,
assessment mechanisms, professional development systems, financial management and
acquisition systems, and systems to assess prospective management agreements.

Achievement Management Systems. In order to manage effectively our national network
of schools, we have developed a unique Achievement Management System. The
Achievement Management System includes our Benchmark Assessment System, our
Monthly Achievement Profile (MAP), and our Achievement Directors. The Benchmark
Assessment System is an on-line assessment tool designed to track student proficiency on
state-mandated high stakes tests. With the data derived from the Benchmark system,
teachers and administrators can obtain real time data on student progress against state
standards. Similarly, the Monthly Achievement Profile is a reporting framework that
provides Edison's management with all information relevant to the implementation of the
Edison School Design. The MAP includes Benchmark results, student discipline
information, teacher training and turnover information, and indications of the rate of
completion of other aspects of the design, such as the delivery of curriculum materials.
The Achievement Directors and Vice Presidents, who are part of the Education Division,
then bring these tools together to develop detailed student achievement plans and to
coach principals and lead teachers in implementing them.

Experienced management team. We have an experienced management team led by H.
Christopher Whittle, founder of several media enterprises including the first national
electronic news system for middle and high schools in the United States, Benno C.
Schmidt, Jr., former President of Yale University, Christopher D. Cerf, former Associate
Counsel to President Clinton from 1994 to 1996, John E. Chubb, senior fellow at the
Brookings Institution and a noted author and speaker on education, and Charles J.
Delaney, former president of UBS Capital America. Our management team also features
a number of former school system superintendents, including Deborah M. McGriff,
former superintendent of the Detroit public schools.

Significant investment in research and development. Prior to opening our first four
schools during the 1995-1996 school year, we conducted a three-year research project led
by a core team of educators, researchers, policy experts and other professionals to create
an innovative and, we believe, effective model for operating more efficient and effective
public schools. This research project led to the creation of Edison's curriculum and
school design, which integrate many successful educational practices into a
comprehensive school solution for grades K-12, guided by high academic standards,
supported by research-backed innovations in most areas of schooling and emphasizing
assessment and accountability. Since then, Edison's management team has continued to
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assess the effectiveness of each element of the company's systems, and has developed
tools (such as the Benchmarks and MAP) to improve their impact.

Growth Strategy and Business Development

We believe the competitive strengths described above uniquely position Edison to improve public
schools in a variety of capacities other than the direct management of schools that has constituted the core
of our business to date. Accordingly, we have begun to diversify our sales approach to include more
consultative services, as well as summer and after school programs. Our experience in working with
districts in our contract schools and summer school program suggests that there is a significant market for
Edison's services among the over 7,400 school districts in the United States with more than 1,000
students. The combined operating budgets of such districts total approximately $300 billion, based on
data from the 1999-2000 school year.

In order to effectively tap this market, we have revised the structure of our development division
to focus on five separate product channels:

Contract Schools. The contract channel will continue to seek contracts with school districts
under which Edison would manage one or more district schools. Because we have found that larger
districts are generally better able to manage the budget flexibility required to successfully contract with
us, the contract channel will focus its efforts on the more than 800 school districts with over 10,000
students enrolled. Together, these districts have annual operating budgets of nearly $160 billion. The
contract channel will also seek to develop opportunities to run schools whose management is assumed by
state government (as we have done in Maryland), an action that we anticipate will be increasingly
common, given the increasing political support for school accountability measures. The contract channel
will also work to develop new district charter schools, as the process of converting these schools to
charter status is similar to the process for establishing a contract school. Development vice presidents
working in the contract channel are assigned a group of states and are expected to contact schools district
within those states to explore the possibility of an Edison partnership. The sales cycle for contract
schools ranges from nine to 18 months.

Charter Schools. The charter school channel will continue to work to develop new charter
schools in states with favorable charter legislation. This requires developing relationships with local
community groups, developing charter applications, obtaining charters from state authorizers, selecting a
school site, managing the construction or renovation of the building, and arranging third-party financing
(such as a bank mortgage). A Development vice president assigned to the charter channel must determine
which jurisdictions are most suitable to the development of a charter school. The important criteria
include: particulars of the applicable state charter legislation; an established non-profit community
agency interested in holding the charter; a viable site acquisition strategy; and the support of state and
local officials for charter schools. Typically, the development process for a charter school ranges from 18
to 27 months, beginning with Edison's first contact with a community group interested in setting up a new
charter school.

Affiliates. Though not previously the focus of our development efforts, we have found significant
interest in the Edison solution among school districts with fewer than 10,000 students. However, these
small districts are not usually able to undertake the shift in budget structure required to support a contract
school. Accordingly, we have developed a new product offering, Edison Affiliates, specifically designed
for the more than 6,600 school districts with between 1,000 and 10,000 students. The Affiliates offering
allows small districts to implement our Achievement Management Systems in their schools without
requiring district-wide adoption of Edison's curriculum or business systems. Districts that subscribe to
the Affiliates program receive regular visits from an Edison Achievement Advisor (equivalent to an
Achievement Director), access to the Benchmark Assessment System and a modified version of the MAP,
and a suite of school communication software tools, such as homework planners and integrated school
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calendars. Our development efforts for the 2002-2003 school year are focused on twelve states that have
a preponderance of districts in the 1,000 to 10,000 student range: California, Colorado, Georgia, Illinois,
Indiana, Michigan, Missouri, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, Texas and Virginia. We anticipate that
the sales cycle for the Affiliates services will be nine to 12 months in most cases.

Edison Extra. The Extra channel focuses on developing summer and after school programs with
school districts. In building our successful summer school program in Missouri over the last three years,
we have come to recognize that school districts see value in an education provider that can develop a turn-
key summer or after school program, as they are primarily focused on the core school program.
Accordingly, the Extra channel will work this year to find school districts both inside and outside
Missouri that are interested in developing, expanding, or enhancing their summer programs. We
anticipate that such programs will be district-funded, as they were in Missouri, but, as summer school
funding varies considerably from state to state, it may be necessary to develop a parent-pay program as
well. The Extra channel will also work to put its curriculum design and management system to work in
an after school setting. We anticipate that student fees will support several of these programs, depending
on local conditions.

International. Over the past few years, we have received a considerable volume of requests from
school officials, politicians and others outside the United States interested in seeing Edison replicate its
efforts in their schools. Interest has been particularly strong in the United Kingdom. Accordingly, we
have dedicated a small part of our business development efforts to exploring the potential for a
partnership with one or more Local Education Authorities in the United Kingdom. Any partnership there
will draw upon Edison's core competencies, but is likely to be more consultative than our traditional
school management approach.

Academic Performance

School districts and charter boards generally retain us both to improve the academic performance
of the students who will be in our schools and to create competition, which they hope will stimulate
academic progress in the other schools in the district. Our students are required to take the same local,
state and national tests administered by other public schools in the district. States regularly require
students to take assessments based on state standards, known as criterion-referenced tests, and school
districts also typically require students to take tests based on national standards, known as national norm-
referenced tests. Both types of tests are scored by independent authorities and result in publicly available
data about student performance. As of the end of the 2000-2001 school year, our sixth academic year,
these tests have provided hundreds of measures of our students' achievement.

Student academic achievement in our schools has been substantial, as measured by these
independent external assessments. The following summarizes available results for schools that were open
during the 2000-2001 school year:

e  On criterion-referenced tests—tests that gauge the ability of students to achieve specified
standards, and increasingly the type of test being used by the states to hold schools
accountable—Edison schools have, from 1995 to 2001, increased the percentage of
students achieving standards by an average of six percentage points every year.

e On norm-referenced tests—tests that gauge the achievement of students relative to their
peers nationwide—Edison schools have, from 1995 to 2001, increased the national
percentile rank of students by an average of five percentiles every year.

e In the 2000-2001 school year, Edison schools improved on their historical rate of gain.
On criterion-referenced tests—the most common tests in Edison schools—the average
gain was seven percentage points, one point higher than the average gain from 1995 to
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2001. On norm-referenced tests—the accountability measure in roughly a third of Edison
schools—the rate of gain held steady at five percentiles.

e Edison schools not only have a strong record of helping more students each year achieve
state standard; they have sharply reduced the numbers of students failing state tests
altogether. From 1995 to 2001, Edison schools reduced the failure rate on criterion-
referenced tests an average of six percentage points per year. In the 2000-2001 school
year, Edison schools reduced failure rates an average of nine percentage points per
school.

Labor Relations

We are committed to developing a positive relationship with teachers' unions at both the local and
national levels. We work in successful partnership with local teachers' unions in numerous schools across
the country, and believe our distinctive curriculum and school design can be successfully delivered in the
context of a unionized school. In this regard, we believe we are unique among school management
companies, which generally have declined to operate in schools subject to collective bargaining.

Our commitment to developing a successful working relationship with unions reflects the fact
that a majority of our schools are contract rather than charter schools. As a general proposition, unions do
not represent teachers at charter schools in the United States. In contrast, at least in those states with
strong public employee labor laws, schoolteachers in traditional public schools generally have elected to
organize. Approximately 46% of the students we educate attend schools operated under collective
bargaining agreements, many specifically modified to accommodate the Edison design. In some charter
schools, the charter incorporates by reference portions of collective bargaining agreements.

Although we strive to maintain positive union relations, we regularly encounter resistance from
teachers unions in local school board debates over whether to enter into a management agreement with us.
Local teachers' unions have also occasionally initiated litigation challenging our management agreements.
The concept of a private sector school manager in public education is still a comparatively new one. In
addition, both national teachers unions historically have opposed privatization in public schools. While
we reject that label and regard our approach to be more of a public/private partnership that draws on the
strengths of both sectors, the unions' historical perspective often influences local debates.

For several reasons, we believe that our relations with unions at all levels will continue to
improve:

e as an organization, we remain committed to that improvement;

e many union members recognize that we are the only significant private sector
organization in this area that seeks to work within the existing public school system;

e notwithstanding the perception of some opinion leaders, significant elements within
teachers unions are committed to meaningful reforms, including any initiative that
improves student performance, preserves the integrity of the public school system as a
whole and protects the rights of teachers as professionals. We believe that our approach,
unlike many other reform initiatives, is consistent with these objectives;

e we believe that some local union leaders have concluded that working with us is an

effective defensive strategy against other more threatening initiatives, such as vouchers or
non-unionized charters; and
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e many aspects of our curriculum and school design, such as extensive professional
development and an enhanced leadership role for teachers in the management of the
school, have long enjoyed the support of the unions.

Contractual Arrangements for Establishing Contract and Charter Schools

Contract schools. Our management agreements for operating contract schools are typically
negotiated with the district school board. Management agreements generally last for five years, provide
us with per-student funding generally comparable to that received by other schools in the district and give
us substantial control over a school, under the board's ultimate supervision. We deliver and support our
curriculum, manage the school's budget, provide periodic assessment reports to the school district, hire
teachers and, in collaboration with the school district, choose the school's principal.

Charter schools. Our management agreements for operating charter schools are negotiated with
the charter boards, which generally consist of community groups or established non-profit entities. Public
school districts typically can also issue charters and may retain us to operate charter schools. The terms
and conditions of these management agreements are similar to our management agreements for contract
schools. We often also help the charter boards arrange for financing to obtain the facilities for the charter
schools and often provide interim financing. In some cases, we have entered into long-term leases for the
charter school facilities. We have also provided permanent credit support for many of our charter school
buildings, typically in the form of loan guarantees or cash collateral.

Government Laws and Regulations

Federal and state education programs. The schools we manage receive funds derived from
numerous federal and state programs to be used for specific educational purposes. If, on behalf of those
schools, we fail to comply with the requirements of the various programs, we could be required to repay
the funds and those schools could be determined ineligible for receipt of future federal funds. Most of the
schools we manage receive funds under Title I of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965.
This program supports educationally disadvantaged children in areas of high poverty. Some of our
schools also receive funds from other programs under this act, including Title II, Part A, which provides
funding for the professional development of teachers, Title II, Part D, which provides funding for
technology programs, Title VII, which provides funding for bilingual education programs, Title V, which
provides funding for innovative education programs, and the Public Charter School Program, which
provides start-up funding for charter schools. We have policies and procedures in place in order to
comply with the regulations and requirements of these programs.

Although we receive these federal and state funds indirectly through local school boards and
charter boards, our receipt of these funds subjects us to extensive governmental regulation and scrutiny.
We could lose all or part of these funds if we fail to comply with the applicable statutes or regulations, if
the federal or state authorities reduce the funding for the programs or if the schools we manage are
determined to be ineligible to receive funds under such programs. To the extent that the laws and
regulations governing federal and state programs change or are interpreted in a manner that would prevent
school districts and public charter schools from using federal funds to pay for the services we provide, the
loss of all or part of these funds would hurt our business.

No Child Left Behind Act (NCLB). This act is the 2001 reauthorization of the Elementary and
Secondary Education Act of 1965. It contains numerous requirements pertaining to the receipt of a range
of federal funds, including Title I. The two most significant of these requirements are new standards
pertaining to teacher qualifications, and the requirement that schools make adequate yearly progress
(AYP) toward state standards for students. The AYP requirements must be met not only by the aggregate
school population, but also by ethnic/racial subgroups, students with disabilities, and English language
learners. Schools that fail to make AYP toward meeting state standards may lose some of their student
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enrollment due to school choice provisions, may be required to allocate a portion of their Title I funding
toward the provision of supplemental services to some students, and may be subject to state takeover or
other forms of district or state intervention. Failure to meet teacher qualification and related standards
may result in the loss of NCLB funds at the school or district that failed to meet the Act's requirements.

Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act. This act requires that students with qualified
disabilities receive an appropriate education through special education and related services provided in a
manner reasonably calculated to enable the child to receive educational benefit in the least restrictive
environment. Our responsibility to provide the potentially extensive services required by this act varies
depending on state law, type of school and the terms of our management agreements. We are generally
responsible for ensuring the requirements of this act are met in our charter schools, unless state law
assigns that responsibility to another entity. In our contract schools, we typically share responsibility with
school districts for ensuring that the requirements of this act are met. If we are found in violation of this
act in one of our schools, we may incur costs relating to the provision of compensatory education
services, and may be liable for reasonable attorney fees incurred by the families of individual students
with disabilities.

Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act. The schools we manage are subject to the federal
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, which protects the privacy of a student's educational record,
and generally prohibits a school from disclosing a student's records to a third party without the prior
consent of his or her parents. The law also gives parents certain rights with respect to their minor
children's education records. The failure of our schools to comply with this law may result in termination
of their eligibility to receive federal education funds.

Gun-Free Schools Act. The Gun-Free Schools Act, which became effective in 1994, requires the
schools we manage to effect certain policies, assurances and reports regarding the discipline of students
who bring weapons to our schools. If those schools violate any of these requirements, they may be
deemed ineligible to receive certain Federal education funds.

Federal Civil Rights Laws. The schools we manage must comply with federal civil rights laws or
those schools could be determined ineligible to receive funds from federal programs or face criminal or
civil penalties. These laws include the following:

e Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Title VI prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color or national origin.

e Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972. Title IX prohibits discrimination on the
basis of gender by recipients of federal financial assistance.

e Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. Section 504 prohibits discrimination on
the basis of disability by recipients of federal financial assistance.

o Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990. This act prohibits discrimination in
employment against a qualified individual with a disability and requires that buildings,
facilities and vehicles associated with public services be accessible to individuals with
disabilities.

e Age Discrimination Act of 1975. This act prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of age.

e Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967. This act prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in employment.

21



e FEqual Pay Act of 1963. This act prohibits discrimination on the basis of gender in the
payment of wages.

e Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Title VII prohibits discrimination on the basis of
gender in employment.

Drug-free Workplace Act of 1988. The Drug-Free Workplace Act requires a recipient of federal
funds to certify that it provides a drug-free workplace. If we violate the certification and reporting
requirements of this act, then we could be determined ineligible to receive federal funds.

State Regulations. We are also subject to state statutory and regulatory requirements in the states
in which we operate. All states have standards for the operation of schools concerning, for example, the
length of the school year, curriculum, hours of the school day, physical education and other areas. We
could be in violation of our management agreements with charter boards or school districts if we fail to
comply with these standards.

For more information on the effect of government laws and regulations on our business, see
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations—Additional
Risk Factors That May Affect Future Results—We rely on government funds for specific education
programs, and our business could suffer if we fail to comply with rules concerning the receipt and use of
the funds" and "—We are subject to extensive government regulation because we benefit from federal
funds, and our failure to comply with government regulations could result in the reduction or loss of
federal education funds."

Security

We believe our school design helps maintain order and security by encouraging closer
relationships among teachers, students and families. In addition, we have taken the following steps to
ensure safety at our schools:

e We have engaged a national school security consultant to oversee the design and
effectiveness of security at our schools;

e We have developed a security review process for our schools. Each year approximately
50 schools will participate in a review that includes three site visits, a complete security
walkthrough and evaluation, a set of crisis management and safety training sessions for
principals and all school staff, and a crisis drill and security walkthrough follow-up;

e We have developed a week-long security officer training program that all Edison security
officers attend; and

e We have entered into national contracts with several safety companies for items such as
security cameras, metal detectors and emergency Kkits.

Human Resources
As of June 30, 2002, we had 389 full-time headquarters employees. In addition, 107 principals,

approximately 4,900 teachers and over 2,200 members of administrative staff and management worked in
our schools for the 2001-2002 school year.
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Competition

We have a number of direct competitors, although to date the companies that are most similar to
us in terms of corporate strategy have focused primarily or exclusively on operating charter schools rather
than contracting with school districts. Companies that compete with us include Chancellor-Beacon
Academies, Mosaica Education, Charter Schools USA, The Leona Group, National Heritage Academy,
SABIS Educational Systems and Victory Schools. In addition, other private school operators, post-
secondary education providers or childcare providers could possibly enter our market. For example,
Bright Horizons Family Solutions, a provider of corporate sponsored childcare, recently opened its first
private school, and it or other childcare providers could seek opportunities in the charter or contract
schools market. KIPP, a national non-profit organization, provides support and training to schools using
the KIPP model as developed in KIPP Academies in Houston and New York City.

Item 2. Properties

Of the 150 schools we are currently operating in fiscal 2003, the 99 contract schools generally
operate in existing facilities provided by our school district clients, though we manage the maintenance
and operation of these facilities. Of our 99 contract schools, 16 are operated under a charter held by a
public school district which provides a facility.

Significant real estate investments are often necessary when we establish a charter school for a
charter board and existing facilities are not available. Generally, these investments are either made by the
charter board or by us, and we work closely with the charter board to locate, develop and finance the
charter school's facilities. A suitable location often needs to be found prior to completing a charter
application for a particular jurisdiction. The building or renovation process generally lasts at least several
months and can vary widely in expense from minimal upgrades to new construction, which typically costs
from $4.0 million to $10.0 million. Innovative financing methods are often needed to compensate for the
limited amount of state and local funding available to develop charter school facilities and we have
employed a variety of approaches, including owning or leasing the building, advancing funds for the
building to the charter board with various repayment terms, or having the charter board directly own or
lease the facility, sometimes assisted by a subordinated loan from us. We also consider providing
guarantees to lending institutions to allow the charter board flexibility in obtaining financing.

In July 2000, we acquired a 35% interest in Ksixteen LLC, a company organized to provide
construction management and real estate development and financial advisory services to charter schools.
The management of Ksixteen included all the members of our former real estate department. Edison and
Ksixteen entered into a master development agreement pursuant to which Ksixteen performed
construction management and real estate development and financing services on behalf of charter schools
that have entered into management agreements with us. Effective July 1, 2001, we acquired the
remaining 65% of Ksixteen and intend to operate our real estate function internally in the future.

Our executive offices are located in New York, New York in a leased facility consisting of
approximately 75,600 square feet.

In fiscal 2000, we purchased property in New York, New York for the purchase price of $10
million and entered into an agreement with the Museum of African Art to develop the property for a
mixed use project consisting of new corporate headquarters, a charter school and a facility to house the
Museum. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, we decided to discontinue the project and recorded an
impairment charge of approximately $3.6 million reflecting soft costs invested in the project since
inception.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Class Action Lawsuits Under the Federal Securities Laws. Between May 15, 2002 and July 3,
2002, ten class action lawsuits were filed against Edison and certain of its officers and directors in the
United States District Court for the Southern District of New York. The ten lawsuits are captioned (1)
Dively v. Edison Schools, Inc., Civ. Action No. 02-CV-3692; (2) Barry v. Edison Schools, Inc., Civ.
Action No. 02-CV-3704; (3) Devine v. Edison Schools, Inc., Civ. Action No. 02-CV-3726; (4) Cooper v.
Edison Schools, Inc., Civ. Action No. 02-CV-3828; (5) Neuenfeldt v. Edison Schools, Inc., Civ. Action
No. 02-CV-3912; (6) Berman v. Edison Schools, Inc., Civ. Action No. 02-CV-4269; (7) Minich v. Edison
Schools, Inc., Civ. Action No. 02-CV-4410; (8) Vanlaere v. Edison Schools, Inc., Civ. Action No. 02-
CV-4692; (9) Seiden v. Edison Schools, Inc., Civ. Action No. 02-CV-5078; and (10) Grace v. Edison
Schools, Inc., Civ. Action No. 02-CV-5198. The Barry, Devine and Seiden lawsuits name as an
additional defendant PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. The Grace lawsuit names as additional defendants
Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc., Banc of America Securities LLC, Credit Suisse First Boston Corporation,
Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Corp. and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. These lawsuits are largely identical
and each alleges that Edison and certain of its officers and directors violated Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. They seek an unspecified amount of compensatory damages, costs
and expenses related to bringing the actions, and in a few instances, injunctive relief. Plaintiffs allege that
Edison's public disclosures from November 1999 to March 2002 regarding its financial condition were
materially false and misleading because Edison allegedly improperly inflated its total revenues by
including certain payments, including payments for teacher salaries, that were paid directly to third parties
by local school districts and charter school boards that contracted with Edison. Each of the lawsuits
references the May 14, 2002, cease-and-desist order issued by the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission on consent against Edison. Several of the lawsuits also mention two restatements of
Edison's financial statements, one regarding a warrant purchased in 1998 by a philanthropic organization
and the other regarding a severance agreement between Edison and one of its senior officers, made by
Edison as a result of the May 14, 2002 cease-and-desist order. The Grace lawsuit also contains an
allegation that Edison, certain of its officers and directors, and the investment banks that underwrote
Edison's November 1999 offering of class A common stock violated Sections 11 and 15 of the Securities
Act of 1933 by issuing a prospectus containing untrue statements of material fact or omissions of material
fact, regarding Edison's financial condition and its inclusion in its stated revenue of certain payments
made directly to third parties by local school districts and charter school boards that contracted with
Edison. In July 2002, several plaintiffs filed motions to be appointed lead plaintiff and also moved to
consolidate the ten lawsuits in one action. To date, there has been no ruling by the court on these
motions. Edison believes that it has strong defenses to the claims raised by these lawsuits. However, if
Edison were not to prevail, the amounts involved could be material to Edison.

Derivative Lawsuits. Between May 15, 2002, and July 19, 2002, three lawsuits were filed
derivatively on behalf of Edison against certain of Edison's officers and directors in the Supreme Court
for the State of New York, County of New York. The derivative lawsuits are captioned (1) Urbach, et al.
v. Christopher D. Cerf, et al., Index No. 02/111413; (2) Devine, et al. v. Christopher D. Cerf, et al., Index
No. 02/111414; and (3) Goldstein v. Schmidt, Jr., et al., Index No. 02/602659. Plaintiffs in these lawsuits
contend that Edison's officers and directors committed various common law torts against the Company in
connection with the allegedly improper inflation of Edison's total revenues by including certain expenses,
including teacher salaries, that were paid directly by local school districts. In particular, the plaintiffs
allege that the officers and directors named as defendants violated their fiduciary duties to Edison by
failing to implement and maintain an adequate internal accounting control system, causing Edison to
conceal from the public its true financial condition, and using material non-public information to sell
shares of Edison common stock and thereby reap millions of dollars in illegal insider trading gains.
These lawsuits seek compensatory damages in the amount of the profits that the individual defendants
allegedly made, as well as a constructive trust over such profits. The Company has negotiated a
stipulation in the first two derivative actions which allows (1) plaintiffs until November 22, 2002 to file a
consolidated amended complaint and (2) defendants until January 22, 2003 to file a responsive pleading
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to plaintiffs' consolidated complaint. The Company is in the process of attempting to negotiate a
comparable stipulation in the third derivative action. The Company believes that Edison's officers and
directors also have strong defenses to these lawsuits. See "Additional Risk Factors That May Affect
Future Results—We have been named in several shareholder class action and shareholder derivative
lawsuits."

We are also involved in various legal proceedings from time to time incidental to the conduct of
our business. For example, we are currently involved in lawsuits filed in Dallas, Texas, Baltimore,
Maryland, Peoria, Illinois and Las Vegas, Nevada questioning the authority of these school districts to
enter into management agreements with us. In addition, the school district of York, Pennsylvania has
appealed the decision of the state charter-granting authority to grant a charter to one of our clients. We
currently believe that any ultimate liability arising out of such proceedings will not have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of our stockholders during the fourth quarter of 2002.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS OF THE REGISTRANT

Our executive officers and directors, and their ages as of September 20, 2002, are as follows:

Name Age Position

H. Christopher Whittle.................. 55 Chief Executive Officer and Director

Benno C. Schmidt, Jr. ................... 60 Chairman of the Board of Directors

Christopher D. Cerf....................... 47 President, Chief Operating Officer and Director
Charles J. Delaney...........ccoceneeee. 42 Vice Chairman and Director

Christopher J. Scarlata .................. 33 Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President
John E. Chubb, Ph.D.................... 48 Chief Education Officer and Executive Vice President
Reverend Floyd H. Flake............... 57 Director

Joan Ganz Cooney...........cecueneee. 72 Director

Timothy P. Shriver..........cc.cco.e..... 43 Director

Set forth below is certain information regarding the professional experience for each of the
above-named persons.

H. Christopher Whittle, Edison's founder, has served as Chief Executive Officer since July 1998.
He served as President from March 1997 through July 2002. He has served as a director since 1992 and
also served as our Chairman of the Board of Directors from 1992 until March 1995. He is the President
and sole stockholder of WSI Inc., a corporation wholly owned by Mr. Whittle with the current primary
purpose of holding Mr. Whittle's personal investments. From 1986 to 1994, Mr. Whittle was Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of Whittle Communications L.P., which developed magazines and other print
publications as well as Channel One, an advertising-supported daily news and information television
program for schools. Before that, Mr. Whittle was the founder of 13-30 Corporation, the predecessor of
Whittle Communications L.P., and served as the publisher of Esquire magazine from 1979 to 1986.

Benno C. Schmidt, Jr. has served as Chairman of the Board of Directors since March 1997. He
also served as our Chief Executive Officer from 1992 to June 1998, our President from 1992 to February
1997 and our Chief Education Officer from July 1998 through April 1999. Mr. Schmidt served as
President of Yale University from 1986 to 1992. He also served as Dean of the Columbia University
School of Law from 1984 to 1986.

Christopher D. Cerf has served as President since July 2002 and as Chief Operating Officer since
May 1999. He has also served as a director since November 2000. He also served as our General
Counsel from June 1997 to April 2000. Prior to joining us, he was a partner in the law firm of Wiley,
Rein and Fielding from May 1996 to May 1997. Between 1994 and May 1996, he served in the White
House as Associate Counsel to the President. Mr. Cerf is also a former high school history teacher.

Charles J. Delaney has served as our Vice Chairman since July 2002 and as a director since July
1999. Prior to joining Edison, Mr. Delaney was the President of UBS Capital Americas, which is the
manager for two private equity funds that make investments in the U.S. and Latin America, from January
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2000 through June 2002. Mr. Delaney served as President of UBS Capital or its predecessor companies
from May 1989 to June 2002. UBS Capital Americas and UBS Capital LLC are affiliated with UBS AG.

Christopher Scarlata has served as Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice President since
August 1, 2002. From April 2001 through July 2002 he was our Controller. Prior to joining us, he served
as Controller for Walker Digital LLC from March 2000 through December 2000 and as assistant
controller for Mitchell Madison Group LLC from 1996 through February 2000. Before that, Mr. Scarlata
was an auditor for PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

John E. Chubb has served as Chief Education Officer and Executive Vice President since May
1999. Prior to that, he served as Executive Vice President of Curriculum, Instruction and Assessment
from 1992 to April 1999.

Reverend Floyd H. Flake has served as a director since November 2000. He served as President
of Edison Charter Schools from May 2000 until September 2002, and currently serves the Company as a
consultant. Reverend Flake has served as the president of Wilberforce University since July 2002. From
January 1986 to December 1997, Reverend Flake served as a member of the United States House of
Representatives, representing the 6th district of New York. He has also been the senior pastor of the
Allen African Methodist Episcopal Church in Jamaica, Queens since 1976. Reverend Flake currently
serves on the Board of Directors of the Fannie Mae Foundation, The Princeton Review, The New York
City Investment Fund Civic Capital Corporation, The Initiative for a Competitive Inner City, and the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Advisory Committee on Banking Policy. Reverend Flake is also a
Senior Fellow at the Manhattan Institute for Social and Economic Policy, an Adjunct Fellow on the
Advisory Board of the Brookings Institute Center on Urban and Metropolitan Policy and a member of the
NYC 2012 Olympic Committee.

Joan Ganz Cooney has served as a director since November 2000. Ms. Cooney is the Chairman,
Executive Committee, of the Sesame Workshop, formerly the Children's Television Workshop. Ms.
Cooney co-founded the Children's Television Workshop as its Executive Director in 1968 and was named
its President-Chief Executive Officer in 1970 and Chairman-Chief Executive Officer in 1988. She
assumed her present responsibilities in 1990. Ms. Cooney is on the Boards of Directors of the Museum of
Television and Radio and The New York and Presbyterian Hospitals, Inc. She is a Life Trustee of the
National Child Labor Committee and of WNET, Channel 13.

Timothy P. Shriver has served as a director since September 2001. He has served as President
and Chief Executive Officer of Special Olympics, Inc. since July 1996. Mr. Shriver serves on the Board
of Trustees for Phoenix Home Life Mutual Insurance Company and is on the Boards of Directors for the
Education Compact for Learning and Citizenship. In 1994, Shriver helped launch and currently chairs the
Collaborative for Academic, Social & Emotional Learning (CASEL), a national organization promoting
effective school-based prevention programming.
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PART 11
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
Our class A common stock began trading on the Nasdaq National Market on November 11, 1999,

under the symbol "EDSN." The following table sets forth for the indicated periods the high and low sale
prices of our class A common stock as reported by the Nasdaq National Market.

Period High Low
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001:
First QUarter.........ccoeeveeeveeveeeeeieeieere e $34.25 $21.25
Second QUATter........cc.eoveeveeveeceeerieieeieere e $32.81 $23.00
Third QuUarter..........ccoeveeveeveeceeerieieereeeeere e $38.75 $19.50
Fourth Quarter..........cooeeveveeveeveeeeeeeeeeeeveenee, $28.00 $15.90
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002:
First QUarter.......c.oooovveveeeveereeeeeeeeeeeeeve e, $23.10 $11.95
Second QUAItEr.........c.ceveeveveeereeeneeeeeeveeneee $20.51 $10.76
Third QuUarter..........ccoeveeveeeeeeereeieereeeeere e $21.68 $10.28
Fourth Quarter..........ccooveveeveeveeeeeceeeereeveenee, $13.79 $0.72

There is no established trading market for our class B common stock. Class B common stock
may be converted into class A common stock at any time on a one-for-one basis. Each share of class B
common stock will automatically convert into one share of class A common stock upon its transfer in
most circumstances or upon the occurrence of other specified events.

As of September 25, 2002, we had approximately 178 holders of record of class A common stock
and 36 holders of record of class B common stock. Because many of these shares are held by brokers and
other institutions on behalf of stockholders, we are unable to estimate the total number of stockholders
represented by these holders of record.

We have never paid or declared any cash dividends on our common stock or other securities and
do not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain all future
earnings, if any, for use in the operation of our business.

On July 3, 2001 and September 4, 2001, we issued an aggregate of 1,360,954 shares of our class
A common stock to the stockholders of LearnNow, Inc. in connection with our acquisition of LearnNow.
The class A common stock issued in this transaction was issued in reliance on the exemption from
registration set forth under Rule 506 of the Securities Act. No underwriters were involved in this issuance
of securities.

On July 31, 2002 we issued warrants for the purchase of up to 10,710,973 shares of our class A
common stock in connection with the establishment of a revolving credit agreement with Merrill Lynch
Mortgage Capital Inc. and a Credit and Security Agreement with School Services LLC. The warrants
have an exercise price of $1.00 per share and are exercisable at any time following their issuance and
prior to July 31, 2007. The warrants issued in these transactions were issued in reliance on the exemption
from registration set forth under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act. No underwriters were involved in this
issuance of securities. See "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources."
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with our consolidated
financial statements and the related notes and with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations" included in this Annual Report. The statement of operations data
for the years ended June 30, 2000, 2001 and 2002, and the balance sheet data as of June 30, 2001 and
2002, are derived from, and are qualified by reference to, audited financial statements included in this
Annual Report. The statement of operations data for the years ended June 30, 1998 and 1999 and the
balance sheet data as of June 30, 1998, 1999 and 2000 are derived from our audited consolidated financial
statements that are not included in this Annual Report. Please see Note 2 of the notes to our consolidated
financial statements for (i) information on direct site expenses which are paid by our clients on our behalf
and (ii) information concerning the calculation of basic and diluted net loss per share. Please see
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—"Overview"
and "Results of Operations" for information concerning the calculation of EBITDA, net of other charges,

gross site contribution and gross site margin.

Fiscal Years Ended June 30,

1998

1999

2000
(Restated*)

2001
(Restated*)

2002

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share and Student Data)

Statement of Operations Data:

Gross Student Funding ........c.cocceeeveennccninnenene. $§ 69,407 $132,762 § 224578 $§ 375818 § 520,295
Net REVENUE......ccvveueeiieiiririeicceccreeceneieaene $§ 65630 $ 125085 $ 208971 $§ 350,508 § 465,058
Education and operating expenses:
Direct site expenses:
Company paid........coeceveererercreennecneenenes 27,420 49,905 93,087 162,028 211,438
Client paid .....cccceveveeeneenneneeneceneceene 28,379 56,515 83,909 129,172 178,702
Administration, curriculum and
development .........cccoveeneeeenerineeniniecneene 18,258 49,984 54,232 57,851 71,230
Impairment charges............cccoeeeerecnnrccnnenene. -- -- -- -- 36,878
Depreciation and amortization ........................ 7,232 12,526 20,906 33,595 37,396
Pre-opening exXpenses .........coccoeceeerrervenencenenn. 2,486 5,457 8,372 8,641 6,153
Design team compensation.............c.coceveveennee 2,724 -- -- -- --
Total education and operating expenses...... 86,499 174,387 260,506 391,287 541,797
Loss from operations ...........ceccecevveeeeriecieresrenennnns (20,869) (49,302) (51,535) (40,779) (76,739)
Other income (€Xpense), Net.........cocoeerveveeernenene. (1,046) (131) 905 2,870 (8,261)
Loss before provision for taxes..........ccoccevruennene. (21,915) (49,433) (50,630) (37,909) (85,000)
Provision for state and local taxes....................... -- -- -- (603) (1,040)
NEELOSS.cuvveuerieieirieerieeecee s (21,915) (49,433) (50,630) (38,512) (86,040)
Dividends on preferred stock .........ccccevvevrienennn. (4,290) -- -- -- --
Preferred stock accretion ............coceecevevvccneenencne (278) (1,027) -- -- --
Net loss attributable to common stockholders.... $ (26,483) $ (50,460) $ (50,630) $ (38,512) $ (86,040)
Basic and diluted net loss per share attributable
to common stockholders............cccocvverieireninnene $ (@®52) § (1624) § (1.83) $ (0.80) $ (1.61)
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding used in computing basic and
diluted net loss per share attributable to
common stockholders ...........ccccceevevieeeciennennane. 3,107,356 3,107,356 27,685,203 47,966,741 53,564,244
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Fiscal Years Ended June 30,

1998 1999

2000
(Restated*)

2001

(Restated*)

2002

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share and Student Data)

Student and Per Student Data:

Student enrollment (1)........ccocceevvevieeievienrieienae 12,600 23,900 37,500 57,000 74,000
Total revenue per student ...........ccceceveerrreennne. $ 5209 §$ 5234 § 5573  $ 6,149 $ 6,285
Net loss per student........ccoovevvieeiriecenieeieieeenens $ (1,739) $ (2,068 $ (1,350) $ 676) $ (1,163)
EBITDA, net of other charges, per student ........ $ (820) $ (603) $ (501) $ 98) $ (712)
Cash used in operating activities per student...... $ ®37) $ 673) $ (1,105 § (469) $ (320)
Cash used in investing activities per student...... $ (1,594 $§ (1,269 $ (2,376) $ (1,358) $ (650)
Cash provided by financing activities per

SEUACTIE 1o $ 1,776 $ 2,797 $  (4140) $ 2,591 $ 219
Other Operating Data:
Capital expenditures ..........ccceeveveriereireeerierereenenns $ 21,181 $ 34,023 $§ 75899 § 68348 $§ 33,163
Gross site contribution...........coceeveeveveveiieeenenns $ 9831 § 18665 $§ 31975 $ 59308 § 74,918
GrOSS SIt€ MAIZIN ....euveveiierierieieieiecreeeeeeeeenenes 15.0% 14.9% 15.3% 16.9% 16.1%
EBITDA, net of other charges............ccoceevenrnnene. $ (10,328) $ (14,404) $ (18,797) $  (5,567) $ (52,680)
Cash used in operating activities............coevevenneve. $ (10,550) $ (17,624) $ (41,429) $ (26,710) $ (23,706)
Cash used in investing activities ...........c.ccceevnnnene $ (20,082) $ (28,783) $ (89,115) $ (77,410) $ (48,064)
Cash provided by financing activities................. $ 22383 $ 66,838 $ 155266 $ 147,670 $ 16,223
Total number of SChoOlS .........cceveieiririeeenen 25 51 79 113 133

As of June 30,
2000 2001
1998 1999 (Restated) (Restated) 2002
(dollars in thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents.............cccoeveeeirrennnnne. $ 7,492 $ 27,923 $ 52,644 $ 96,195 $ 40,648
Working capital.........ccccceeverieirerenieieeeeseenns (2,316) 18,554 57,351 111,731 12,328
TOtal @SSELS...veeveririeeieiere ettt 58,294 106,870 245,010 394,498 381,376
Total debt, including current portion.................. 17,151 21,535 36,280 45,524 68,775
Total stockholders' equity..........cccecvrvrerenieeenene. 24,190 58,962 172,813 298,367 232,384

(1) Does not include students enrolled in our summer school program.

*  The selected financial data has been restated for fiscal 2000 and 2001 to reflect the adjustments more fully

described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations

The following discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations of
Edison should be read in conjunction with "Item 6. Selected Financial Data" and our financial statements
and the related notes included in this Annual Report. Information presented herein has been restated for
fiscal 2000 and 2001 to reflect the adjustments more fully described in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements. This discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements that involve risks
and uncertainties. Our actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-
looking statements as a result of certain factors that include, but are not limited to, those set forth under

"—Additional Risk Factors That May Affect Future Results."

30



Overview

We are the nation's largest private operator of public schools serving students from kindergarten
through 12th grade. We contract with local school districts and public charter school boards to assume
educational and operational responsibility for individual schools in return for per-pupil funding that is
generally comparable to that spent on other public schools in the area. We opened our first four schools
in August 1995 and have grown rapidly in every subsequent year. We served approximately 74,000
students in 133 schools located in 22 states across the country and the District of Columbia in the 2001-
2002 school year. Additionally, we served approximately 35,000 students in our summer school program
during the summer of 2002. For the 2002-2003 school year, we expect enrollment of approximately
80,000 students in 150 schools located in 23 states and the District of Columbia. Our net revenue in fiscal
2002 was $465.0 million.

From our formation in 1992 until opening our first schools in fiscal 1996, we were a development
stage company focused on research, development and marketing of the Edison school design and
curriculum and raising capital to support our business plan. From 1992 until 1995, Edison's team of
leading educators and scholars developed an innovative, research-backed curriculum and school design.
We operated as a partnership prior to November 1996, when we converted to a corporation. As of June
30, 2002, our accumulated deficit since November 1996 was approximately $256.6 million. In addition,
prior to November 1996, we incurred losses of approximately $61.8 million, which are reflected in our
additional paid-in capital.

Edison's curriculum expenses include the ongoing costs to maintain and support Edison's
educational design. These expenses include the salaries and wages of trained educators in our central
office curriculum department, the costs of providing professional training to our staff and teachers,
including materials, and the ongoing costs of maintaining and updating the teaching methods and
educational content of our program.

We make a significant investment in each school we open. The investment generally includes:

e Initial staff training and professional development;
e Technology, including laptop computers for teachers;
e Books and other materials to support the Edison curriculum and school design; and
e Upgrades in facilities.
Gross Student Funding

Gross student funding represents the gross contractual funding for our schools before all

expenses. The difference between gross student funding and net revenues consists of costs that Edison is

not primarily obligated to pay.

Gross student funding is not equivalent to revenue as defined by generally accepted accounting
principles.

Net Revenue
Revenues are principally earned from contractual agreements to manage and operate contract and

charter schools. The Company also earns revenue from summer school and after-school program fees.
The Company recognizes revenue for each managed school pro rata over the eleven months from August
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through June, typically the period over which we perform our services, in accordance with Staff
Accounting Bulletin 101, "Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements."

Most of our management agreements provide that we earn a fee based upon the number of
children that attend our schools and, therefore, we only earn revenue to the extent students attend our
schools. In most instances, there is a 'base' fee per pupil and several 'categorical' fee components paid
only for students in certain categories (e.g., low-income, English as a second language, etc.). In some of
our charter schools, our fee has a fixed component and variable component. Even in contracts where we
have a fixed fee component, we have generally agreed to forego or reduce our fee if there is a budget
shortfall at the charter school.

The Company is generally responsible to its clients for all aspects of the management of its
schools including but not limited to the academic achievement of the students; selection, training and
compensation of school personnel; procurement of curriculum and equipment necessary for operations of
the school; and the safe operation of the school facilities. Gross student funding represents gross
contractual funding for our schools before all costs. Net revenue represents gross student funding less
costs that we are not primarily obligated to pay. The Company follows the guidance of EITF 99-19,
"Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent," and EITF 01-14, "Income Statement
Characterization of Reimbursements Received for 'Out-of-Pocket' Expenses Incurred" regarding
classification of revenues. Specifically, the Company recognizes revenues net of expenses that the
Company is not primarily obligated to pay.

The Company recognizes per-pupil funding from local, state and federal sources, including Title I
and special education funding. Significant management estimates and assumptions are required to
determine these funding levels, particularly in interim periods. On a quarterly basis, the Company records
adjustments to revenue, if necessary, for enrollment fluctuations, changes to per-pupil funding estimates,
and changes to estimates for federal and state categorical grant funding. Anticipated losses on contracts
are charged to earnings when identified.

In January 2002, the Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") issued EITF 01-14 "Income Statement
Characterization of Reimbursements Received for 'Out-of-Pocket' Expenses Incurred." EITF 01-14
clarifies EITF 99-19, "Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent," which provides
guidance on whether revenues should be presented gross or net of certain costs. After consultation with
its independent auditors, the Company believes that EITF 01-14 should be interpreted to require it to
present as revenue and expense only those direct site expenses that the Company is primarily obligated to
pay. In accordance with the transition provisions of EITF 01-14, the Company adopted EITF 01-14
effective January 1, 2002 and has reclassified all historical periods to conform with the new presentation
and, in the interest of transparency, added a "gross student funding" line to its statements of operations.
Gross student funding is not equivalent to revenue as defined by GAAP.

In November 2001, the EITF issued EITF 01-09, "Accounting for Consideration Given by a
Vendor to a Customer." EITF 01-09 addresses the appropriate income statement characterization of
consideration given by a vendor to a customer, specifically whether that consideration should be
presented in the vendor's income statements as a reduction of revenue or as an expense. In consultation
with its independent auditors the Company determined that consideration given to two customers was, in
effect, an adjustment of the Company's contract price and should be accounted for as a reduction in
revenue rather than as an expense subsequent to the promulgation of EITF 01-09. In accordance with the
transition provisions of EITF 01-09, the Company adopted EITF 01-09 effective January 1, 2002 and has
reclassified all historical periods to conform with the new presentation.
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Direct Site Expenses

Direct site expenses include most of the expenses incurred on-site at our schools. The largest
component of this expense is salaries and wages, primarily for principals and teachers, which are often
paid for by our clients on our behalf, in which case they are disclosed as "direct site expense—client
paid." The remaining direct site expenses include on-site administration, facility maintenance, utilities
and, in some cases, student transportation. Once staffing levels for the school year are determined, most
of these expenses are fixed, and accordingly, variations in enrollment will generally not change the
overall cost structure of a school for that year. Direct site expenses do not include teacher training and
other pre-opening expenses associated with new schools, financing costs or depreciation and amortization
related to technology, including computers for teachers and students, curriculum materials and capital
improvements to school buildings.

Gross Site Contribution and Gross Site Margin

We define gross site contribution as net revenue less direct site expenses. Gross site margin is
gross site contribution expressed as a percentage of net revenue. Prior to our adoption of EITF 99-19,
EITF 01-14 and EITF 01-09, we calculated gross site margin as gross site contribution expressed as a
percentage of what is now defined as gross student funding. Although gross site contribution is the same
dollar amount in each calculation, under the new treatment the gross site margin percentage is higher as a
result of using net revenues. Gross site contribution is a measurement of ongoing site-level operating
performance of our schools. We believe it serves as a useful operating measurement when evaluating our
schools' financial performance. Gross site margins vary considerably from school to school and
sometimes year-to-year for the same school. Gross site contribution does not reflect all site-related costs,
including depreciation and amortization or interest expense and principal repayment related to site-level
investments, or on-site pre-opening expenses, and accordingly gross site contribution does not represent
site-level profitability.

Administration, Curriculum and Development Expenses

Support from our central office is important for the successful delivery of our curriculum and
school design. Administration, curriculum and development expenses include those amounts related to
the creation and enhancement of our curriculum, and our general, administrative and sales and marketing
functions. These costs include costs for curriculum, assessment and training professionals, sales and
marketing personnel, financial reporting, legal, technological support, travel expenses and other
development activities.

Pre-Opening Expenses

Pre-opening expenses consist principally of various administrative and personnel costs incurred
prior to the opening of a new school or the expansion of an existing school, particularly the costs for the
initial training and orientation of professional staff, recruitment and travel expenses and expenses for
temporary offices and staff. In connection with the establishment of a new school, we seek to hire the
school's principal several months in advance of the school's opening. This allows the principal to hire
staff, most of whom receive substantial professional training in the Edison education design prior to the
first day of school. Pre-opening expenses generally are first incurred in the fourth quarter of the fiscal
year prior to the school's opening or expansion and generally continue into the first or second quarter of
the fiscal year in which the school opens. These costs are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization relates primarily to the investments we make in each school for
books and other educational materials, including enrollment fees for the Success for All program,
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computers and other technology, and facility improvements. These investments support the Edison
curriculum and school design and relate directly to our provision of educational services. The
depreciation and amortization of investments in our central office is also included.

Enrollment

Our annual budgeting process establishes site-specific revenue and expense objectives, which
include assumptions about enrollment and anticipated per-student funding. While our budgets include
desired enrollment levels, we do not attempt to maximize enrollment based upon the physical capacity of
our facilities. Our budgets are designed to achieve both financial and academic goals, both of which we
believe are critical to the success of our business. Therefore, our budgets are designed to achieve the
proper balance between financial performance and academic standards.

We implement various strategies to achieve optimal enrollment, including local recruiting, media
advertising, and coordinating with our school district partners and community groups. Since some site
costs are partially fixed, incremental enrollment can positively affect profitability. Further, due to the
closely correlated relationship of site revenue and expenses, school personnel closely manage expenses
based upon actual enrollment. Over the last three years our schools have operated at 96.0% or higher of
the enrollment levels assumed in our budget. As discussed below under "—Financial Performance," we
do not believe that achieving 100% of assumed enrollment at each school is necessary to achieve positive
cash flow.

Reengineering

On August 21, 2002, the Company announced several initiatives emerging from a company-wide
"reengineering" effort. The initiatives are intended to redesign Edison's infrastructure to improve service
delivery to its schools; increase student achievement and customer satisfaction; and accelerate Edison's
path to profitability. Among other changes, the Company announced significant improvements in its
headquarters operations including an enhanced customer service function; strengthening of its financial
reporting and facilities financing unit; a ramp up of its communications function; a more efficient
organization of its general financial function, and an alignment of its internal functions with a
consolidated and streamlined regional structure. The Company anticipates $6.0 million of charges
associated with one-time costs related to the reengineering.

Financial Performance

We have incurred substantial net losses in every fiscal period since we began operations. For the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, our net loss was $86.0 million. As of June 30, 2002, our accumulated
deficit since November 1996, when we converted from a partnership to a corporation, was approximately
$256.6 million. In addition, prior to November 1996, we incurred losses of approximately $61.8 million,
which are reflected in our additional paid-in capital.

The following table sets forth various financial data expressed as a percentage of net revenue for
the periods indicated:
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2000 2001 2002
INEL TEVEIUE ....c.cuiiiiiiirietcteteiteteete ettt ettt sbe e saene 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Education and operating expenses:
Direct site expenses:
Company Paid........cceceereriererierieeeeieee e 44.5 46.2 45.5
CHENt PAIA....c.eoeeirieiriiee e 40.1 36.8 384
Administration, curriculum and development expenses.......... 26.0 16.5 15.3
Impairment Charges..........ccocveeeririerenieeeeeeee e — — 8.0
Depreciation and amortization ...........cocceeverenenenenenenennennes 10.0 9.6 8.0
Pre-0pening eXpenses .......cccvveevereeiereeienieeeeneeseeeeseeeeesee s 4.0 2.5 1.3
Total education and operating eXpenses ..........ceceevvereereereenne 124.6 111.6 116.5
L oSS from Operations...........ceeverueeiereeienieeieseeeeesee et (24.6) (11.6) (16.5)
Other incOmMe (EXPENSE), NEL .....eervrreeeeirierieieeieeeieie et 0.4 0.8 (1.8)
Loss from operations before provision for taxes..........c.cceecveneene (24.2) (10.8) (18.3)
Provision for state and local taxes ........cccccveevveeciienieecieeeieeenne, — (0.2) (0.2)
INEELOSS -ttt (24.2)% (11.0)% (18.5)%

In order to achieve profitability, we believe it will be necessary to improve gross site margin
while maintaining educational quality and continuing to reduce central expenses as a percentage of net
revenue. The latter improvement is largely dependent on our ability to increase our net revenue through
expanded student enrollment while controlling central costs.

In general, we believe that reaching positive cash flow, like achieving profitability, will be
dependent on increasing our aggregate gross site contribution without a proportionate increase in central
expenses. Because gross site contribution is the difference between site revenues and site expenditures,
positive gross site contribution can be achieved at a range of enrollment levels. While higher enrollment
tends to have a positive effect on gross site contribution, our financial success does not depend on 100%
enrollment at each site.

Management Agreements: Renewals and Terminations

Our management agreements generally have a term of five years. When we expand by adding an
additional school under an existing management agreement, the term with respect to that school generally
expires at the end of the initial five-year period. We cannot be assured that a management agreement will
be renewed at the end of its term. Two management agreements covering five schools expired at the end
of the 2001-2002 school year and were not renewed. Additionally, two management agreements
representing three schools expired at the end of the 2001-2002 school year and have not been renewed,
although we are continuing to manage those schools while discussing renewal of those agreements. With
respect to one of these agreements, covering one school, the state has directed the school to bid out the
renewal of the agreement to multiple companies.

In addition, termination of a management agreement may occur prior to its expiration date for a
variety of reasons. Six management agreements covering 37 of the schools we are operating for the 2002-
2003 school year are terminable by the school district or charter board at will, with or without good
reason. Moreover, all of our management agreements may be terminated for cause, including in some
cases a failure to meet specified educational standards, such as academic performance based on
standardized test scores. In addition, as a result of payment disputes or changes within a school district,
such as changes in the political climate, from time to time we face pressure to permit a school district or
charter board to terminate our management agreement even if they do not have a legal right to do so. We
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may also seek the early termination of, or not seek to renew, a limited number of management agreements
in any year. Six management agreements covering 13 schools, three due to expire at the end of the 2002-
2003 school year, one at the end of the 2003-2004 school year, one at the end of the 2004-2005 school
year, and one at the end of the 2005-2006 school year were terminated at the end of the 2001-2002 school
year. In addition, under a management agreement expiring at the end of the 2004-2005 school year, the
number of schools managed was reduced from four to two during the 2001-2002 school year. It is likely
that each year some management agreements will expire unrenewed or be terminated prior to expiration.

Management agreements representing 22 schools, accounting for 12.8% of gross student funding
for fiscal 2002, will expire at the end of the 2002-2003 school year, and agreements representing 22
schools, accounting for 13.3% of gross student funding for fiscal 2002, will expire at the end of the 2003-
2004 school year. With regard to one of these agreements covering two schools, we have been informed
that the board will not renew the agreement when it expires in June 2003. Additionally, we have received
formal notice that a management agreement covering seven schools and due to expire at the end of the
2004-2005 school year will be terminated at the end of the 2002-2003 school year.

See "Additional Risk Factors That May Affect Future Results—Our management agreements
with school districts and charter boards are terminable under specified circumstances and generally expire
after a term of five years."

Contract Schools Compared to Charter Schools

We operate two types of schools: contract and charter. Contract schools are public schools we
operate under a management agreement with local school boards. Charter schools are schools we operate
under a management agreement with a charter holder, which is typically a community group or non-profit
entity that has been granted a state-authorized charter to create a public school. The cost of operating a
contract school and a charter school is similar, except that, in the case of a charter school, we are typically
required to arrange for a facility. In some cases, we operate charter schools under a charter granted by the
local school board, which provides the facility. In these cases, we categorize these schools as contract
schools because we do not provide the facilities and therefore the economics of these arrangements
closely resemble those of a contract school. Charter school facilities that are not provided by a local
school board are financed in a variety of ways, including bank debt, municipal bonds, sale/leaseback
arrangements, third-party ownership by real estate investment trusts and philanthropy. At times, we
advance funds or guarantee loans to our charter board clients to assist them in arranging for facilities. As
of June 30, 2002, we had approximately $80.9 million in loans and advances outstanding net of
allowances and guaranteed loans of $20.9 million to our charter board clients. Our facility investment for
a charter school will generally exceed our investment in facilities for a contract school. Because of these
higher costs, we generally seek to establish charter schools in areas with higher per-pupil revenue.

Stock-Based and Other Non-Cash Compensation Expenses

Beginning in 1995, we granted a number of stock options with four- and five-year terms. In the
fourth quarter of fiscal 1999, we decided to extend the term of these options to ten years and to make
other changes in their terms that we believe are customary for options granted by public companies. As a
result, we were required to record compensation expense at that time representing the difference between
the exercise price of the options and the deemed fair market value of the shares underlying the stock
options. In this regard, we recognized an expense of $17.4 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 1999.
This is in addition to $5.0 million of stock-based compensation expenses recorded in fiscal 1999 in
connection with stock options that were subject to variable accounting treatment. We have recognized,
and expect to continue to recognize, expenses related to the option amendments over the vesting periods
of the individual stock options. These additional expenses were approximately $1.4 million for fiscal
2001 and $1.0 million for fiscal 2002, and are expected to be $600,000 for fiscal 2003 and $200,000 for
fiscal 2004.
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To the extent we discretionarily accelerate stock options or otherwise modify the terms of stock
options in the future, we could incur additional non-cash charges. We may also, from time to time, grant
options below fair market value which could result in further charges at the time of grant.

In November 1999, our CEO exercised options to purchase 725,000 shares of common stock at
$3.00 per share through the issuance of a promissory note for $2,175,000. In addition, we loaned
$4,445,700 in November 1999 and $1,248,500 in April 2000 to our CEO to pay estimated income taxes
resulting from the transaction. These notes mature five years from their date of issuance. In the past, we
have accounted for the transaction as an option exercise and carried the loans as notes receivable on our
balance sheets and recognized periodic interest income. The notes were issued with recourse solely to the
shares exercised and contain a floating rate of interest. Therefore, we have determined that it is more
appropriate to treat the options as not having been exercised and account for them as a variable stock
award pursuant to the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 95-16, "Accounting for Stock
Compensation Arrangements with Employer Loan Features under APB Opinion 25." Accordingly, the
Company has restated its fiscal 2000 and 2001 financial statements to reflect compensation in the form of
a charge or credit to operations and an offsetting adjustment to additional paid-in capital for periodic
changes in the market value of the 725,000 common shares subject to exercise, until such notes are paid.
In addition, the loans related to estimated income taxes have been restated to be expensed when originally
issued. Interest income previously recognized under the notes has been reversed. Interest received under
the notes will be credited to additional paid-in capital.

In connection with the restatement, the Company recognized, in fiscal 2000, a compensation
charge of approximately $13.6 million and a reduction in interest income of $450,829. In fiscal 2001, the
market value of the Company's common stock decreased from $23.19 per share at the beginning of year
to $22.84 per share at June 30, 2001. As a result, the Company recognized a compensation credit of
$253,750 and a reduction in interest income previously provided of $684,834. In fiscal 2002, the market
price of the Company's common stock declined from $22.84 per share at the beginning of the year to a
value below the exercise price of $3.00 per share by year end. Accordingly, the remaining amount of
compensation expense recognized in prior years, including a portion related to fiscal 1999, of
$14,384,000 was reversed and no interest income was recognized for the year.

Loans to Executives

Benno C. Schmidt, Jr. borrowed $1.6 million from the Company on June 5, 1992 and $200,000
from the Company on January 23, 1996, as evidenced by promissory notes. The loans were recourse and
were collateralized by a life insurance policy on Mr. Schmidt. The amounts due from Mr. Schmidt under
these loans could be offset by the Company against the amount owed by the Company to Mr. Schmidt
under his severance agreement. In October 1999, the promissory notes were amended to change the
interest rate to the prime rate in effect from time to time and to extend the date for payment of all
principal and accrued interest until the earlier of February 15, 2002 or the termination of Mr. Schmidt's
employment with the Company. Prior to this amendment, the notes bore interest at an annual compound
rate of 5.83%, and all principal and accrued interest payable under the notes were due on the earlier of
February 15, 2000 or the termination of Mr. Schmidt's employment with the Company. In February
2002, the term of the loans was extended to June 15, 2002. In June 2002, the term of the loans was
extended to August 31, 2002. The loans have not been repaid. The Company has given notice to Mr.
Schmidt that the loans are now due, and with his cooperation is working to expedite collection of the
outstanding balance of principal and interest under the loans, which totaled $1.8 million and $1.3 million,
respectively, as of September 30, 2002. Mr. Schmidt is the Company's Chairman of the Board of
Directors.

H. Christopher Whittle borrowed $6.6 million from the Company on November 15, 1999 and
$1.2 million from the Company on April 13, 2000. The loans represented the total amount required for
Mr. Whittle to purchase the shares upon exercise of his March 1997 option to purchase 270,000 shares of

37



class A common stock and 30,000 shares of class B common stock at $3.00 per share and his December
1997 option to purchase 382,500 shares of class A common stock and 42,500 shares of Class B Common
Stock at $3.00 per share and to pay related income tax obligations. The Company also agreed to loan Mr.
Whittle any additional amount necessary to pay any additional taxes or tax penalties incurred by him in
connection with his purchase of the shares. The loans are collateralized only by the shares and bear
interest at the greater of the prime rate or the Company's actual borrowing rate, if any, from time to time,
with payment of the principal amount and accrued interest on the November 1999 loan due in full in
November 2004 and payment of the principal amount and accrued interest on the April 2000 loan due in
full in April 2005. The balance of principal and interest outstanding under these loans was $7.9 million
and $1.8 million, respectively, as of September 30, 2002. Mr. Whittle is the Company's Chief Executive
Officer and one of the Company's directors. Proceeds from collection of these notes will be credited to
additional paid-in capital (See Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements).

Tonya G. Hinch borrowed $100,000 from the Company on July 5, 2000 as evidenced by a letter
agreement. The loan does not bear interest and is due on June 30, 2003. The loan is recourse only to the
net proceeds to Ms. Hinch from the sale of shares of the Company's class A common stock and class B
common stock acquired by Ms. Hinch through the exercise of employee stock options. Ms. Hinch served
as Executive Vice President of our School Support Division until June 10, 2002.

Adam Feild borrowed $100,000 from the Company on December 6, 1999 as evidenced by a
promissory note. The note is unsecured and bears interest at an annual rate of 8.5%. The note is due on
December 31, 2005. The balance of principal and accrued interest under this loan was $100,000 and
$25,925, respectively, as of September 30, 2002. The loan is recourse only to the net proceeds to Mr.
Feild from the sale of shares of the Company's class A common stock and class B common stock acquired
by Mr. Feild through the exercise of employee stock options. Mr. Feild served as the Company's Chief
Financial Officer and Executive Vice President until July 30, 2002.

Income Taxes

We have not recorded any provision for federal income taxes because we have incurred net losses
from our inception through June 30, 2002. As of June 30, 2002, we had approximately $289 million of
net operating loss carryforwards for federal income tax purposes. Approximately $45 million are
expected to expire between fiscal 2010 and 2018, and approximately $244 million are expected to expire
between fiscal 2019 and 2022. Given our limited operating history, losses incurred to date and the
difficulty in accurately forecasting our future results, we do not believe the realization of the related
deferred income tax assets meets the criteria required by generally accepted accounting principles and,
accordingly, we have recorded a full valuation allowance.

For fiscal 2002, we have recorded a provision for taxes that reflects state and local income taxes
arising from our operations of several sites.

Seasonality

Because new schools are opened in the first fiscal quarter of each year, trends in our business,
whether favorable or unfavorable, will tend not to be reflected in our quarterly financial results, but will
be evident primarily in year-to-year comparisons. The first quarter of our fiscal year has historically
reflected less revenue and lower expenses than the other three quarters, and we expect this pattern to
continue. We generally have lower gross site margin in the first fiscal quarter than in the remaining fiscal
quarters. We also recognize pre-opening costs primarily in the first and fourth quarters. Summer school
revenues and expenses are also recognized in the first and fourth fiscal quarters.

Our financial results can vary among the quarters within any fiscal year for other reasons, and our
quarterly revenue and results of operations could also fluctuate somewhat based on changes in school
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enrollment throughout the fiscal year. For more information on the seasonality of our financial results,
see "—Additional Risk Factors That May Affect Future Results—Our financial results are subject to
seasonal patterns and other fluctuations from quarter to quarter."

Results of Operations
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001

Net Revenue. Our net revenue increased to $465.1 million for fiscal 2002 from $350.5 million for
the prior year, an increase of 32.7%. The increase was primarily due to a 29.8% increase in student
enrollment from 57,000 in the 2000-2001 school year to 74,000 in the 2001-2002 school year, reflecting
both the opening of new schools and the expansion of existing schools. Additionally, revenue generated
from our summer school program increased net revenue by 2.2% in fiscal 2002.

Direct Site Expenses. Our direct site expenses increased to $390.1 million for fiscal 2002 from
$291.2 million for the prior year, an increase of 34.0%. The increase in direct site expenses was primarily
due to the 29.8% increase in student enrollment. The largest element of direct site expenses is personnel
costs. Personnel costs included in direct site expenses increased to $326.4 million for fiscal 2002 from
$243.7 million for the prior year. Of the total direct site expense, $178.7 million was client paid, up from
$129.2 million in the same period of the prior year. These client paid expenses consist entirely of
personnel costs at our schools.

Gross Site Margin and Contribution. Our gross site contribution was $74.9 million for fiscal
2002 compared to $59.3 million for the prior year. The corresponding gross site margin decreased to
16.1% for fiscal 2002 compared to 16.9% for fiscal 2001. The decrease in gross site margin was due to
direct site costs growing more rapidly than net revenue, primarily as a result of disappointing results for
one of our new clients in fiscal 2002.

Administration, Curriculum and Development Expenses. Our administration, curriculum and
development expenses increased to $71.2 million for fiscal 2002 from $57.9 million for fiscal 2001, an
increase of 23.0%. The increase was due, in part, to greater personnel costs resulting from an increase of
approximately 107 new headquarters employees, which reflects a substantial increase in staff in our
school operations and education divisions and an increase in our central office administrative staff to
enhance legal, contracting, and financial reporting functions. Other charges included within
administration, curriculum and development expenses that contributed to the increase on a net basis
include (1) approximately $7.5 million of costs related to an inquiry by the Securities and Exchange
Commission and our sales and marketing activities in Philadelphia, and (2) specific event related charges
comprised of $4.0 million of costs related to a write-down of a note as a result of a discontinued new
school project and a $5.5 million reserve of costs related to a reserve against notes to charter schools as a
result of the difficult credit environment affecting the Company's ability to arrange third party lender
financing coupled with the credit risk of specific charter school notes and management's intention to
accelerate the refinancing of individual notes to third party lenders. These costs were offset by $14.4
million of income from a non-cash stock compensation adjustment (see note 3 of the notes to the
consolidated financial statements).

Impairment Charges. Our impairment charges consist of one-time and specific event related
charges including $33.3 million related to the write-off of goodwill triggered by the reduction in the
Company's share price and a $3.6 million charge related to management's decision to discontinue our
corporate headquarters project.

Depreciation and Amortization. Our depreciation and amortization increased to $37.4 million for
fiscal 2002 from $33.6 million for fiscal 2001, an increase of 11.3%. The increased depreciation and
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amortization resulted from additional capital expenditures for our curriculum materials, computers and
related technology, and facility improvements related to our enrollment and central office growth.

Pre-Opening Expenses. Our pre-opening expenses decreased to $6.2 million for fiscal 2002 from
$8.6 million for fiscal 2001, a decrease of 27.9%. This decrease was associated primarily with opening
new schools for the 2001-2002 school year, with approximately 17,000 new students enrolled, of which
2,000 students were from existing LearnNow schools, compared to approximately 19,500 new students
enrolled in the prior school year.

Excluding non-cash stock-based compensation income of $13.3 million and expense of $1.6
million in fiscal 2002 and 2001, respectively, administration, curriculum and development and pre-
opening expenses as a percentage of net revenues increased to 19.5% for fiscal 2002 from 18.5% for the
prior year. Excluding the specific event related charges of $9.5 million related to our notes receivable (as
discussed in administration, curriculum and development expenses), administration, curriculum and
development, and pre-opening expenses as a percentage of net revenue decreased to 17.5% for fiscal 2002
from 18.5% for fiscal 2001.

Education and Operating Expenses. Our total education and operating expenses as a percentage
of net revenue increased to 116.5% for fiscal 2002 from 111.6% for fiscal 2001. Excluding one-time and
specific event related charges of $32.0 million, including $14.4 million of income from a non-cash stock
compensation adjustment; $4.0 million of costs related to a discontinued new school project; $5.5 million
of costs related to a reserve against loans to charter schools; $33.3 million of costs related to the write-off
of goodwill; and a $3.6 million cost related to the discontinued corporate headquarters project, education
and operating expenses as a percentage of net revenue decreased to 109.6% for fiscal 2002 from 111.6%
for fiscal 2001. This decrease primarily resulted from continued revenue growth and increased operating
leverage and a decrease in administration, curriculum and development expenses as a percentage of net
revenue.

EBITDA, Net of Other Charges. EBITDA, net of other charges, means the net loss we would
have shown if we did not take into consideration our interest expense, interest income, income tax
expense, depreciation and amortization, loss on investment, loss on disposal of fixed assets and stock-
based compensation charges. These costs are discussed above. This amount for fiscal 2002 was a
negative $52.7 million compared to a negative $5.6 million for fiscal 2001. Excluding the one-time and
specific event related charges of $46.4 (including $36.9 million of impairment charges discussed above,
$4.0 million write-down of notes and $5.5 million reserve against notes receivable), EBITDA, net of
other charges, for fiscal 2002 was a negative $6.3 million compared to a negative $5.6 million for fiscal
2001. The decline in EBITDA, net of other charges, resulted primarily from a decrease in gross site
margin offset by decreased administration, curriculum and development, and pre-opening expenses as a
percentage of revenues. On a per-student basis, EBITDA, net of other charges and excluding one-time
and specific event related charges, improved to negative $85 in fiscal 2002 compared to negative $98 for
the prior year.

Loss from Operations. Our loss from operations increased to $76.7 million for fiscal 2002 from
$40.8 million for fiscal 2001, an increase of 88.0%. Excluding one-time and specific event related
charges of $32.0 million as mentioned above our loss from operations increased to $44.7 million for fiscal
2002 from $40.8 million for fiscal 2001, an increase of 9.6%. The increase primarily resulted from higher
administration, curriculum, and development expenses as well as higher depreciation and amortization.

Other Income and Expense. Other income, net, was negative $8.3 million for fiscal 2002
compared to $2.9 million in fiscal 2001. The decline was primarily due to the $6.8 million reduction in
the carrying value of our investment in Apex Learning, Inc and a $3.6 million increase in loss on disposal
of fixed assets.
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Net Loss and Net Loss Attributable to Common Stockholders. Our net loss increased to $86.0
million for fiscal 2002 from $38.5 million for fiscal 2001, an increase of 123.4%. Excluding one-time
and specific event related charges of $32.0 million, our net loss increased to $54.0 million for fiscal 2002
from $38.5 million for fiscal 2001, an increase of 40.3%.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2001 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2000

Net Revenue. Our net revenue increased to $350.5 million for fiscal 2001 from $209.0 million for
the prior year, an increase of 67.7%. The increase was primarily due to a 52% increase in student
enrollment from 37,500 in the 1999-2000 school year to 57,000 in the 2000-2001 school year, reflecting
both the opening of new schools and the expansion of existing schools.

Direct Site Expenses. Our direct site expenses increased to $291.2 million for fiscal 2001 from
$177.0 million for the prior year, an increase of 64.5%. The increase in direct site expenses was primarily
due to the 52% increase in student enrollment. The largest element of direct site expenses is personnel
costs. Personnel costs included in direct site expenses increased to $243.7 million for fiscal 2001 from
$152.8 million for the prior year. Of the total direct site expenses, $129.2 million was client paid, up
from $83.9 million in the same period of the prior year. These client paid expenses consist entirely of
personnel costs at our schools.

Gross Site Margin and Contribution. Our gross site contribution was $59.3 million for fiscal
2001 compared to $32.0 million for the prior year. The corresponding gross site margin increased to
16.9% for fiscal 2001 compared to 15.3% for fiscal 2000. The increase in gross site contribution of $27.3
million resulted from the increase in revenue and decreases in the cost of providing services.

Administration, Curriculum and Development Expenses. Our administration, curriculum and
development expenses increased to $57.8 million for fiscal 2001 from $54.2 million for fiscal 2000, an
increase of 6.6%. Excluding a specific event related charge of $13.6 million related to a stock-based
compensation charge in fiscal 2000, our administration, curriculum and development expenses increased
to $57.8 million for fiscal 2001 from $40.6 million for fiscal 2000, an increase of 42.4%. The increase
was substantially due to greater personnel costs resulting from an increase of 80 new headquarters
employees, which reflects a substantial increase in staff in our school operations and education divisions
and an increase in our central office administrative staff to enhance legal, contracting, and financial
reporting functions. In addition, we wrote down our curriculum materials inventory by $3.9 million to
reflect costs of returning and/or reselling surplus materials.

Depreciation and Amortization. Our depreciation and amortization increased to $33.6 million for
fiscal 2001 from $20.9 million for fiscal 2000, an increase of 60.8%. The increased depreciation and
amortization resulted from additional capital expenditures for our curriculum materials, computers and
related technology, and facility improvements related to our enrollment and central office growth.

Pre-Opening Expenses. Our pre-opening expenses increased to $8.6 million for fiscal 2001 from
$8.4 million for fiscal 2000, an increase of 2.4%. This increase was associated primarily with opening
new schools and expanding existing schools for the 2000-2001 school year, with 19,500 new students
enrolled compared to approximately 13,600 new students enrolled one year earlier.

Excluding non-cash stock-based compensation charges of $1.6 million in fiscal 2001 and $11.8
million in fiscal 2000, administration, curriculum and development and pre-opening expenses as a
percentage of revenues decreased to 18.5% for fiscal 2001 from 24.3% for the prior year.

Education and Operating Expenses. Our total education and operating expenses as a percentage
of total revenue decreased to 111.6% for fiscal 2001 from 124.6% for fiscal 2000. Excluding specific
event related stock compensation charges of $13.6 million in fiscal 2000 our total education and operating
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expenses as a percentage of total revenue decreased to 111.6% for fiscal 2001 from 118.2% for fiscal
2000. This decrease primarily resulted from continued revenue growth and increased operating leverage
and a decrease in administration, curriculum and development expenses as a percentage of total revenue.

EBITDA, Net of Other Charges. EBITDA, net of other charges, means the net loss we would
have shown if we did not take into consideration our interest expense, interest income, income tax
expense, depreciation and amortization, and stock-based compensation charges. These costs are
discussed above. This amount for fiscal 2001 was a negative $5.6 million compared to a negative $18.8
million for fiscal 2000. The improved EBITDA, net of other charges, resulted primarily from increased
gross site margin and decreased administration, curriculum and development, and pre-opening expenses
as a percentage of revenues. On a per-student basis, negative EBITDA, net of other charges, improved to
$98 in fiscal 2001 compared to $501 for the prior year.

Loss from Operations. Our loss from operations decreased to $40.8 million for fiscal 2001 from
$51.5 million for fiscal 2000, a decrease of 20.8%. Excluding one-time and specific event related charges
of $13.6 million as mentioned above, our loss from operations increased to $40.8 million for fiscal 2001
from $37.9 million for fiscal 2000, an increase of 7.7%. The increase primarily resulted from higher
administration, curriculum, and development expenses as well as higher depreciation and amortization.

Other Income and Expense. Other income, net was $2.9 million for fiscal 2001 compared to
$900,000 in fiscal 2000. The improvement was primarily due to $10.3 million of interest income
resulting from larger invested cash balances and notes receivable, partially offset by interest expense from
expanded borrowings and a write-off of fixed assets at the schools that closed in fiscal 2001.
Additionally, for fiscal 2001, we recognized $291,000 in losses as our pro-rata share of the Ksixteen net
loss for that period.

Net Loss and Net Loss Attributable to Common Stockholders. Our net loss decreased to $38.5
million for fiscal 2001 from $50.6 million for fiscal 2000, a decrease of 23.9%. Excluding one-time and
specific event related charges of $13.6 million, our net loss increased to $38.5 million for fiscal 2001
from $37.0 million for fiscal 2000, an increase of 4.1%.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have historically operated in a negative cash flow position. To date, we have financed our
cash needs through a combination of equity and debt financing. Since our inception and through June 30,
2002, we had raised $509.0 million of equity capital. During the same period, we used $178.6 million of
cash for operating activities and $293.4 million of cash for investing activities. We have also utilized
debt and equipment leasing arrangements to finance computers and other technology investments in our
schools.

At June 30, 2002, our cash available for operations was approximately $40.7 million.

On October 3, 2001, the Company formed Edison Receivables Company LLC ("Edison
Receivables") for the purpose of purchasing and financing certain receivables of the Company. The
Company owns all of the membership interests in Edison Receivables, a Delaware limited liability
company with a separate legal existence from the Company. The Company has sold or contributed
certain accounts receivable arising from the Company's provision of school management services in the
ordinary course of its business and related security to Edison Receivables. Edison Receivables has its
own separate creditors who are entitled to be satisfied out of Edison Receivables' assets prior to any value
in it becoming available to the Company. The Company has no right, title or interest in Edison
Receivables' assets, including the accounts receivable assigned to it by the Company.
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In November 2001, Edison Receivables entered into a $35.0 million revolving credit facility (the
"MLMCI Facility") with Merrill Lynch Mortgage Capital Inc. ("MLMCI"), collateralized by certain
accounts receivable purchased from or contributed by the Company. Borrowings are limited to specified
percentages of eligible accounts receivable, as defined. The MLMCI Facility originally had a term of one
year, with interest determined on a Eurodollar or prime rate basis at the Company's option and a
commitment fee of .50% per annum on the unused portion of the commitment. As of June 30, 2002,
$34.0 million was outstanding under this line of credit bearing interest at LIBOR plus 3.5% and was
collateralized by receivables with a book value of $62.8 million that were sold in a true sale to Edison
Receivables by the Company. The agreement requires that the Company observe certain financial
covenants and restrictions including a minimum consolidated tangible net worth and a maximum
consolidated debt to equity ratio.

On July 31, 2002, the MLMCI Facility was amended to add School Services LLC ("School
Services") as an additional lender and MLMCI as agent of the lenders, increase the line of credit to $55.0
million, and extend the term of the agreement and the line of credit provided thereunder to June 30, 2003.
The agreement and the line of credit were subsequently extended to July 15, 2003. The interest rate under
the amended MLMCI Facility was increased to LIBOR plus 7.0% or prime plus 4.5% at the Company's
option. We agreed to pay certain fees and costs related to the MLMCI Facility, aggregating
approximately $3.2 million.

Additionally, on July 31, 2002 the Company entered into a two-year Credit and Security
Agreement (the "New Credit Facility") with School Services, which provides for a term loan in the
amount of $10.0 million, collateralized by property held by 110th and 5th Associates, LLC, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and a revolving loan not to exceed $10.0 million, collateralized by all
the Company's assets other than the property collateralizing the term loan. Interest on both the term and
revolving loans was set at 12.0% per annum. The Company borrowed $250,000 on July 31, 2002 under
the New Credit Facility. The facility will be reduced by the amount of certain fees and costs which the
Company has agreed to pay School Services and its affiliates, aggregating approximately $2.8 million.
Additionally, we agreed to pay a fee of $1.6 million at loan maturity or the earlier prepayment of the term
loan component of the facility. This facility is secured by certain real property owned by the Company
and certain of its subsidiaries, notes payable from charter schools and other debtors of the Company and
all other assets of the Company generally, other than accounts receivable sold to Edison Receivables.
This facility matures on June 30, 2004. However, the loan commitment is to be reduced by an agreed
upon percentage of the net proceeds of any refinancing paid to the Company. The agreement requires the
Company to observe certain financial covenants and restrictions including a minimum consolidated
tangible net worth, a maximum consolidated debt to equity ratio and a minimum EBITDA requirement
for fiscal 2003.

In connection with the establishment of the amended MLMCI Facility and the New Credit
Facility, the Company also issued warrants for the purchase of up to 10,710,973 shares of Class A
common stock of the Company, which equals 16.6% of the total outstanding shares of common stock of
the Company, including the shares issuable upon exercise of the warrants. The warrants have an exercise
price of $1.00 per share and are exercisable at any time following their issuance and prior to July 31,
2007.

We expect our cash on hand, together with borrowings under financing arrangements, as
mentioned above, and expected reimbursements of advances we have made to charter boards, will be
sufficient to meet our working capital needs to operate our existing schools through fiscal 2003. Our
near-term capital needs are generally growth related and are dependent upon our rate of growth and our
mix of charter schools and contract schools, as charter schools usually require us to advance funds to help
charter boards obtain, renovate and complete school facilities. We anticipate refinancing with third-party
lenders up to $50.0 million of loans we have made to charter boards to fund our current growth plans for
the 2003-2004 school year. While we have completed such financings in the past, we cannot be certain
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we will obtain such financing on favorable terms, if any. To the extent we cannot raise sufficient funds
through the refinancing of our loans to charter boards with third-party lenders, we may seek additional
capital through offerings of debt or equity securities and expanded financing arrangements or reduce our
growth plans. Depending on the terms of any financing arrangements, such funding may be dilutive to
existing shareholders, and we cannot be certain that we will be able to obtain additional financing on
favorable terms, if at all.

Our longer term cash requirements are for capital to fund capital expenditures related to growth,
anticipated working capital needs and general corporate purposes. We expect to fund such expenditures
and other longer term liquidity needs with cash generated from operations, the proceeds from offerings of
debt or equity securities and expanded financing arrangements. Depending on the terms of any financing
arrangements, such funding may be dilutive to existing shareholders, and we cannot be certain that we
will be able to obtain additional financing on favorable terms, if at all.

We ran summer school programs for 51 districts in the state of Missouri during May, June and
July of 2002. We spent approximately $19 million, which includes teachers' salaries, curriculum and
other educational/promotional materials, over the two month period. Of the amounts we recognized as
revenue for the 2002 summer program, payment terms of the related billings range from 12 to 18 months.
Therefore, cash receipts of revenue will lag outlay of cash for expenditures by more than one year. Of the
amounts we recognized as revenue for the 2001 summer school program, 83.5% of the revenue had been
collected as of September 25, 2002 with the remainder scheduled for collection through January 2003.

In general, our ability to achieve positive cash flow will be dependent on the volume of schools
with positive gross site contribution to offset central office and overhead expenses. Because gross site
contribution is the difference between site revenue and site expenditures, positive gross site contribution
can be achieved at a range of enrollment levels. While higher enrollment tends to have a positive effect
on gross site contribution, our growth and cash flow do not depend on 100% enrollment.

Cash Used in Operating Activities

For fiscal 2002, we used $23.7 million for operating activities. This use primarily resulted from a
$86.0 million net loss, a $20.9 million net increase in working capital accounts, $1.9 million increase in
accrued interest on notes receivable and stock-based compensation income of $13.3 million, partially
offset by depreciation and amortization totaling $39.8 million, $5.4 million of asset write-off and
disposals, $9.5 million of notes receivable write-off and allowances, impairment charges totaling $36.9
million and $6.8 million reduction in the carrying value of our investment in Apex Learning Inc. (see
Note 12 of the consolidated financial statements).

For fiscal 2001, we used $26.7 million for operating activities. This use primarily resulted from a
$38.5 million net loss and a $27.9 million net increase in working capital accounts, partially offset by
$32.3 million of depreciation and amortization, $800,000 write-off of accounts receivable, $1.6 million in
stock-based compensation expense and $5.2 million of asset write-off and disposal.

Cash Used in Investing Activities

For fiscal 2002, we used $48.1 million in investing activities. Additionally there were non-cash
transactions of $16.0 million. During this period, we invested $17.1 million in our schools and central
office. These amounts include the investments we made in technology and curriculum in each of the
schools we open. We have also advanced funds to our charter board clients for their affiliates to help
maintain and complete school facilities. The amounts advanced during fiscal 2002 to our charter board
clients or their affiliates were $41.9 million. During this period, we also received $15.0 million in
repayments on advances previously made. During fiscal 2002, we increased security deposits by $2.1
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million, funded a $1.0 million philanthropic contribution, and incurred $1.2 million of deferred contract
costs.

For fiscal 2001, we used $77.4 million in investing activities. Additionally there were non-cash
transactions of $21.4 million. During this period, we invested $46.9 million in our schools and central
office. These amounts include the investments we made in technology and curriculum in each of the
schools we opened. We have also advanced funds to our charter board clients or their affiliates to help
obtain, renovate and complete school facilities. The amounts advanced for fiscal 2001 were $46.4
million. During this period, we also received $14.8 million in repayments on advances previously made.
Also, we disposed of leasehold improvements totaling $10.7 million. During fiscal 2001, we paid $7.0
million for the balance on the purchase price of a lot located in the Harlem section in the borough of
Manhattan in New York City. Additionally, we had business acquisition costs of $3.0 million during the
same period.

Cash from Financing Activities

For fiscal 2002, we received $16.2 million from our financing activities. These amounts include
borrowing $34.0 million on our credit facility, amounts received from the exercise of stock options and
warrants of $1.8 million, cash received from a minority investee of $2.1 million, and the release of
approximately $700,000 of restricted cash. These proceeds were partially offset by the repayments of
notes payable of $21.0 million and $1.3 million of deferred financing costs.

For fiscal 2001, we received $147.7 million from our financing activities. In August 2000, we
completed a follow-on public offering in which we sold 3,350,000 shares of class A common stock for
net proceeds of approximately $71.0 million. Also in August 2000, a philanthropic foundation exercised
warrants to purchase 600,000 shares of class A common stock and paid us $4.8 million. In March 2001,
we completed another public offering of an additional 3,351,026 shares of class A common stock for net
proceeds of approximately $81.0 million. Additionally, we received $5.3 million from exercises of stock
options and warrants. In fiscal 2001, we received $4.2 million in proceeds from financing arrangements
for computers and other technology and $4.7 million from facilities financings. These proceeds were
partially offset by the repayments of notes payable and capital lease obligations of approximately $18.5
million and $5.2 million in funding of restricted cash.

Philanthropy

Philanthropic entities supported 11 of the 133 schools we operated in the 2001-2002 school year.
We tend to use philanthropy in those areas where the per-pupil expenditures would otherwise make it
difficult to achieve satisfactory financial performance, such as California where all of our schools have
been supported by philanthropic entities. These philanthropic entities provide funds directly to our school
board or charter board clients, and not to Edison. Generally, the philanthropic support helps fund the
initial capital investment in curriculum, technology, and facilities necessary to open a school and is not
used for ongoing annual operations. Although some of our school district and charter board clients have
used philanthropic funds in the past and we expect some of them to use philanthropic funds in the future,
we do not rely on philanthropic support significantly for our growth strategy. The D2F2 Foundation has
supported some of our schools in California and has indicated that it intends to provide support up to
$22.5 million for schools operated or to be operated by us, primarily in California; $9.7 million of this
amount has been used to date in schools operated by us. We issued a warrant to the D2F2 Foundation to
purchase up to 1,698,750 shares of class A common stock and 188,750 shares of class B common stock at
an exercise price of $7.96 per share. Additionally, we have entered into an agreement with one client
whereby we committed to raise $10.5 million in unrestricted philanthropic funds, to be contributed over a
two year period ending June 30, 2003. The funds are to be used for schools the Company manages and
are to be expended on agreed upon costs including school facility, technology and curriculum materials.
To date, we have secured commitments from two philanthropic organizations to contribute approximately

45



$3.9 million and commitments from two senior Company officers for an additional $1.2 million. During
fiscal 2002, $2.8 million of commitments from the two philanthropic entities was received and we
donated $1.2 million. Our commitment will be amortized, net of third party donations received, over the
contract life (five years) as a reduction in revenue. Contributions received from senior officers will serve
to reduce the Company's obligation and be credited to additional paid-in capital.

Charter School Facility Financings

Significant real estate investments are often necessary when we establish a charter school for a
charter board and existing facilities are not available. While the charter board is generally responsible for
locating and financing its own school building, they typically do not have the resources required to obtain
the financing necessary to secure and maintain the building. For this reason, if we want to obtain a
management agreement with the charter board, we must often help the charter board arrange for
appropriate facilities. Innovative financing methods are often needed to compensate for the limited
amount of state and local funding available to develop charter school facilities. We have employed a
variety of approaches, including owning or leasing the building, advancing funds for the building to the
charter board under various repayment terms, or having the charter board directly own or lease the facility
from a third party, sometimes assisted by a subordinated loan from us. We also consider providing
guarantees to lending institutions to allow the charter board flexibility in obtaining financing. We
determine the most economically viable option available for each school, and we purchase real estate only
if we determine it is the best available financing option. In the past, we have utilized a variety of third
party financing, including bank debt, municipal bonds, sale/lease-back arrangements and philanthropy.

We expect to continue to advance funds to our charter board clients as well as spend, to the extent
capital is available, on charter school facilities directly. We have been successful in securing various
financing arrangements in the past, but our ability to obtain any such financing arrangements in the future
cannot be assured. As of June 30, 2002, we had guarantees totaling $20.9 million for facility-related debt
of three of our charter school clients, representing nine schools in fiscal 2002. The underlying debt comes
due in fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2006.

We could have facility financing obligations for charter schools we no longer operate because the
terms of our facility financing obligations for some of our charter schools exceed the term of the
management agreement for those schools. For eight of our charter schools, we have entered into long-
term leases for the school facility that exceeds the current term of the management agreement by as much
as 15 years. If our management agreements were to be terminated, or not renewed in these charter
schools, our obligations to make lease payments would continue, which could adversely affect our
financial results. As of June 30, 2002, our aggregate future lease obligations totaled $49.6 million, with
varying maturities over the next 20 years.

In nine of our charter schools, we have provided some type of permanent credit support for the
school building, typically in the form of loan guarantees, loans or cash advances. As of June 30, 2002,
the amount of loans we had guaranteed totaled $20.9 million. Although the term of these arrangements is
coterminous with the term of the corresponding management agreement, our guarantee does not expire
until the loan is repaid in full. The lenders under these facilities are not committed to release us from our
obligations unless replacement credit support is provided. The default by any charter school under a
credit facility that we have guaranteed could result in a claim against us for the full amount of the
borrowings. Furthermore, in the event any charter board becomes insolvent or has its charter revoked,
our loans and advances to the charter board may not be recoverable, which could adversely affect our
financial results. We have also set aside restricted cash as collateral, in the amount of $500,000 for the
loans we guarantee. As of June 30, 2002, we had advances or loans to charter school boards totaling a net
of approximately $80.9 million related to the purchase or renovation of school facilities we manage. We
often have not charged interest on these loans and advances. Approximately $19.8 million of these loans,
representing 20 schools, are uncollateralized or subordinated to a senior lender. We currently expect to
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make additional advances of at least $7.0 million during the 2003 fiscal year. If these advances or loans
are not repaid when due, our financial results could be adversely affected.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company has written down a loan of approximately $4.0
million related to a discontinued new school project. Additionally, in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, as
a result of the difficult credit environment affecting the Company's ability to arrange third party lender
financing coupled with the credit risk of specific charter school notes and management's intention to
accelerate the refinancing of individual loans with third-party lenders, an allowance for loan losses of
approximately $5.5 million was established. These amounts are included in administration, curriculum
and development expense in the statements of operations.

Investment in Apex Online Learning Inc.

In July 1999, we acquired a 16.5% ownership interest in APEX Online Learning Inc. ("APEX"),
a company that provides interactive advanced placement courses for high school students over the
Internet. Concurrently, Vulcan Ventures Incorporated, then the majority stockholder of APEX, invested
$30.0 million in Edison. We initially invested $5.0 million in APEX and were obligated to invest up to
an additional $5.0 million in the future, if any third party were to invest in APEX. In December 1999, we
invested all of the additional $5.0 million in APEX, increasing our ownership interest at that time to
19.7%. Because of the nature of our relationship with APEX through June 2000, we were required to
recognize a pro rata portion of APEX's losses based upon our ownership interest. In the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2000, we recognized $2.0 million of loss as our share of APEX's net loss. We modified our
relationship with APEX on June 30, 2000 and, as a result, we are no longer accounting for this investment
on the equity basis.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2002, we recorded a non-cash charge to reduce the carrying
value of our 19.7% cost basis investment in APEX to reflect an other-than-temporary decline in value of
$6.8 million (representing the excess of carrying value over fair value, which results in a carrying value of
$1.3 million as of March 31, 2002). We determined that our investment was impaired given the terms of
a third quarter fiscal 2002 transaction involving APEX equity instruments between two existing investors.
Management assessed this impairment to be other than temporary based on the sharp decline in fair value
as determined and in consideration of the overall market condition for private equity companies. Prior
thereto, we had concluded there was not an other than temporary impairment based, in part, on its
application of customary valuation techniques which indicated that fair value approximated carrying
value. Among the key assumptions included in the valuation were market conditions for educational
related companies, trends in APEX operating results and valuations of market comparables.

Anticipated Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures for fiscal 2003 are expected to be approximately $26.0 million, which
includes approximately $11.0 million for computers and other technology at our schools, approximately
$11.0 million for curriculum materials, approximately $1.0 million for the purchase and improvement of
property at our schools, and $3.0 million for technology, leasehold improvements, and other capital items
at our headquarters. Additionally, we expect to make additional advances or loans approximating $7.0
million to new charter board clients to help secure and renovate school properties during the 2002-2003
school year pursuant to our philanthropic commitments, a portion of which we expect will be refinanced
through third parties. In addition, we expect to make charitable donations of approximately $3.0 million
to benefit one of our clients.
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Additional Risk Factors That May Affect Future Results

In addition to other information in this report, you should consider carefully the following risk
factors. These risks may impair our operating results and business prospects and the market price of our
stock.

This report contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Such
statements are based on our current expectations, assumptions, estimates and projections about the
company and our industry. These forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties. Forward-
looking statements are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may
cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance, achievements and prospects to be materially
different from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. We undertake no
obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statements for any reason even if new information
becomes available or other events occur in the future. You should also refer to the information set forth
in this Annual Report, including our financial statements and the related notes.

We have a history of losses and may not achieve profitability in the future

We have incurred substantial net losses in every fiscal period since we began operations. For
fiscal 2002, our net loss was $86.0 million. As of June 30, 2002, our accumulated deficit since November
1996, when we converted from a partnership to a corporation, was approximately $256.6 million. In
addition, prior to November 1996, we incurred losses of approximately $61.8 million, which are reflected
in our additional paid-in capital. We have not yet demonstrated that we can profitably manage public
schools. In order to achieve profitability, we believe it will be necessary to improve gross site margin
while maintaining educational quality and continuing to reduce central expenses as a percentage of net
revenue. We have recently undertaken a "reengineering" process intended to increase our efficiency and
help us attain profitability while improving client service. There can be no assurance, however, that we
will be successful in meeting the objectives of the reengineering. Even if we do achieve profitability, we
may not sustain or increase profitability on a quarterly or annual basis. Failure to become and remain
profitable may adversely affect the market price of our class A common stock and our ability to raise
additional capital and continue operations.

The private, for-profit management of public schools remains a relatively new and
uncertain industry, and it may not become publicly accepted

Our future is highly dependent upon the development, acceptance and expansion of the market
for private, for-profit management of public schools. This market has only recently developed, and we
are among the first companies to provide these services on a for-profit basis. We believe the first
meaningful example of a school district contracting with a private company to provide core instructional
services was in 1992, and we opened our first schools in August 1995. The development of this market
has been accompanied by significant press coverage and public debate concerning for-profit management
of public schools. If this business model fails to gain acceptance among the general public, educators,
politicians and school boards, we may be unable to grow our business and the market price of our class A
common stock would be adversely affected.

The success of our business depends on our ability to improve the academic
achievement of the students enrolled in our schools and we may face difficulties in doing
so in the future

We believe that our growth will be dependent upon our ability to demonstrate general
improvements in academic performance at our schools. Our management agreements contain
performance requirements related to test scores. To the extent average student performance at our schools
increases, whether due to improvements in achievement over time by individual students in our schools or
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changes in the average performance levels of new students entering our schools, aggregate absolute
improvements in student performance will be more difficult to achieve. If academic performance at our
schools declines, is perceived to decline, or simply fails to improve, we could lose business and our
reputation could be seriously damaged, which would impair our ability to gain new business or renew
existing school management agreements

We could incur losses at our schools if we are unable to enroll enough students

Because the amount of revenue we earn for operating each school primarily depends on the
number of students enrolled, and because many facility and on-site administrative costs are fixed,
achieving site-specific enrollment objectives is an important factor in our ability to achieve satisfactory
financial performance at a school. We may be unable to recruit enough students to attend all grades in
our new schools or maintain enrollment at all grades in our existing schools. We sometimes do not have
enough students to fill some grades in some schools, particularly the higher grades. It is sometimes more
difficult to enroll students in the higher grades because older students and their parents are reluctant to
change schools. To the extent we are unable to meet or maintain enrollment objectives at a school, the
school will be less financially successful and our financial performance will be adversely affected.

We may not be able to attract and retain highly skilled principals and teachers in the
numbers required to grow our business

Our success depends to a very high degree on our ability to attract and retain highly skilled school
principals and teachers. Currently, there is a well-publicized nationwide shortage of teachers and other
educators in the United States. In addition, we may find it difficult to attract and retain principals and
teachers for a variety of reasons, including, but not limited to, the following:

e we generally require our teachers to work a longer day and a longer year than most public
schools;

e we tend to have a larger proportion of our schools in challenging locations, such as low-
income urban areas, which may make attracting principals and teachers more difficult;
and

e we believe we generally impose more accountability on principals and teachers than do
public schools as a whole.

These factors may increase the challenge we face in an already difficult market for attracting
principals and teachers. We have also experienced higher levels of turnover among teachers than is
generally found in public schools nationally, which we attribute in part to these factors. If we fail to
attract and retain highly skilled principals and teachers in sufficient numbers, we could experience client
dissatisfaction and lost growth opportunities, which would adversely affect our business.

We must open a large number of new schools in a short period of time at the beginning
of each school year and, if we encounter difficulties in this process, our business and
reputation could suffer

It is the nature of our business that virtually all of the new schools we open in any year must be
opened within a few weeks of each other at the beginning of the school year. Each new school must be
substantially functional when students arrive on the first day of school. This is a difficult logistical and
management challenge, and the period of concentrated activity preceding the opening of the school year
places a significant strain on our management and operational functions. We expect this strain will
increase if we are successful in securing larger numbers of school management agreements in the future.
If we fail to successfully open schools by the required date, we could lose school management
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agreements, incur financial losses and our reputation as well as our ability to attract future clients would
be damaged.

We depend upon cooperative relationships with teachers' unions, both at the local and
national levels

Union cooperation at the local level is often critical to us in obtaining new management
agreements and renewing existing management agreements. In those school districts subject to collective
bargaining, provisions of collective bargaining agreements must typically be modified in areas such as
length of school day, length of school year, negotiated compensation policies and prescribed methods of
evaluation in order to implement the Edison design at a contract school. We regularly encounter
resistance from local teachers' unions during school board debates over whether to enter into a
management agreement with us. In addition, local teachers' unions have occasionally, albeit ultimately
unsuccessfully, initiated litigation challenging our management agreements. If we fail to achieve and
maintain cooperative relationships with local teachers' unions, we could lose business and our ability to
grow could suffer. In addition, at the national level, the American Federation of Teachers and the
National Education Association have substantial financial and other resources that could be used to
influence legislation, local teachers' unions and public opinion in a way that would hurt our business.

We could be liable for events that occur at our schools

We could become liable for the actions of principals, teachers and other personnel in our schools.
In the event of on-site accidents, injuries or other harm to students, we could face claims alleging that we
were negligent, provided inadequate supervision or were otherwise liable for the injury. We could also
face allegations that teachers or other personnel committed child abuse, sexual abuse or other criminal
acts. In addition, if our students commit acts of violence, we could face allegations that we failed to
provide adequate security or were otherwise responsible for their actions, particularly in light of recent
highly publicized incidents of school violence. Although we maintain liability insurance, this insurance
coverage may not be adequate to fully protect us from these kinds of claims. In addition, we may not be
able to maintain our liability insurance in the future at reasonable prices or at all. A successful liability
claim could injure our reputation and hurt our financial results. Even if unsuccessful, such a claim could
cause unfavorable publicity, entail substantial expense and divert the time and attention of key
management personnel, which could cause our financial results to suffer.

Our management agreements with school districts and charter boards are terminable
under specified circumstances and generally expire after a term of five years

Our management agreements generally have a term of five years. We cannot be assured that any
management agreements will be renewed at the end of their terms. In addition, some of our management
agreements may be terminated by the school district or charter board at will, with or without good reason,
and all of our management agreements may be terminated for cause, including in some cases for failure to
meet specified educational standards, such as academic performance based on standardized test scores.
As a result of payment disputes or changes within a school district, such as changes in the political
climate, we do from time to time face pressure to permit a school district or charter board to terminate our
management agreement even if they do not have a legal right to do so. We may also seek the early
termination of, or not seek to renew, a limited number of management agreements in any year. If a
significant number of management contracts are not renewed or are terminated, it could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.
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Our largest management agreement to date is terminable "at will" by the client and
under other specified circumstances

On August 1, 2002, the company signed an agreement to manage 26 schools in Philadelphia. It is
our largest cluster of schools to date. This agreement has been and continues to be the subject of
substantial attention in education and business circles as well as in the local and national press. The
contract is subject to termination at will by the school district. The contract is also subject to termination
if we fail to meet our obligations, including meeting specified student achievement targets. If the contract
is terminated, or if we fail to successfully deliver the program, raise student achievement or manage the
program's costs, our financial results, operations and reputation may be adversely affected.

Our management agreements involve financial risk

Under the majority of our management agreements, we agree to operate a school in return for per-
pupil funding that generally does not vary with our actual costs. To the extent our actual costs under a
management agreement exceed our budgeted costs, or our actual revenue is less than planned because we
are unable to enroll as many students as we anticipated or for any other reason, we could lose money at
that school. In addition, from time to time we have disagreements with our clients as to the actual amount
of, or the method of calculating, the revenue owed to us under the terms of the management agreements,
resulting in lower revenue than planned. We are generally obligated by our management agreements to
continue operating a school for the duration of the contract even if it becomes unprofitable to do so.

We have limited experience operating four-year high schools

An element of our strategy is to increase our business with existing customers by opening new
schools in school districts with whom we have an existing relationship. An important aspect of this
strategy is to open Edison high schools in districts in which we operate elementary and middle schools.
Because we have limited experience operating high schools, our complete high school curriculum, school
design and operating plan are not fully tested. In addition, school districts typically spend more per pupil
on high school education than on elementary education. By contrast, some of our management
agreements provide that we recognize for each student, regardless of grade level, the average per-pupil
funding spent by the school district for all grade levels. For this reason, in these schools we recognize
less funding per high school student than is spent by the school district for each of its high school
students. In these situations, our success depends upon our ability to deliver our high school design based
on the same per-pupil spending as in our elementary schools. If we are unable to successfully and
profitably operate high schools, our ability to pursue our growth strategy will be impaired, which could
adversely affect the market price of our class A common stock.

Our lengthy sales cycle and uncertainties inherent in the process through which we
develop new business could delay new business and affect our rate of growth

The time between initial contact with a potential contract or charter client and the ultimate
opening of a school, and related recognition of revenue, typically ranges between 9 and 27 months. Our
sales cycle for contract schools is generally lengthy due to the approval process at the local school board
level, the political sensitivity of converting a public school to private management and the need, in some
circumstances, for cooperation from local unions. We also have a lengthy sales cycle for charter schools
for similar reasons, as well as the need to arrange for facilities to house the school. In addition, we are
increasingly presented with potential opportunities to take over the management of several schools in a
single district or area at the same time, which likewise have a lengthy sales cycle. The outcome of these
opportunities can have a meaningful effect on our rate of growth. As a result of our lengthy sales cycle,
we have only a limited ability to forecast the timing of new management agreements. Any delay in
completing, or failure to complete, management agreements could hurt our financial performance. Press
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speculation concerning the outcome of these processes may adversely affect our stock price from time to
time.

We could lose money if we underestimate the real estate costs associated with acquiring
or renovating a charter school

If we incur unexpected real estate cost overruns in acquiring or renovating a charter school, we
could lose money in operating the school. Our decision to enter into a management agreement for a
charter school and our estimate of the financial performance of the charter school, are based, in part, on
the estimated facility financing cost associated with renovating an existing facility or building a new
facility to house the charter school. This cost varies widely from minimal amounts for minor upgrades to
larger amounts for a new construction, which typically range from $4.0 million to $10.0 million, per
facility. If these expenses exceed our estimates for the charter school, the charter school could lose
money and our financial results would be adversely affected.

We have advanced and loaned money to charter school boards that may not be repaid

As of June 30, 2002, we have outstanding loans or advances to charter boards of $80.0 million,
net of allowances, to finance the purchase or renovation of school facilities we manage. Approximately
$19.8 million of these loans, representing 16 schools, are uncollateralized or subordinated to a senior
lender. In addition, with respect to the loans that are collateralized, if we were required to foreclose on
the collateral securing those loans, we might not be able to liquidate the collateral for proceeds sufficient
to cover the loan amount. If any of these advances or loans are not repaid when due, our financial results
could be adversely affected.

Some of our charter schools recently obtained tax-exempt financing to repay these loans and
advances, but there can be no assurance that our other charter schools will be able to obtain such tax-
exempt financing. While we are currently exploring a variety of other financing structures to assist
charter schools in repaying these loans and advances, there can be no assurance that we will be able to
implement any of these financing structures.

We could become liable for financial obligations of charter boards

We could have facility financing obligations for charter schools we no longer operate, because
the terms of our facility financing obligations for some of our charter schools exceeds the term of the
management agreement for those schools. For nine of our charter schools, we have entered into a long-
term lease for the school facility that exceeds the current term of the management agreement by as much
as 15 years. If our management agreements were to be terminated, or not renewed in these charter
schools, our obligations to make lease payments would continue, which could adversely affect our
financial results. For example, as of December 2001, we terminated a management agreement covering
three schools for which we continue to have a long-term lease obligation in connection with the school's
facilities. Although we have signed a lease with the school covering the 2002-2003 school year, we have
no assurance that that lease will be renewed or that we will be able to find other tenants to lease the
facility.

As of June 30, 2002, our aggregate future lease obligations totaled $49.6 million, with varying
maturities over the next 20 years. In nine of our charter schools, we have provided some type of
permanent credit support for the school building, typically in the form of loan guarantees or cash
advances. As of June 30, 2002 the amount of loans we had guaranteed totaled $20.9 million. Although
the term of these arrangements is coterminous with the term of the corresponding management
agreement, our guarantee does not expire until the loan is repaid in full. The lenders under these facilities
are not committed to release us from our obligations unless replacement credit support is provided. The
default by any charter school under a credit facility that we have guaranteed could result in a claim
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against us for the full amount of the borrowings. Furthermore, in the event any charter board becomes
insolvent or has its charter revoked, our loans and advances to the charter board may not be recoverable,
which could adversely affect our financial results. In addition, we have generally indemnified our charter
school and contract school partners from any liability or damages occurring or allegedly occurring or
arising out of any environmental conditions at the school site, if such conditions were caused or created
by substances brought on the site by Edison.

Our financial results are subject to seasonal patterns and other fluctuations from
quarter to quarter

We expect our results of operations to experience seasonal patterns and other fluctuations from
quarter to quarter. The factors that could contribute to fluctuations, which could have the effect of
masking or exaggerating trends in our business and which could hurt the market price of our class A
common stock, include:

e Because new schools are opened in the first fiscal quarter of each year, increases in
student enrollment and related revenue and expenses will first be reflected in that quarter.
Subsequent to the first quarter, student enrollment is expected to remain relatively stable
throughout a school year, and, accordingly, trends in our business, whether favorable or
unfavorable, will tend not to be reflected in our quarterly financial results, but will be
evident primarily in year-to-year comparisons.

e  We recognize revenue for each managed school pro rata over the 11 months from August
through June, typically the period over which we perform our services and, except for
revenue related to our summer school programs, we recognize no school revenue in July.
Most of our site costs are also recognized over the 11 months from August through June.
For this reason, the first quarter of our fiscal year has historically reflected less revenue
and lower expenses than the other three quarters, and we expect this pattern to continue.

e Our recognition of site-related expenses in the first fiscal quarter is proportionally greater
than the revenue recognition because some site expenses are incurred in July and no
revenue is recorded in July, with the exception of revenue related to our summer school
programs. This results in lower gross site margin in the first fiscal quarter than in the
remaining fiscal quarters. We also recognize pre-opening costs primarily in the first and
fourth quarters.

e We recognize revenue from our summer school programs during the first and fourth
fiscal quarters. To the extent our summer school program becomes a more significant
part of our business, this could significantly alter seasonal patterns.

Our financial results can vary among the quarters within any fiscal year for other reasons,
including unexpected enrollment changes, greater than expected costs of opening schools or delays in
opening new schools.

We expect our market to become more competitive

We expect the market for providing private, for-profit management of public schools will become
increasingly competitive. Currently, we compete with a relatively small number of companies that
provide these services, and they have to date primarily focused on the operation of charter schools. Some
of these companies have begun to compete with us for contract schools. In addition, a variety of other
types of companies and entities could enter the market, including colleges and universities, private
companies that operate higher education or professional education schools. Our existing competitors and
new market entrants could have financial, marketing and other resources significantly greater than ours.
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We also compete for public school funding with existing public schools, who may elect not to enter into
management agreements with private managers or who may pursue alternative reform initiatives, such as
magnet schools and inter-district choice programs. In addition, in jurisdictions where voucher programs
have been authorized, we will begin to compete with existing private schools for public tuition funds.
Voucher programs provide for the issuance by local or other governmental bodies of tuition vouchers to
parents worth a certain amount of money that they can redeem at any approved school of their choice,
including private schools. If we are unable to compete successfully against any of these existing or
potential competitors, our revenues could be reduced, resulting in increased losses.

Failure to raise necessary additional capital could restrict our growth and hinder our
ability to compete

We have had negative cash flow in every fiscal period since we began operations. We have
regularly needed to raise funds in order to operate our business and fund our growth, including the
construction and renovation of charter school facilities, and may need to raise additional funds in the
future. We cannot be certain that we will be able to obtain additional financing on favorable terms, if at
all, or that our charter clients will be able to repay our loans and advances to them. If we issue additional
equity or convertible debt securities, stockholders may experience dilution or the new equity or
convertible debt securities may have rights, preferences or privileges senior to those of existing holders of
class A common stock. If we cannot raise funds on acceptable terms, if and when needed, or if our
charter clients are unable to repay our loans and advances to them, or if we are required to repay any
loans that we have guaranteed, we may not be able to take advantage of future opportunities, grow our
business or respond to competitive pressures or unanticipated requirements, which could seriously harm
our business.

The terms of our credit agreements impose significant restrictions on our business

Under the MLMCI Facility and the New Credit Facility, we are required to comply with certain
financial covenants, including maintaining specified financial ratios. Our ability to meet future financial
ratios and comply with other covenants can be affected by events beyond our control, such as general
economic conditions. Our failure to comply with such covenants would prevent us from borrowing
additional amounts under our credit facilities and could result in a default under those facilities, which
could cause the indebtedness outstanding under the facilities to become immediately due and payable. If
we are unable to meet our debt obligations, we could be forced to restructure or refinance our
indebtedness, seek additional equity capital or sell assets. We may be unable to obtain financing or sell
assets on satisfactory terms, or at all.

We have issued warrants for the purchase of Class A Common Stock in connection with
certain credit facilities that, if exercised, will dilute our current equity holders and could
have an adverse effect on the market price for the shares of Class A Common Stock

Warrants issued in connection with the establishment of the Credit Facilities are for the purchase
of up to 10,710,973 shares of class A common stock at $1 per share. The shares to be issued in
connection with the Warrants equal approximately 16.6% of the total outstanding shares of common stock
of the Company, (including the shares issuable upon exercise of the Warrants but prior to any resale of
such shares by the holders). The issuance of such shares will dilute the current stockholders of the
Company and could have an adverse effect on the market price for the shares of class A common stock.
In addition, the shares issuable upon exercise of the Warrants are being registered pursuant to a
registration statement, and any sales of such shares may have a further adverse effect on the market price
for the shares of the class A common stock.
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We may not be able to recover the property value associated with our termination of the
Edison Corporate Headquarters Project

We previously purchased property in New York, New York for the purchase price of $10 million,
and entered into an agreement with the Museum of African Art to develop the property for a mixed use
project consisting of our new corporate headquarters, a charter school and a facility to house the Museum.
We recently terminated our plans to develop this property and construct new corporate headquarters.
Accordingly, we may choose to sell the property to the Museum or another third party. While we hope to
be able to sell the property at a price equal to or greater than our purchase price, we have no guarantee
that we will be able to do so, and may choose to sell the property at a loss.

We rely on government funds for specific education programs, and our business could
suffer if we fail to comply with rules concerning the receipt and use of the funds

We benefit from funds from federal and state programs to be used for specific educational
purposes. Funding from the federal government under Title I of the Elementary and Secondary Education
Act, which provides federal funds for children from low-income families, accounted for approximately
4% of our gross student funding revenue for fiscal 2002. During the same period, we estimate that
funding from other federal and state programs accounted for approximately an additional 10% of our total
revenue. A number of factors relating to these government programs could lead to adverse effects on our
business and financial results:

e These programs have strict requirements as to eligible students and allowable activities.
If we or our school district and charter board clients fail to comply with the regulations
governing the programs, we or our clients could be required to repay the funds or be
determined ineligible to receive these funds.

e [f the income demographics of a district's population were to change over the life of our
management agreement for a school in the district, resulting in a decrease in Title I
funding for the school, we would recognize less revenue for operating the school.

e Funding from federal and state education programs is allocated through formulas. If
federal or state legislatures or, in some case, agencies were to change the formulas, we
could receive less funding.

e Federal, state and local education programs are subject to annual appropriations of funds.
Federal or state legislatures or local officials could drastically reduce the funding amount
of appropriation for any program, thus decreasing the amount of funding available to us.

e The company's Edison Extra summer school program, which served approximately
35,000 students in Missouri during the summer of 2002, is funded through state summer
school funds. If the Missouri state government fails to maintain current funding levels
for summer school programs, Edison Extra revenue would be adversely affected.

e Most federal education funds are administered through state and local education agencies,
which allot funds to school boards and charter boards. These state and local education
agencies are subject to extensive government regulation concerning their eligibility for
federal funds. If these agencies were declared ineligible to receive federal education
funds, the receipt of federal education funds by our school board or charter board clients
could be delayed, which could in turn delay our payment from our school board and
charter board clients.
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e The federal No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, which includes the Title I program
referenced above, contains a range of new accountability measures for public schools.
Schools that fail to make adequate yearly progress (AYP) toward meeting state standards
may lose some of their student enrollment due to school choice provisions, may be
required to allocate a portion of their Title I funding toward the provision of supplemental
services to some students, and may be subject to state takeover or other forms of district
or state intervention. If schools run by the company fail to make AYP, these new
requirements could adversely affect the company's revenue and/or reputation.

We are subject to extensive government regulation because we benefit from federal
funds, and our failure to comply with government regulations could result in the
reduction or loss of federal education funds

Because we benefit from federal funds, we must also comply with a variety of federal laws and
regulations not directly related to any federal education program, such as federal civil rights laws and
laws relating to lobbying. Our failure to comply with these federal laws and regulations could result in
the reduction or loss of federal education funds. In addition, our management agreements are potentially
covered by federal procurement rules and regulations because our school district and charter board clients
pay us, in part, with funds received from federal programs. Federal procurement rules and regulations
generally require competitive bidding, awarding contracts based on lowest cost and similar requirements.
If a court or federal agency determined that a management agreement was covered by federal
procurement rules and regulations and was awarded without compliance with those rules and regulations,
then the management agreement could be voided and we could be required to repay any federal funds we
received under the management agreement.

Failure of our charter board clients to obtain federal tax-exempt status could jeopardize
the school's charter and restrict our ability to finance the school

Many of our charter school clients apply for federal tax-exempt status. One state in which we
currently operate seven charter schools and hope to open additional charter schools in the future, and one
other state, requires charter schools to secure federal tax-exempt status. One of our charter school clients
in the first state received notice from the Internal Revenue Service of an appealable denial of its
application for federal tax-exempt status. While this charter school client was ultimately successful in
obtaining tax-exempt status, there can be no assurance that other charter school clients will not experience
difficulty in obtaining such status. Any failure to receive or delay in receiving federal tax-exempt status
by a charter school in this state could jeopardize the school's charter and its ability to repay amounts owed
to us. The failure to receive federal tax-exempt status by a charter school in any state could also, among
other things, inhibit that charter school's ability to solicit charitable contributions or participate in tax-
exempt financing.

We earn all of our revenue from public sources and any reduction in general funding
levels for education could hurt our business

All of our revenue is derived from public sources. If general levels of funding for public
education were to decline, the field of school districts in which we could profitably operate schools would
likewise diminish, and our ability to grow by adding new schools would suffer. In addition, our
management agreements generally provide that we bear the risk of lower levels of per-pupil funding,
which would be directly reflected in lower revenue to us, even if our costs do not decline accordingly,
thus adversely affecting our financial results.
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Restrictions on government funding of for-profit school management companies could
hurt our business

Any restriction on the use of federal or state government educational funds by for-profit
companies could hurt our business and our ability to grow. From time to time, a variety of proposals have
been introduced in state legislatures to restrict or prohibit the management of public schools by private,
for-profit entities like us. For example, a recently-passed bill in California prohibits the state department
of education from contracting with a private, for-profit education manager to manage public schools for
which the state assumes control pursuant to a new state educational reform measure. Additionally,
Idaho's charter school law may, subject to interpretation, restrict our ability to manage schools in that
state. To the extent that states or the federal government were to adopt legislation prohibiting for-profit
entities from operating public schools, the market for our services would decline and our business results
could suffer.

The operation of our charter schools depends on the maintenance of the underlying
charter grant

Our charter schools operate under a charter that is typically granted by a state authority to a third-
party charter holder, such as a community group or established non-profit organization. Our management
agreement in turn is with the charter holder. If the state charter authority were to revoke the charter,
which could occur based on actions of the charter holder outside of our control, we would lose the right to
operate that school. In addition, many state charter school statutes require periodic reauthorization.
Charter schools accounted for 33.0% of our gross student funding in fiscal 2001, or approximately $171.0
million. If state charter school legislation were not reauthorized or were substantially altered in a
meaningful number of states, our business and growth strategy would suffer and we could incur additional
losses.

Our stock price has been volatile and we expect it to continue to be volatile in the future

The market price of our class A common stock has fluctuated significantly in response to the risks
discussed above, as well as other factors, some of which are beyond our control. These other factors
include:

e variations in our quarterly operating results;

e changes in securities analysts' estimates of our financial performance;

e changes in the public perception of our schools' academic performance;
e termination or non-renewal of existing management agreements;

e changes in market valuations of similar companies;

e speculation in the press or investment community;

e actions by institutional shareholders;

e pending and potential litigation;

e future sales of our class A common stock or other securities; and

e general stock market volatility.
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Since our class A common stock has been publicly traded, its market price has fluctuated over a
wide range and we expect it to continue to do so in the future.

We have been named in several shareholder class action and shareholders derivative
lawsuits

We have been named in several putative class actions lawsuits filed in the Southern District of
New York, and a few shareholder derivative actions, also filed in New York. We intend to vigorously
defend these lawsuits. However, there can be no assurance that the Company will be successful, and an
adverse resolution of the lawsuits could have a material adverse effect on our financial position and
results of operations in the period in which the lawsuits are resolved. We are not presently able to
reasonably estimate potential losses, if any, related to the lawsuits. Lawsuits may cause defaults under
our material agreements, prevent us from obtaining additional funds under our existing line of credit or
obtain additional financing, and such litigation could result in substantial costs and divert management's
attention and resources.

We may face additional securities litigation or other litigation

In addition to the securities class action litigation currently being brought against us as more fully
described in the risk factor above, we may also in the future be the target of similar litigation. Additional
securities litigation could result in substantial costs and divert management's attention and resources. We
may also face other types of litigation. For example, the Company and a private pension fund were
unable to close a proposed financing transaction and the Company chose instead to do a transaction with
School Services LLC. The Company could face litigation in connection with that decision. While we
intend to vigorously defend against any such lawsuit, there can be no assurance that the Company will be
successful, and an adverse resolution of any lawsuit could have a material adverse effect on our financial
position, shareholder equity, and results of operations in the period in which the lawsuits are resolved.

We must comply with the terms of a settlement agreement entered into by the Company
and the Securities and Exchange Commission

On May 14, 2002, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, pursuant to which the Company agreed to enhance disclosure of its revenue
recognition practices, by adopting a statement of operations presentation that includes a line item for
"Gross Student Funding," as well as full disclosure of all expenses paid by Edison and all expenses paid
by the local districts, and its internal accounting system by creating an Internal Audit Department. The
Company intends to fully comply with the terms and conditions of the settlement agreement. However, if
we fail to comply with the settlement agreement, or are perceived by the Securities and Exchange
Commission to have failed to comply, we may face additional scrutiny from the Commission, which
could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

We may be delisted from the NASDAQ National Market, which could result in a limited
public market for our class A common stock

On August 27, 2002, we received notice from Nasdaq that the price of our class A common stock
had closed below the minimum $1.00 per share for 30 consecutive trading days as required for continued
listing under Nasdaq's marketplace rules. The notification letter stated that we had 90 days, or until
November 25, 2002, to regain compliance with the rule, i.e., for our securities to close above $1.00 for ten
(10) consecutive trading days. In and of itself, the notification letter does not result in delisting; under
Nasdaq's rules, on receipt of a staff determination letter (which the Company has not received), an issuer
may file and argue for an extension or exception to Nasdaq's listing requirements, and the Association
may grant such extensions or exceptions where it deems appropriate. Delisting from the Nasdaq market
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could adversely affect the liquidity and price of our class A common stock and could have a long-term
impact on our ability to raise future capital.

Additionally, Nasdaq's listing requirements provide that companies must have an audit committee
composed of at least three independent directors. On the advice of their legal advisors, three of our
directors who are affiliates of School Services resigned from the board of directors prior to the time that
we and School Services entered into material negotiations regarding the Credit and Security Agreement
between the Company and School Services. Two of these directors were members of the audit
committee. As a result, we currently do not have an audit committee, although we are actively seeking
qualified candidates to serve on our audit committee. Delisting from the Nasdaq National Market could
adversely affect the liquidity and price of our class A common stock and it could have a long-term impact
on our ability to raise future capital.

Anti-takeover provisions of Delaware law and our charter and bylaws could prevent or
delay a change in control

Provisions of Delaware law, our charter and our bylaws could make it more difficult for a third
party to acquire us, even if doing so would be beneficial to our stockholders. These provisions could
limit the price that certain investors might be willing to pay in the future for shares of class A common
stock, and could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of us. These
provisions include:

e the high-vote nature of our class B common stock;

e restrictions on removal of directors, which may only be effected for cause and only by a
vote of the holders of 80% of our class of common stock that elected the director;

e Section 203 of the General Corporation Law of Delaware which could have the effect of
delaying transactions with interested stockholders;

e aprohibition of stockholder action by written consent; and

e procedural and notice requirements for calling and bringing action before stockholder
meetings

Item 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We currently have market risk sensitive instruments related to interest rates. As disclosed in Note
9 of the notes to our financial statements, we had outstanding long-term notes payable of $21.2 million
and $9.8 million at June 30, 2001 and 2002, respectively. Interest rates on the notes are fixed and range
from 9.5% to 18.7% per annum and have terms of 30 to 48 months.

We do not believe that we have significant exposure to changing interest rates on long-term debt
because interest rates for our debt is fixed. We have not undertaken any additional actions to cover
interest rate market risk and are not a party to any other interest rate market risk management activities.

Additionally, we do not have significant exposure to changing interest rates on invested cash,
which was approximately $96.2 million and $40.6 million at June 30, 2001 and June 30, 2002,
respectively. We invest cash mainly in money market accounts and other investment-grade securities.
We do not purchase or hold derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our financial statements together with the related notes and the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP, independent auditors, are set forth in the Index to Financial Statements at Item 14 and incorporated

herein by this reference.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure

None.
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PART III
Certain information required by Part III is omitted from this Annual Report as we intend to file
our definitive Proxy Statement for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on December 5, 2002,
pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, not later than 120 days
after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report, and certain information included in the
Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

(a) Executive Officers and Directors—The information in the section entitled "Executive
Officers and Directors of the Registrant" in Part I hereof is incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Directors—The information in the section entitled "Election of Directors" in the Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

The disclosure required by Item 405 of Regulation S-K is incorporated by reference to the section
entitled "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" in the Proxy Statement.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information in the sections entitled "Compensation of Executive Officers", "Compensation of
Directors" and "Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation" in the Proxy Statement is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The information in the section entitled "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management" in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information in the section entitled "Certain Transactions" in the Proxy Statement is
incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statements Schedules and Reports on Forms 8-K
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Form 10-K:

1. Financial Statements. The following consolidated financial statements of Edison Schools
Inc. are filed as part of this Form 10-K on the pages indicated:

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page
Report of Independent ACCOUNLANLES ..........ccueeieriirierieeierterieieeieeie ettt ettt et sseesteseeeeesaeenseneens 64
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2001 (restated) and 2002...........ccceeeerieecieeeieenreeenenne. 65
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended June 30, 2000
(restated), 2001 (restated) and 2002.........ccoieevieiiieiiieieeeecie ettt et et ereereesre e beebeenraens 66
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the years
ended June 30, 2000 (restated), 2001 (restated) and 2002 ...........cceeeeeriererienierieeeee e 67
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended June 30, 2000
(restated), 2001 (restated) and 2002.........cceiecvieiiieiiieieeieecee ettt et ete e ereeteesraesbeebeereens 68
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ............coceoereriiriinienienieineeneneeeneseesee e 69
2. Schedules are omitted as the required information is inapplicable or the information is
presented in the financial statements or related notes.
3. Exhibits. The exhibits listed in the Exhibits Index immediately preceding such exhibits

are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
(b) Reports on Form 8-K

On May 15, 2002, we filed a report on Form 8-K announcing that on May 14, 2002, we issued a
press release regarding our financial results for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2002 and a press
release regarding the settlement of an investigation by the Securities and Exchange Commission into our
accounting practices and policies.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized on the 2nd day of October, 2002.

EDISON SCHOOLS INC.
BY: /s/ H. Christopher Whittle

H. Christopher Whittle
Chief Executive Officer and Director
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
To the Board of Directors of Edison Schools Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated
statements of operations, changes in stockholders' equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Edison Schools Inc. (the "Company") at June 30, 2001 and 2002, and
the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30,
2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management; our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these
statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As more fully discussed in Note 3, the Company has restated its consolidated financial statements
for fiscal 2000 and 2001.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
New York, New York

September 5, 2002, except for Note 20,
for which the date is September 30, 2002
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EDISON SCHOOLS INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents .........cc.ccccecevvererininennincnncncnee
ACCOUNtS TECEIVADIE ......ccoveeieieeceiee e
Notes receivable, NEt.....ccc.veeiiiveiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e
Other 1eCeiVabIEs ........cooviieiieieee e
Other CUITent @SSELS......c..eeeeuvieeeeeeeeiee et

Total CUITENT @SSELS ....vvvveeiiieieeeeeeeeeeee e

Property and equipment, NEt ..........ocevveererirencrierineneeeeeeceeen
Restricted Cash .......coocieviiieiieceee e
Notes receivable, net, less current portion ............ccccceeeeereeeenneene
Other receivables, less current portion ...........ccceeceeveereeseeeeneenne
Long-term receivables ..........occoeveriniiniininiirnceeeee
TNVESTMENLES ..eovviiiiiiiieiieieeeee e e
OhET @SSELS ...eeuvevieiieiieiieiesie ettt ettt ettt ettt st esesaeeneens

TOtAl @SSELS .evvvieiieeeieeeeteee e

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Short-term BOITOWINGS .......cceevvirieriieieiieieeierie et eeeeeeseeeiens
Current portion of long-term debt .........ccccocevinininininininenns
Accounts Payable ........occovieiiiiiiieee e
ACCIUCA EXPENSES ..venvinrerieiienieeiieieeeeeteeteeee st etesteeneessesneeeesaeas

Total current HabIlitIES .......ccoeevviiemieeeieeeeeeeeeeee e

Long-term debt, less current portion .......c..cecceceeceeeeeveeieneencniennenn
Stockholders' notes payable ..........cccocevvrieninienineee e
Other Habilities .......ccccoeverieriiiiiininnccce e

Total HabIlItIEs ....veveiieriiiiiieiieee e

Minority interest in SUbSIAIary ........cccocvveveveniniencnenenenencenen

Commitments and contingencies (Note 17)
Stockholders' Equity:

Class A common, par value $.01; 150,000,000 shares authorized;
49,249,005 and 52,018,855 shares issued and outstanding in 2001
and 2002, 1eSPECtiVEly .......cccvievievieieiiiiiiinireeereeeeeseeee

Class B common, par value $.01; 5,000,000 shares

authorized; 2,433,126 and 1,805,132 shares issued and outstanding

in 2001 and 2002, reSpectively .......cceevereerenerieneeieeeeieeene
Additional paid-in capital..........ccccecvveririnininininncee
Unearned stock-based compensation .............ccecceeeeevveneeceeneennenne.
Accumulated deficit ........coevereniriirinnn
Total stockholders' €qUItY .......ccccceveeiereeiierieereee e
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity ..........cccccevvveieruennee

June 30,

2001
(Restated)

2002

§ 96,195,471

$ 40,647,746

62,925,703 68,589,011
7,761,724 12,480,667
8,751,450 9,551,760
3,067,695 8,665,897

178,702,043 139,935,081
119,231,169 111,105,656
8,523,630 6,714,733
53,811,652 68,411,821
3,389,757 231,335
4,002,719 26,460,798
7,768,342 1,250,000
19,068,868 27,266,647
$394,498,180  $ 381,376,071
$ — $ 34,000,000
17,669,020 18,363,640
19,498,283 24,686,391
29,803,715 50,556,576
66,971,018 127,606,607
21,244,179 9,806,955
6,610,594 6,604,220
825,492 2,487,570
95,651,283 146,505,352
479,460 2,486,499
492,490 520,189
24331 18,051
470,807,570 489,279,231
(2,386,678) (823,123)
(170,570,276)  (256,610,128)
298,367,437 232,384,220

$ 394,498,180

$ 381,376,071

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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EDISON SCHOOLS INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended June 30,
2000 2001 2002
(Restated) (Restated)
Gross Student Funding.........c.cccoeveeveininincininineeennn, $224 577,591  $375,817,681  $ 520,294,982
NEL TEVENUEC.....veeeviereeeeee ettt e eeeere e $208,971,421  $350,507,972  $465,058,357
Education and operating expenses:
Direct site expenses
Company paid.........cceceveeverieneeiereee e 93,086,901 162,028,426 211,438,141
Client paid........ccveeveeierieieieieeeeee e 83,908,636 129,171,906 178,702,235
Administration, curriculum and development .......... 54,232,425 57,850,701 71,230,002
Impairment charges..........ccoceveeverinieneeieseeeeeneen — — 36,878,442
Depreciation and amortization ..........c.cceeeeeeeeneeenennne. 20,905,833 33,594,738 37,395,770
Pre-opening eXpenses ........occeeeevvereenieneenieneenieeeenees 8,371,923 8,641,021 6,152,694
Total education and operating expenses................ 260,505,718 391,286,792 541,797,284
Loss from Operations...........cceeeereereeneesieneenieeeeseeenees (51,534,297) (40,778,820) (76,738,927)
Other income (expense):
Interest iINCOME .......ccevveereieieiieieseeeeee e 6,317,432 9,657,904 9,434,911
INtEreSt EXPENSE ....vvevveeeieeieieeiieie et (3,433,759) (5,417,357) (6,200,307)
Equity in loss of unconsolidated entity......................... (1,975,257) (291,400) —
L 0SS ON INVEStMENL ......eoueeeeeeieiieiieie e — — (6,774,742)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets.........cccceeveereereeeennnnne — (1,149,263) (4,783,616)
OMNET .o (3,962) 70,540 62,475
Total Other.......cooevveieieieieeeeeeeee e 904,454 2,870,424 (8,261,279)
Loss before provision for state and local taxes ............ (50,629,843) (37,908,396) (85,000,2006)
Provision for state and local taxes ..........ccccceevuvreennennee. — (603,328) (1,039,646)

NEELOSS wnvvinieviierieiereetetetrt ettt eb e s senis $(50,629,843) $(38,511,724)

$ (86,039,852)

Per common share data:

Basic and diluted net loss per share ............cccocuen.e.. $ (1.8 $ (0.8 $ (1.6
Weighted average shares of common stock

outstanding used in computing basic and

diluted net loss per share..............ccccoevvvevereerevrnnne. 27,685,203 47,966,741 53,564,244

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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EDISON SCHOOLS INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2000, 2001 AND 2002

Preferred Stock Common Stock

Additional Unearned Accumulated
Series A-G Series A-I Class A Class B Paid-In Capital Stock-Based Deficit Total
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount R d) Comp ion R d) (Restated)

3alances, June 30, 1999 28,211,17 $1,58¢ 3,100 $3 $ 144,61( $ (5.83¢ $ (81,426 $ 58
[ssuance of stock warrants 40(
[ssuance of Series F preferred stock, net..........coceveevceinniniccnn 3,393,61 3 41,707 41,
[ssuance of Series I common stock, net
[ssuance of Class A common stock in an initial public

offering 6,80( 6¢ 109,63:Z 109.
Stock warrants exercised 59 H 4:
Stock options exercised 82¢ ¢ 7. 74¢
Deferred compensation related to stock options..........cccccccueurunnee 1,26( (1,26(
Stock-based compensation 3,937 3
Variable stock-based compensation charge.............ccccevveivieueunnne 7,89¢ 7
Conversion of the Series A through G Preferred stock

and Series A through I common stock to Class A and

Class B common stock (31,604,79 (1,621 (3,10 A3 31,24( 31 3,47 3¢ 1,30«
“ractional Class A and Class B common shares issued

due to rounding during conversion 1! (1!
Zonversion of Class B to Class A common stock. 8( (8(
Net loss for the year ended June 30, 2000 ......... (50,62¢ (50
3alances, June 30, 2000 - 39,55¢ $39: 3,44¢ $3¢ $307,601 $(3,16( $ (132,05¢ $172
[ssuance of stock warrants 582
[ssuance of Class A common stock in secondary

offerings 6,88 6¢ 151,661 151
Stock warrants exercised 84. { 5,08: 5.
Stock options exercised 95 ¢ 5,03: 5.
Zonversion of Class B to Class A common stock. 1,01¢ I (1,01! (I
Deferred compensation related to stock options.... 1,09° (1,097

Stock-based compensation charge 1,871 1

Variable stock-based compensation credit.. (25: (
Net loss for the year ended June 30, 2001 .. (38,511 38
3alances, June 30, 2001 - 49,24¢ $49. 2,43: $2¢ $ 470,807 $(2,38¢ $ (170,57( $ 298,
3usiness acquisition 1,36( 1: 31,29¢ 31,
Adjustment of secondary offerings Cost..........ccccveevceerrinincereunnnns 261
Stock warrants exercised 56: H 431
Stock options exercised 21 : 1,43¢ 1
Conversion of Class B to Class A common stocK..........ccccceununnee 62 ( (62" (t
Reduction in deferred compensation related to stock

options, net (567 56"
Stock-based compensation 99¢
Variable stock-based compensation credit.............coccceuririvieununnnee (14,38« (14
Net loss for the year ended June 30, 2002 ............cccooovviiricinnnnnes $ (86,03¢ $ (86.
3alances, June 30, 2002 - $ $ $52,01¢ $52( $1,80¢ St $489,27¢ $ (82 $(256,61( $232

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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EDISON SCHOOLS INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended June 30,
2000 2001
(Restated) (Restated) 2002
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (50,629,843) $(38,511,724) $(86,039,852)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 19,310,639 31,561,703 37,291,909
Amortization of contract and deferred charter Costs ...........cccceuviriiiiiiniccinnns
1,579,061 2,793,035 2,653,022
Amortization of original issue discount (1,763,254) (2,015,164) (109,245)
Write-off of accounts receivable — 769,643 —
Stock-based compensation 11,832,447 1,617,353 (13,337,960)
Write-off of notes receivable — — 4,079,108
Provision for notes receivable — — 5,542,192
Provision for fixed asset write-off. (153,000) (154,115) —
Curriculum and equipment write-off 309,741 4,187,079 623,040
Loss (gain) on disposal of property and equipment ............cocoeveveveeeuecreninennnnns (268) 1,149,263 4,783,616
Interest on notes receivable (123,913) (418,129) (1,872,539)
Equity loss and write-down of investment in unconsolidated entity................ 1,975,257 291,400 6,774,742
Impairment charges — — 36,878,441
Minority interest in net loss of subsidiary. — (70,540) (62,475)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts and other receivable (22,976,095) (38,001,934) (29,692,923)
Other current assets (2,180,627) 340,852 (2,315,611)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,294,561 9,500,208 9,436,232
Other liabilities 95,902 251,462 1,662,078
Cash used in operating activities (41,429,392) (26,709,608) (23,706,225)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions to property and equipment (57,462,036) (46,950,918) (17,123,302)
Proceeds from disposition of property and equipment, net 2,057,664 10,700,785 446,254
Proceeds from notes receivable and advances due from charter schools.. 2,782,474 14,840,866 15,037,975
Notes receivable and advances due from charter schools . (18,725,412) (46,355,359) (41,943,392)
Investment in unconsolidated entity (10,000,000) — —
Business acquisition, net — (3,035,000) 149,257
Other assets (7,767,634) (6,609,939) (4,631,167)
Cash used in investing activitie (89,114,944) (77,409,565) (48,064,375)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net borrowings under line of credit — — 34,000,000
Proceeds from issuance of stock and warrants 165,609,859 173,011,926 1,823,073
Costs in connection with equity financing (13,362,202) (11,145,844) —
Costs in connection with debt financing — — (1,301,666)
Cash from minority investee — 550,000 2,069,514
Proceeds from notes payable 13,001,328 8,898,445 —
Payments on notes payable and capital leases (9,027,134) (18,507,760) (21,032,184)
Restricted cash (955,887) (5,136,327) 664,138
Cash provided by financing activities 155,265,964 147,670,440 16,222,875
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 24,721,628 43,551,267 (55,547,725)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 27,922,576 52,644,204 96,195,471
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 52,644,204 $96,195,471 $ 40,647,746
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the periods for:
Interest $ 3,554,350 $ 5,545,060 $ 5,935,825
Taxes $730,611 $ 779,847
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Obligations assumed in connection with new contracts...........ccceeeeerererrrereerereeenes $ 2,694,293 $ 6,500,000
Property and equipment acquired under capitalized lease obligations... $ 18,853,332 $10,252,417
Additions to property and equipment included in accounts payable.. $ 7,666,235 $ 2,543,497 $ 5,788,352

Additions to property and equipment financed by debt $ 10,770,375

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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EDISON SCHOOLS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30 2000, 2001 AND 2002

1. Description of Business

Edison Schools Inc. (the "Company") (formerly known as The Edison Project Inc. and
Subsidiaries) manages elementary and secondary public schools under contracts with school districts and
charter schools located in 22 states, and Washington, D.C. The Company opened its first four schools in
the fall of 1995, and, for the year ended June 30, 2002, the Company operated 133 schools with
approximately 74,000 students.

The Company provides the education program, recruits and manages personnel, and maintains
and operates the facilities at each school it manages. The Company also assists charter schools in
obtaining facilities and the related financing.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries,
including Edison Receivables Company LLC ("Edison Receivables") established in fiscal 2002, after the
elimination of intercompany transactions.

Liquidity and Risk

Since inception, the Company has incurred losses from operations and has had negative cash flow
from operations. The cash needs of the business have been financed through a combination of debt and
equity financing. In fiscal 2002, the Company entered into a revolving credit facility for $35 million.
The Company entered into additional financings subsequent to year end (see Note 20). The terms of these
financings require the Company to comply with certain financial covenants. The Company believes it
will be able to comply with the terms of such covenants based on its forecasted operating plan for fiscal
2003.

In order to achieve its operating plan, the Company plans to improve the gross site contribution
margins at the individual schools its manages while maintaining educational quality and continuing to
reduce central expenses as a percentage of net revenue. The Company has undertaken a "reengineering"
process to increase efficiency and help attain profitability while improving client service. Part of this
initiative includes the streamlining of processes within the Company, reductions in personnel and the
implementation of cost control measures.

In addition to the above, the Company is dependent upon the continuation of its school
management agreements for recurring revenues and growth. Some of the management agreements may
be terminated at will by the school district or charter board. The Company may also seek the early
termination of, or not seek to renew, a limited number of management agreements in any year.

If the Company is unable to meet its plan, it may not be able to meet the terms of the financings

discussed above, resulting in the borrowings becoming due. If this were to occur, the Company may be
forced to restructure or refinance its indebtedness, seek additional equity capital, sell assets or reduce its
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EDISON SCHOOLS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(CONTINUED)

growth plan. The Company cannot be certain that it will be able to obtain additional financing on
favourable terms, if at all.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, time
deposits, highly liquid debt securities and money market accounts, generally all with original maturities of
three months or less. The Company maintains funds in accounts in excess of federally insured limits;
however, management believes that it minimizes risk by maintaining deposits in high quality financial
institutions.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Routine maintenance and repairs are expensed as
incurred. The cost of major additions, replacements, and improvements are capitalized. Gains and losses
from sales or retirements of property and equipment are included in earnings for the period. Depreciation
is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets (30 years for
buildings, the remaining lease term or useful life, which ever is shorter, for leasehold improvements and
3-5 years for all other items).

From time to time, the Company purchases or renovates existing buildings to ready them for
charter school use. It is the Company's intention to recapture purchase or renovation costs through sale to
a third party or through the sale or lease of the building to the charter school board. Buildings or
renovations completed and ready for charter school use are depreciated on a straight line basis over the
estimated useful life of the building. The Company's policy is not to capitalize interest costs on charter
school renovation expenditures since the sale transaction does not provide for recovery of interest
expense.

Long-Lived Assets

The carrying amount of long-lived assets is reviewed on a regular basis for the existence of facts
or circumstances, both internally and externally, that suggest impairment. The Company determines if
the carrying amount of a long-lived asset is impaired based on anticipated undiscounted cash flows before
interest from the use of the asset. In the event of impairment, a loss is recognized based on the amount by
which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value of the asset. Fair value is determined based on
appraised value of the assets or the anticipated cash flows from the use of the asset, discounted at a rate
commensurate with the risk involved.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of cash held in escrow in compliance with certain debt agreements, credit
issued for the benefit of certain technology suppliers, collateral for certain insurance policies, amounts for
guarantee of contract performance in certain states and certain amounts restricted for use in the start-up of
future Edison schools. The Company classifies restricted cash balances as current and non-current based
on terms of related agreements that govern the use of the restricted cash.
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EDISON SCHOOLS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(CONTINUED)

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are principally earned from contractual agreements to manage and operate contract and
charter schools. The Company also earns revenue from summer school and after-school program fees.
The Company recognizes revenue for each managed school over the period we perform our service, pro
rata over the typical school year, eleven months from August through June, in accordance with Staff
Accounting Bulletin 101, "Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements."

Most of our management agreements provide that we earn a fee based upon the number of
children that attend our schools and, therefore, we only earn revenue to the extent students attend our
schools. In most instances, there is a 'base' fee per pupil and several 'categorical' fee components paid
only for students in certain categories (e.g., low-income, English as a second language, etc.). In some of
our charter schools, our fee has a fixed component and variable component. Even in contracts where we
have fixed fee component, we have generally agreed to forego or reduce our fee if there is a budget
shortfall at the charter school.

The Company is generally responsible to its clients for all aspects of the management of its
schools including but not limited to the: academic achievement of the students; selection, training and
compensation of school personnel; procurement of curriculum and equipment necessary for operations of
the school; and the safe operation of the school facilities. Gross student funding represents gross
contractual funding for our schools before all costs. Net revenue represents gross student funding less
costs that we are not primarily obligated to pay. The Company follows the guidance of the Emerging
Issues Task Force ("EITF") 99-19, "Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent," and
EITF 01-14 "Income Statement Characterization of Reimbursements Received for 'Out-of-Pocket'
Expenses Incurred". regarding classification of revenues. Specifically, the Company recognizes revenues
net of expenses that the Company is not primarily obligated to pay. For the fiscal years ended June 30,
2000, 2001 and 2002, the difference between gross student funding and net revenues consisted of the
following costs for which the Company is not primarily obligated to pay:

Years Ended June 30,
(In Thousands)
2000 2001 2002
Gross student funding $224,578 $375,818 $520,295
Personnel costs (2,169) (7,000) (22,421)
Non-personnel costs™ (13,438) . (18,310) ... (32,816)
Net revenue $208,971 $350,508 $465,058

* Includes expenses related to services such as facility maintenance, utilities, student transportation and
others for which we are not primarily obligated to pay.
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EDISON SCHOOLS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(CONTINUED)

The Company often purchases certain essential services, such as transportation, from third parties
and/or from our clients. In addition, teachers in schools generally remain employees of our clients and
are often paid through the clients' payroll systems. Where such arrangements exist, the client deducts the
amounts they have expended for staff salaries and/or purchased services from the amount owed to the
Company when remitting payment. These amounts are disclosed as "Direct Site Expenses—client paid"
on the Company's Statements of Operations.

The Company recognizes per-pupil funding from local, state and federal sources, including Title I
and special education funding. Significant management estimates and assumptions are required to
determine these funding levels, particularly in interim periods. On a quarterly basis, the Company records
adjustments to revenue, if necessary, for enrollment fluctuations, changes to per-pupil funding estimates,
and changes to estimates for federal and state categorical grant funding. Anticipated losses on contracts
are charged to earnings when identified.

Philanthropy

The Company recognizes a receivable from a philanthropic foundation, included in other
receivables, for curriculum and technology purchased on behalf of district clients in California which
have been granted funds from the foundation.

If the Company cannot arrange for philanthropic entities to donate approximately $10.5 million in
total to a client, the Company will be required to make such donation itself. (See note 17, Commitment
and Contingencies—Fund Raising Agreements).

Pre-Opening Costs

The Company expenses certain pre-opening training, personnel and other costs, which are
incurred prior to the fiscal year in which operations commence at new school sites.

Notes Receivable

Notes receivable are recorded at face value, less an original issue discount if the note has a less
than fair value stated rate of interest. The original issue discount is calculated using the difference
between the stated rate and the Company's rate of interest associated with the cost of funds for the period
in which the note is issued. It is management's policy to recognize any note as uncollectible when, based
on its assessment of events and circumstances, the collection of the note is not reasonably assured. If it is
probable that the Company will not collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the note,
the Company would provide an allowance for the loan using the methodology under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") 114 "Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan." An
allowance is established when the estimated discounted cash flows of the loan are lower than the carrying
value of that loan. Interest income is generally recognized on an accrual basis. The Company evaluates
loans for which an allowance for loss has been established and recognizes interest income to the extent
interest payments are not past due in excess of ninety days.

Deferred Charter Costs

Deferred charter costs arise when the Company provides cash to certain charter schools, which
issue non-interest bearing notes to the Company in return. In these situations, the Company discounts the
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non-interest bearing notes and records the corresponding discount as deferred charter costs. These costs
represent the accounting recognition given to the Company's right to operate the charter school. Deferred
charter costs are included in other assets and are amortized on a straight line basis over the same period as
the life of the related contract.

Net deferred charter costs were $317,864 and $411,018 and accumulated amortization was
$4,084,913 and $4,188,774 as of June 30, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

For financial reporting purposes, the Company accounts for stock-based compensation in
accordance with the intrinsic value method of accounting prescribed by Accounting Principles Board
("APB") No. 25 "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees." In accordance with this method, no
compensation expense is recognized in the accompanying financial statements in connection with the
awarding of stock option grants to employees provided that, as of the grant date, all terms associated with
the award are fixed and the fair value of the company's stock, as of the grant date, is not greater than the
amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock as defined. To the extent that stock options are
granted to employees with variable terms or if the fair value of the Company's stock as of the
measurement date is greater than the amount an employee must pay to acquire the stock, then the
Company will recognize compensation expense.

Adpvertising Expenses

Advertising costs consist primarily of print media and brochures and are expensed when the
related advertising occurs. Advertising expense for the years ended June 30, 2000, 2001, and 2002
amounted to approximately $1.7 million, $1.8 million and $862,000 respectively.

Income Taxes

Deferred taxes represent the tax effects of differences between the financial reporting and tax
bases of the Company's assets and liabilities at the enacted tax rates in effect for the years in which the
differences are expected to reverse. The Company evaluates the recoverability of deferred tax assets and
establishes a valuation allowance when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred
tax assets will not be realized. Income tax expense consists of the tax payable for the period and the
change during the period in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments, including cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, short-term borrowings, accounts payable and accrued liabilities,
approximate fair value because of their short maturities. The carrying amount of the Company's notes
receivable, in the aggregate, capital leases and other equipment financing obligations approximates the
fair value of such instruments based upon management's best estimate of interest rates that would be
available to the Company for similar financial instruments at June 30, 2002.
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Net Loss Per Share

In accordance with SFAS 128, "Earnings per Share," basic earnings per share is computed using
the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per
share is computed using the weighted average number of common and common stock equivalent shares
outstanding during the period. Common stock equivalent shares, such as convertible preferred stock,
stock options, and warrants, have been excluded from the computation, as their effect is antidilutive for
all periods presented.

The pro forma basic and diluted net loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss by the
weighted average number of shares of common stock assuming conversion of convertible preferred stock
outstanding during the period under the if-converted method. Each outstanding share of common and
preferred stock automatically converted into 0.45 shares of class A common stock and 0.05 shares of
Class B Common Stock in connection with the Company's initial public offering in fiscal 2000.

The calculation of basic and fully diluted net loss per share for the year ended June 30, 2000 is as
follows:

INEELOSS -ttt ettt ettt ettt sttt b et bt e st ne e $(50,629,843)
Series A-I Common Stock outstanding at beginning of period, converted to

Class A and B Common StOCK .......cccceevereriririninininiciecieteceenesese e 3,107,356
Add:
Weighted average effect of issuance of Class A and Class B Common Stock

through exercise of options and Warrants .........c..ceccececevererenenerienenenenenennens 653,552

Weighted average effect of conversion of Series A-F Preferred and Non-Voting
Series G Preferred outstanding at the beginning of period to Class A and B

COMIMON STOCK .evviiiiieiiie ettt ettt e e et e e e eenaa e e s s enaaeeeesnaeeas 17,574,172
Weighted average effect of conversion of Series F Preferred issued during the

period to Class A and B Common Stock ..........cccoeeeierieiiinienenieeeeeeeeeee 2,114,058
Weighted average effect of Class A and Class B Common Stock issued in

conjunction with the Company's initial public offering .........ccccccocevvevvvveveeeeee 4,236,065
Weighted average shares of common stock outstanding used in computing basic

and fully diluted net 10ss per Share ..........cccoeeeieiieienieeee e 27,685,203

Basic and fully diluted net loss per share..........ccoccoeeevinieninienieeee e $ (1.83)
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The calculation of basic and fully diluted net loss per share for the year ended June 30, 2001 is as
follows:

INELLOSS eetiiiieieieeit ettt ettt ettt ettt sttt ettt e b e et ese e s e eb e b e st eseeseebe b enaeneeseese s enseneens $(38,511,724)
Class A Common stock outstanding at beginning of period ..........cccccevvevvrvereennne 39,558,746
Class B Common stock outstanding at beginning of period ...........cccccevvevierrreennnne. 3,448,004
Add:
Issuance of Class A Common stock (on a weighted average basis) ........c.ccoeceervennnne 5,974,982
Issuance (conversion) of Class B Common stock (on a weighted average basis) ...... (1,014,991)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding used in computing basic and

diluted net 0SS PEr ShATE .......cc.ooiiiiiiiieiii e 47,966,741

Basic and diluted net 10Ss per Share ...........coccoeievirieiinierce e $ (0.80)

The calculation of basic and fully diluted net loss per share for the year ended June 30, 2002 is as
follows:

INEE LOSS ettt et e et e e e st e e et e e s et e sateseateeera e e saeesrteeenaeesaees $(86,039,852)
Class A Common stock outstanding at beginning of period ..........cccccevvevveviereennnne 49,249,005
Class B Common stock outstanding at beginning of period ...........cccccovveviervreennene. 2,433,126
Add:
Issuance of Class A Common stock (on a weighted average basis).........cccceecvevevennnne 2,510,107
Issuance (conversion) of Class B Common stock (on a weighted average basis) . (627,994)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding used in computing basic and

diluted Net 10SS PEI SNATE .........ouveieieeeceeieeeeee e 53,564,244

Basic and diluted net 10ss per Share ...........ccccoevevieieriniereeceecee e $(1.61)

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Significant estimates include revenues, certain district paid school expenses,
recoverability of long-lived assets and notes receivable, liabilities incurred from workers' compensation,
commercial and other claims and losses on school contracts. Other estimates include useful lives of
property and equipment and the deferred income tax valuation allowance. Actual results could differ
from these estimates.

Segments
Management evaluates its operating performance as a single segment. The Company's Chief
Operating Officer reviews school performance based on a comprehensive, whole school approach. Real

estate, after school programs, summer school programs, food services and various other activities are not
evaluated on an individual basis.
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Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In January 2002, the Emerging Issues Task Force issued EITF 01-14 "Income Statement
Characterization of Reimbursements Received for "Out-of-Pocket" Expenses Incurred." EITF 01-14
clarifies EITF 99-19, "Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent," that provides
guidance on whether revenues should be presented gross or net of certain costs. After consultation with
its independent auditors, the Company believes that EITF 01-14 should be interpreted to require it to
present as revenue and expense only those direct site expenses that the Company is primarily obligated to

pay.

In accordance with the transition provisions of EITF 01-14, the Company adopted EITF 01-14
effective January 1, 2002 and has reclassified all historical periods to conform with the new presentation
and, in the interest of transparency, added a "Gross student funding" line to its statement of operations.
Edison contracts with districts and charter boards to operate public schools and under such contracts
Edison is entitled to funding from local, state and federal sources, including Title I and special
educational funding, which represents gross student funding. Gross student funding is not revenue as
defined by generally accepted accounting principles and represents the gross contractual funding for the
Company's schools before all expenses.

In November 2001, the Emerging Issues Task Force issued EITF 01-09, "Accounting for
Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer." EITF 01-09 addresses the appropriate income
statement characterization of consideration given by a vendor to a customer, specifically whether that
consideration should be presented in the vendor's income statements as a reduction of revenue or as an
expense. The Company determined that consideration given to two customers was, in effect, an
adjustment of the Company's contract price and should be accounted for as a reduction in revenue rather
than as an expense subsequent to the promulgation of EITF 01-09. In accordance with the transition
provisions of EITF 01-09, the Company adopted EITF 01-09 effective January 1, 2002 and has
reclassified all historical periods to conform with the new presentation.

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets." This statement defines the accounting and reporting for the impairment and disposal of
long-lived assets and is effective for the Company on July 1, 2002. The Company does not anticipate that
the adoption of SFAS 144 will have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 146, "Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or
Disposal Activities". This statement defines the accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or
disposal activities and is effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002.
The Company does not anticipate that the adoption of SFAS 146 will have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Reclassification

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2000 and 2001 financial statements to conform to
the current year presentation.
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3. Restatement

In connection with the annual review of the Company's financial statements, the Company
determined the need to restate certain items of its balance sheets and statements of operations to properly
reflect certain changes to shareholder notes receivable, stockholders' equity, interest income and
compensation expense in fiscal 2000 and 2001.

In November 1999, the Company's CEO exercised options to purchase 725,000 shares of
common stock at $3.00 per share through the issuance of a promissory note for $2,175,000. In addition,
the Company loaned $4,445,700 in November 1999 and $1,248,500 in April 2000 to the CEO to pay
estimated income taxes resulting from the transaction. These notes mature five years from their date of
issuance. In the past, the Company accounted for the transaction as an option exercise and carried the
loans as notes receivable on its balance sheets and recognized periodic interest income. The notes were
issued with recourse solely to the shares exercised and contain a floating rate of interest. Therefore, the
Company has determined that it is more appropriate to treat the options as not having been exercised and
account for them as a variable stock award pursuant to the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force
Issue 95-16, "Accounting for Stock Compensation Arrangements with Employer Loan Features under
APB Opinion 25." Accordingly, the Company has restated its financial statements to reflect
compensation in the form of a charge or credit to operations and an offsetting adjustment to additional
paid-in capital for periodic changes in the market value of the 725,000 common shares subject to exercise,
until such notes are paid. In addition, the loans related to estimated income taxes have been restated to be
expensed when issued. Interest income previously recognized under the notes has been reversed. Interest
received under the notes will be credited to additional paid-in capital.

In connection with the restatement, the Company recognized, in fiscal 2000, a compensation
charge of $13,589,000 and a reduction in interest income of $450,829. In fiscal 2001, the market value of
the Company's common stock decreased from $23.19 per share at the beginning of year to $22.84 per
share at June 30, 2001. As a result, the Company recognized a compensation credit of $253,751 and a
reduction in interest income previously provided of $684,834. In fiscal 2002, the market price of the
Company's common stock declined from $22.84 per share at the beginning of the year to a value below
the exercise price of $3.00 per share by year end. Accordingly, the remaining amount of compensation
expense recognized in prior years, including a portion related to fiscal 1999, of $14,384,005 was reversed
and no interest income was recognized for the year.
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The table below details the effect on the June 30, 2000 and 2001 consolidated financial
statements of the restatement (dollars in thousands):

2000 2001

As Reported  As Restated As Reported As Restated

Balance sheets:
Shareholder notes receivable:

ASSEL o $ 8,802 $ 2,781 $9,452 $2,936
EQUILY oo (2,300) -- (2,489) --
Additional paid-in capital ...........cceeeeneene. 301,881 307,601 465,341 470,808
Accumulated deficit ........ccooevvvvviviiiininnnnnnn. 118,018 132,059 156,099 170,570
Stockholders' eqUIty .......ccccovevevrieririenene 178,833 172,813 304,883 298,367

Statements of operations:
Administration, curriculum and

development expenses .............. 40,643 54,232 58,104 57,851
Interest INCOME ......oovvvveeiiviiiiieeeieiieeeeeene 6,768 6,317 10,343 9,658
NEL1OSS eviieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 36,590 50,630 38,081 38,512

4. Notes Receivable

The Company provides financing in the form of interest and non-interest bearing loans and
advances to charter school boards to assist in the purchase or renovation of charter school facilities.
Certain of the loans are evidenced by notes and other advances which are made in concert with a
management contract or without fixed repayment terms. In order for the notes to be repaid, the Company
generally assists charter school boards in obtaining third party lender financing. Often third party
financing requires the Company to guarantee loans on behalf of these charter schools. A default by any
charter school under a credit facility that is guaranteed by the Company may result in a claim against the
Company for the full amount of the borrowings (see Note 17).

Of the approximately $80.9 million in notes receivable, net at June 30, 2002, approximately $61.1
million was collateralized and the remaining balance of $19.8 million was uncollateralized and, in some
cases, subordinated to other senior debt. Although the Company intends to refinance these notes, should
the Company be required to foreclose on the collateral to these notes, it may not be able to liquidate such
collateral for proceeds sufficient to cover the notes.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company has written-down a note receivable of
approximately $4.0 million related to a discontinued new school project. Additionally, as a result of the
difficult credit environment affecting the Company's ability to arrange third party lender financing in the
fourth quarter of 2002, coupled with the credit risk of specific charter school notes and management's
intention to accelerate the refinancing of individual notes with third party lenders, the Company has
determined that it will not collect all of the amounts due pursuant to the contractual terms of the notes and
has established an allowance for loan losses of approximately $5.5 million. These amounts are included
in administration, curriculum and development expense in the statements of operations. The allowance
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for loan losses applies to notes receivable with an outstanding balance, at June 30, 2002, of $54.6 million.
There were no charge-offs during the quarter.

Notes receivable consist of the following:

June 30,
2002 2001

Notes receivable due from charter schools (a) ...........c.c.eeuene.. $ 48,616,056 $ 86,434,680
Other financings due from charter schools (b)............ccceeuue.... 12,957,320 -
Allowance for 10an 10SSES ........cceevereerierierienieiereee e -- (5,542,192)

61,573,376 80,892,488
Less, current portion™............cceeceeieiereenieneeienieeieseeee s (7,761,724) (12,480,667)
Total NOteS TECEIVADIE. ........ocveeviieeieeceeeeeeceeeeeeeeeee e $53,811,652 $68,411,821

*  Includes $1,180,394 of the allowance for loan losses in fiscal 2002.

(a) Notes receivable due from charter schools includes interest bearing notes at interest rates ranging from 7% to
10.5% per annum. Management believes that the stated rates reflect the fair market rates for these notes. The
notes amounted to $43,287,621 and $77,470,044 at June 30, 2001 and 2002, respectively, and mature at various
dates through the year 2005.

Notes receivable due from charter schools also include discounted and non-interest bearing notes with an
aggregate face value of $5,648,025 and $9,371,773 at June 30, 2001 and 2002, respectively, less unamortized
imputed discount of $319,590 and $407,137 at June 30, 2001 and 2002, respectively. Interest imputed on these
notes ranges from 8% to 10% per annum. This imputed rate is management's estimate of the fair market interest
rate for these loans based on the Company's estimated borrowing rate at the time of the loan which ranged from
approximately 8.5% to 10% and management's assessment of the incremental risk associated with these loans.
The notes mature at various dates through the year 2006.

(b) Other financings due from charter schools were converted into non-interest bearing notes receivable in fiscal
2002. These advances have been discounted at a rate of 12% over the expected period of refinancing, consistent
with the treatment of non-interest bearing notes receivable as discussed in (a) above. The face value of the
advances at June 30, 2000 was $12,766,158, less unamortized imputed discount of $1,093,551. In November
2000, the Company received partial payment of $7,260,842 and $4,343,113 was converted into a 20 year term
loan with interest at 10% per annum and regular amortization.

For fiscal 2001, other financings due from charter schools have been discounted at a rate of 12% over the period
of refinancing, consistent with the treatment of non-interest bearing notes receivable. The face value of
borrowings under the revolving line of credit at June 30, 2001 was $12,957,320. The line of credit provides for
borrowings up to $15,000,000. On July 1, 2001, this revolving line of credit was converted into a 20 year term
loan with interest at 10% per annum and regular amortization.

Aggregate maturities of notes receivable are as follows:

For the fiscal year ending June 30,

2003 $13,661,060
2004 13,711,768
2005, 961,987
2000, 8,974,852
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2007 ettt 2,613,712
Thereafter.......ccovvveveieeeieeieeeeecceeeee e 46,918,438
86,841,817
Less: amount representing discount................. (407,137)
Less: allowance ........ccccoeceeveevieieneenienieieeeene (5,542,192)
Total notes receivable.........c.cooevveeeveeieneeeennnn.n. 80,892,488
Less: current portion..........cceceeveeeereeereeneeeneenne (12,480,667)
Notes receivable, noncurrent.................cuv....... $68,411,821

Additionally, the Company expects to receive payment on certain outstanding loans as a result of
third party refinancing, although there is no guarantee that the charter boards will be able to obtain such
refinancing. The Company expects to make additional loans approximating $3.8 million for
commitments to a charter board client during fiscal 2003.

5. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following:

June 30,
2001 2002

Land and buildings .........ccceeeeerieiiriecinieieiicieeeeeeeeeeeveneas $ 7,457,480 $ 7,804,494
Leasehold improvements ..........cccoceevveeeneeieneesieneeieeeeseeenes 34,419,968 34,267,385
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ..........ccccceeveeeeerienieneeneeenne 94,107,737 99,290,597
SOftWare LICENSE .....cccvvveeueeieeieeeeee e 11,694,133 11,694,133
Educational software and teXtbooks .........c.cccccvvveevvieeevereennn.. 37,350,776 39,011,470
185,030,094 192,068,079

Accumulated depreciation and amortization ............ccceeeeennene (65,798,925) (80,962,423)
Property and equipment, net . $ 119,231,169 $ 111,105,656

Depreciation expense amounted to $19,310,639, $31,367,287, and $35,691,452 for the years
ended June 30, 2000, 2001, and 2002 respectively. Capitalized interest of $521,593 was recorded for the
year ended June 30, 2001, in connection with the development of the Company's new computer system.
The Company wrote off approximately $4,187,000 consisting primarily of curriculum material and
approximately $623,000 consisting primarily of equipment during the years ended June 30, 2001 and
2002, respectively. These amounts are included in administration, curriculum and development expense
in the statements of operations.

Assets under capital leases as of June 30, 2001 and 2002 totaled $23,178,963 and $29,912,579,
respectively, and related accumulated amortization totaled $7,410,437 and $9,855,563, respectively. At
June 30, 2001 and 2002, $22,637,359 and $29,390,639 of assets under capital lease are included in
furniture, fixture, and equipment with the remaining balances included in leasehold improvements,
respectively.

The Company disposed of leasehold improvements and furniture, fixtures, and equipment of
approximately $1,149,000 and $4,784,000 during the years ended June 30, 2001 and 2002, respectively.
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In June 1998, the Company exercised an option to purchase a charter school building in Detroit,
Michigan for $2,500,000 which the Company had been leasing under a capitalized lease. In September
1998, the Company, which provides services at the site, sold the building to the charter school for
approximately $6,300,000 and incurred a loss of approximately $79,000, which is included in the loss on
disposal of property and equipment in the statement of operations for the year ended June 30, 1999. The
Company received approximately $4,400,000 in cash and a non-interest bearing subordinated note
approximating $1,900,000 before discount. The note was paid in May 2001.

In May 2001, two charter schools in Detroit, Michigan issued tax-exempt bonds and used a
portion of the proceeds to settle outstanding obligations due the Company. The Company received from
one school approximately $9,600,000 which is included in proceeds from disposition of property and
equipment in the statement of cash flows for the year ended June 30, 2001. Additionally, the Company
received from the second school approximately $4,300,000 for notes receivable, including the $1,900,000
note discussed above.

6. Acquisition of Undeveloped Property

During fiscal 2001, the Company purchased property in New York, New York for $10 million
and entered into an agreement with the Museum of African Art to develop the property for a mixed use
project consisting of a new corporate headquarters, a charter school and a facility to house the Museum.
Additionally, in fiscal 2002, the Company purchased land for approximately $1.0 million dollars for a
new school development project that was subsequently discontinued.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company recorded an impairment charge of
approximately $3.6 million as a result of financial indicators present which hindered the continuation of
the project, as reflected in management's decision to discontinue the project.

As of June 30, 2001 and 2002, other assets include approximately $10.1 million and $10.6
million of purchased land held for sale.

7. Business Combinations

Effective July 1, 2001, the Company acquired the remaining 65% outstanding equity interest of
Ksixteen, LLC not already owned by it for approximately $130,000 in cash, giving it 100% ownership
and enhanced operational efficiencies. The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method.
The purchase price exceeded the fair value of the net assets acquired by approximately $806,000, which
was recorded as goodwill.

Effective July 3, 2001, the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of LearnNow, Inc.
as a means to enhance its growth prospects. LearnNow was a privately-held school management
company that operated seven charter schools serving approximately 2000 students. During the third
quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company finalized its determination of the purchase price and the allocation
thereof. The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method and included a cash payment of
$3.0 million in fiscal 2001 and approximately $31.3 million in Company class A common stock
(approximately 1.3 million shares). In connection with the acquisition, the Company assumed liabilities
of $3.6 million (primarily accounts payable, accrued personnel costs and other accrued expenses);
acquired tangible assets of $1.7 million (primarily restricted cash, accounts receivable, notes receivable,
fixed assets and other assets). The allocation of the purchase price resulted in recorded intangibles of
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approximately $36.2 million. Of this amount, LearnNow contracts of approximately $4.5 million were
classified as an intangible asset separate from goodwill to be amortized over 15 years on a straight-line
basis. The remaining balance was classified as goodwill.

Following the acquisition, the LearnNow schools were incorporated into the Company's school
operating model and ceased to exist as a separate business unit. Accordingly, in assessing goodwill for
impairment, the Company determined that the value of the common stock issued in the acquisition would
be used as a measure of impairment. Based on the significant decline in the Company's stock price,
goodwill was deemed to be fully impaired in the fourth quarter of 2002 resulting in a charge to earnings
of approximately $32.5 million. Additionally, approximately $.8 million of the original $4.5 million
intangible asset was deemed impaired as a result of certain terminated contracts and also charged to
earnings in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002. Both charges are included in impairment charges in the
statements of operations for fiscal 2002.

At June 30, 2002, the carrying amount of the intangible asset was $3,447,076, net of accumulated
amortization of $298,333 and will be amortized over 10 years.

The following selected pro forma information for the year ended June 30, 2001 is being provided
to present a summary of the combined results of the Company giving effect to the purchase accounting
adjustments as if the acquisitions had occurred as of July 1, 2000. The unaudited pro forma information
is for informational purposes only and may not necessarily reflect the results of operations of the
Company had the acquired businesses operated as a part of the Company for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2001.

Pro Forma Information Acquired
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data) Edison Schools Entities Consolidated
NEL TEVEINUE ...ovveeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 350,508 $ 15,257 $ 365,765
NEL10SS teveveieieieieieeeeeeeee e (38,512) (14,969) (53,481)
Loss per common share

Basic and diluted ........ccocevvvieciiiiieiinns $(1.11)

8. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

June 30,
2001 2002
Compensation and related benefits ..........ccccoeeeveirecieiniennnene. $25,658,847 $34,502,426
Taxes other than INCOME ...........ccceeeeviieeiiieeeieeeeee e 1,965,057 2,002,577
Philanthropy contribution ...........c.ccocceeeerierenieiesieeeceseeeene -- 6,500,000
OhET ettt e 2,179,811 7,551,573
Total accrued EXPenses .......coceevveeeerieeieneeierieeie e $29,803,715 $50,556,576
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9. Financing

On October 3, 2001, the Company formed Edison Receivables, for the purpose of purchasing and
financing certain receivables of the Company. The Company owns all of the membership interests in
Edison Receivables, a Delaware limited liability company with a separate legal existence from the
Company. The Company has sold or contributed certain accounts receivable arising from the Company's
provision of school management services in the ordinary course of its business and related security to
Edison Receivables. Edison Receivables has its own separate creditors who are entitled to be satisfied out
of Edison Receivables' assets prior to any value in it becoming available to the Company. The Company
has no right, title or interest in Edison Receivables' assets, including the accounts receivable assigned to it
by the Company.

In November 2001, Edison Receivables entered into a $35.0 million revolving credit facility with
Merrill Lynch Mortgage Capital Inc. ("MLMCI"), collateralized by certain accounts receivable purchased
from or contributed by the Company. Borrowings are limited to specified percentages of eligible
accounts receivable, as defined. The line of credit had a term of one year. Interest is determined on a
Eurodollar or prime rate basis at the Company's option. The Company has agreed to pay a commitment
fee of .50% per annum on the unused portion of the commitment. As of June 30, 2002, $34.0 million was
outstanding under this line bearing interest at LIBOR plus 3.5% and was collateralized by receivables
with a book value of $62.8 million that were sold to Edison Receivables by the Company. The agreement
requires that the Company observe certain financial covenants and restrictions including a minimum
consolidated tangible net worth and a maximum consolidated debt to equity ratio.

Long-term debt consists of the following:

June 30,
2001 2002

Notes payable (2) ...cocvvveerieirieieiiieiseeeree e, $ 15,083,546 $5,152,175
Financing agreement (D) .......cccoocevievinienieienieeeeee, 7,700,553 4,136,906
Capital lease obligations (Note 10) .......ccceceevvervreenncns 16,129,100 18,881,514
38,913,199 28,170,595

CUITENt POTTION vttt (17,669,020) (18,363,640)
Total long-term debt ........cccoevivieirieiiieiieiceenes $21,244,179 $ 9,806,955

(a) Notes payable at June 30, 2001 and 2002 consist of notes with four financing companies collateralized by
computer equipment, furniture and other assets of the Company. All notes are similarly structured and
generally provide for equal monthly installments, including interest and principal, over a term of 30 to 48
months. Monthly payments to each noteholder range from approximately $16,000 to $318,000. Certain notes
also provide for a final installment of up to 17.5% of the original principal amount. Interest rates are fixed and
range from 9.5% to 18.68% per annum.

(b) In June 2000, the Company entered into a 36 month financing agreement with the IBM Credit Corporation for
the purchase of software. Such software will be used to support the technology used in the Company's schools
throughout the United States of America. At June 30, 2002, the finance agreement totals approximately $4.1
million and bears interest at a rate of 15.01%.
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In connection with amounts outstanding under the notes payable and capital lease obligations, at
June 30, 2001 and 2002, the Company had outstanding stock purchase warrants to lenders that provide for
the purchase of up to 15,000 shares of common stock at a purchase price of $12.30 per share. The stock
purchase warrants are fully exercisable and expire in fiscal 2005. At the time of issuance, the value of the
warrants was not deemed significant pursuant to a calculation using the Black Scholes option pricing
model. Accordingly, no value was assigned to the warrants.

The Company is subject to certain reporting debt covenants under several of its debt agreements.
If the Company were to fail to maintain a certain minimum cash balance it would be required to post

additional cash collateral.

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt, excluding capital lease obligations (see Note 10), are as
follows:

For the fiscal year ending June 30,

2003 e $ 8,662,077
2004 e 627,004
Total ....oooveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee $ 9,289,081

10. Leases

The Company has entered into several lease agreements for school site computers and equipment.
The agreements, which are accounted for as capital leases, provide that the Company will lease
equipment for terms of 30 to 48 months with interest rates of 8.18% to 16.09%. Also, the Company has
entered into various non-cancelable operating leases for office space and currently leases school sites.
These leases expire at various dates through the year 2020. At June 30, 2002, the present value of the
minimum lease payments under the capital leases and rental commitments under operating leases with
terms in excess of one year are as follows:

Capital Leasc Operating Leases

For the fiscal year ending June 30,
2003 e $11,333,547 $ 6,853,089
2004 6,827,737 6,676,905
2005, 3,077,148 6,408,235
2000, 15,205 6,827,206
2007 .o - 6,889,198
Thereafter.........cocoevvienciniccccee, -- 41,400,597
Total commiItments...........coeeevvvevieiveeeeeiiieeeeenn, 21,253,637 $75,055,230
Less: amount representing discount................. (2,372,123)
Present value of minimum lease payments....... 18,881,514
Less current installments of capital lease

ODlIAtIONS ....uveeieieieeeieeee e (9,701,563)
Capital lease obligations, excluding current

INSTAIIMENTS ..o $9,179,951
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Total rental expense for each of the three years ended June 30, 2000, 2001 and 2002 related to
operating leases amounted to approximately $4,495,000, $5,686,000, and $6,382,000, respectively.

11. Related Party Transactions
Stockholder Notes Receivable

The stockholder notes receivable consist of two recourse notes from the Chairman of the
Company, with principal amounts of $1.6 million and $200,000, which arose in connection with his
employment agreements. The note agreements, as amended October 15, 1999, bear interest at the prime
rate per annum as defined by J.P. Morgan Chase and do not require periodic interest or principal
payments until maturity. The notes are collateralized by the assignment of the proceeds of a life
insurance policy and, in the event of termination of the Chairman's employment, can be offset against the
severance pay obligation of the Company. The receivable matured on August 30, 2002. The Company
has given notice to the Chairman that the notes are now due and, with full cooperation of the Chairman, is
working to expedite collection of the outstanding balances.

In November 1999, the Company's CEO exercised options to purchase 725,000 shares of
common stock at $3.00 per share through the issuance of a promissory note for $2,175,000. In addition,
the Company loaned $4,445,700 in November 1999 and $1,248,500 in April 2000 to the CEO to pay
estimated income taxes resulting from the transaction. These notes mature five years from their date of
issuance and bear interest at the greater of the prime rate or the Company's actual borrowing rate, in effect
from time to time, at maturity. Since the notes were issued with recourse solely to the shares exercised
and contain a floating rate of interest, for accounting purposes, the options are not treated as exercised and
the loans related to the estimated income taxes are treated as compensation expense. See Note 3 for
discussion of accounting treatment.

Stockholders' Notes Payable

Certain stockholders were issued promissory notes dated December 18, 1997 for $4,407,903 and
January 1, 1998 for $592,097 (see Note 13). In addition, as part of the private placement (see Note 13),
the Company issued to stockholders, promissory notes dated December 30, 1997 for $611,025, January
28, 1998 for $61,130, August 24, 1998 for $487,844 and December 14, 1998 for $450,595. The principal
for each of the notes is payable on the tenth anniversary of the dates of issuance. Each note bears interest
at 7% per annum, of which 50% is payable at maturity and the balance payable each April 1, starting in
fiscal 1999 and thereafter. For the years ended June 30, 2000, 2001 and 2002, interest expense under the
notes amounted to $502,781, $502,924, and $520,269, respectively. Included in other liabilities at June
30,2001 and 2002 is interest payable under the notes of $825,492 and $1,084,676, respectively.

12. Investment in Apex Learning, Inc.

In July 1999, the Company entered into a preferred stock purchase agreement with Apex
Learning, Inc. ("APEX") providing for the purchase of up to 2,000,000 shares of APEX preferred stock,
par value $0.001 per share, for a purchase price of $5.00 per share. The Company purchased 1,000,000
shares in July 1999 for a total investment of $5,000,000, which represented approximately 16.5%
ownership in the corporation. In December 1999, an additional $5,000,000 was invested in the
corporation, increasing the Company's ownership to 19.7%. Due to the nature of the Company's
relationship with the corporation, the investment was accounted for under the equity method. As of June
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30, 2000, the Company modified its relationship with the corporation such that the Company no longer
had significant influence through board representation and, therefore, the investment has been accounted
for prospectively under the cost method.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company recorded a non-cash charge to reduce the
carrying value of its 19.7% cost basis investment in privately-held APEX to reflect an other-than-
temporary decline in value of $6.8 million (representing the excess of carrying value over fair value,
which results in a carrying value of approximately $1.3 million as of June 30, 2002). APEX is a company
that provides interactive advanced placement courses for high school students over the internet. We
determined that our investment was impaired given the terms of a third quarter fiscal 2002 transaction
involving Apex equity instruments between two existing investors. Management assessed this
impairment to be other than temporary based on the sharp decline in fair value as determined and in
consideration of the overall market condition for private equity companies. Prior thereto, the Company
had concluded there was not an other than temporary impairment based, in part, on its application of
customary valuation techniques which indicated that fair value approximated carrying value. Among the
key assumptions included in the valuation were market conditions for educational related companies,
trends in APEX operating results and valuations of market comparables. No additional charges were
recognized in fiscal 2002.

13. Common and Preferred Stock

Common and preferred stock consist of the following:

JUNE 30, 2001 JUNE 30, 2001
Authorized Par Outstanding Outstanding

Shares Value Shares Amount Shares Amount
Class A common stock..... 150,000,000 $ .01 49,249,005 $ 492,490 52,018,855 $ 520,189
Class B Common Stock ... 5,000,000 $ .01 2,433,126 24,331 1,805,132 18,051
Preferred Stock................. 5,000,000 $ .01 - - - -

Total common and

preferred stock.................. 51,682,131 § 516,821 53,823,987 § 538240

In general, holders of class A common stock have the same rights as the holders of Class B
Common Stock, except that:

e holders of Class A Common stock have one vote per share and holders of Class B
Common Stock have ten votes per share; and

e holders of Class B Common Stock elect, as a separate class, four of the 11 members of
the Company's Board of Directors and the holders of class A common stock elect, as a
separate class, the remaining seven directors.

The holders of class A common stock and Class B Common Stock have cumulative voting rights
in the election of their respective directors. On other matters presented to the stockholders for their vote
or approval, the holders of class A common stock and Class B Common Stock will vote together as a
single class, except as to matters affecting the rights of the two classes of common stock or as may be

86



EDISON SCHOOLS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(CONTINUED)

required by Delaware law. Class B Common Stock may be converted into class A common stock at any
time on a one-for-one basis. Each share of Class B Common Stock will automatically convert into one
share of class A common stock upon its transfer, in most circumstances, or upon the occurrence of other
specified events.

WSI, a stockholder, holds two options to purchase shares of the Company's common stock.
Under the first option, WSI has the right to purchase up to 382,500 shares of class A common stock and
42,500 shares of Class B Common Stock at $20 per share. Under the second option, WSI has the right to
purchase up to 450,000 shares of class A common stock and 50,000 shares of Class B Common Stock at
$40 per share. The options expire in years 2003 through 2005. At the time of grant in March 1995, the
options were accounted for pursuant to the provision of APB No. 25 and, accordingly, the Company
recorded no compensation expense.

In connection with a private placement that closed in December 1997, August 1998 and
December 1998, the Company sold units consisting of a share of stock, three options for fractional shares
of common stock, and a note payable for 22.8 cents per share. The first option entitles the holder to
.0086359 share of class A common stock and .0009595 share of Class B Common Stock at an exercise
price of $20.00 per share. The option expires between years 2003 and 2005. The second option entitles
the holder to .0086359 share of class A common stock and .0009595 share of Class B Common Stock at
an exercise price of $3.00 per share. The option became vested upon the completion of the Company's
initial public offering ("IPO") and expires 10 years after vesting. The third option entitles the holder to
.0129537 share of class A common stock and .0014393 share of Class B Common Stock at an exercise
price of $16.00 per share. However, this option only vests if the Company is a public company and its
closing price has been $32.00 per share for more than 90 consecutive days. This option expires 10 years
after vesting. As of June 30, 2002, stock options issued and outstanding in conjunction with the private
placement entitled the holders to purchase 355,707 shares of class A common stock and shares of Class B
Common Stock.

In June 1998, the Company, in exchange for $2,500,000, issued a warrant to the D2F2
Foundation to purchase 1,698,750 shares of class A common stock and 188,750 shares of Class B
Common Stock at a price of $7.96 per share. The warrant had an expiration date of June 1, 2005, but had
been fully exercised at June 30, 2002. The warrant proceeds were required to be used by Edison to
provide services to selected schools, as approved from time to time by the D2F2 Foundation during the
five years following the agreement's execution. Under the terms of the warrant, if the full amount of the
cash proceeds were not spent by Edison during the five-year period, Edison would be required to return
unexpended amounts, and a pro rata portion of the warrant (or shares already issued under the warrant, if
applicable) could be canceled or redeemed at Edison's option at their issuance price. This amount was
received and properly recorded as restricted cash in the Company's financial statements. The Company
has accounted for the proceeds in accordance with EITF 96-13 "Accounting for Derivative Financial
Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, a Company's Own Stock."

In August 2000, the Company completed a secondary public offering in which it sold 3,350,000
shares of class A common stock for net proceeds of approximately $71.0 million. In March 2001, the
Company completed another secondary offering of an additional 3,531,026 shares of class A common
stock for net proceeds of approximately $81.0 million.
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14. Stock Options

A summary of the Company's employee stock option activity is as follows:

Weighted Stock Weighted
Average Of Options Average Of
Shares Exercise Prices Exercisable Exercise Prices

Under option at June 30, 1999..........cccceueeene 7,918,0z $ 20.44 2,608,991 $ 4.02
Options granted in fiscal 2000......... 2,178,1¢ $ 17.05 314,08 $ 13.49
Options exercised in fiscal 2000 (920,01 $ 3.30
Options cancelled in fiscal 2000 (189,3¢ § 8.60
Under option at June 30, 2000............ccceeu... 8,986,7¢ $ 21.52 3,460,13- $ 8.58
Options granted in fiscal 2001......... 1,358,81 $ 24.72 80,321 § 23.47
Options exercised in fiscal 2001 (957,05 § 547
Options cancelled in fiscal 2001 (138,72 § 10.75
Under option at June 30, 2001....................... 9,249,81 § 23.88 3,244,09- § 11.08
Options granted in fiscal 2002......... 2,325,0¢ $ 23.21 617,44. $ 24.29
Options exercised in fiscal 2002 (188,9¢ § 16.58
Options cancelled in fiscal 2002 (648,4C § 19.20
Under option at June 30, 2002....................... 10,737,4¢ § 24.32 439747 § 14.45

In October 1999, the board of directors approved the adoption of the 1999 Stock Incentive Plan
(the "Incentive Plan") for employees and authorized the compensation committee of the board of directors
to administer the Incentive Plan under which options, restricted stock, and other stock-based awards for a
maximum of 2,500,000 shares of class A common stock could be issued. In October 2000, the board of
directors approved an amendment to the Incentive Plan to increase the number of shares reserved for
issuance to 4,500,000 shares of class A common stock. The Company's stockholders approved this
amendment in November 2000. In August 2001, the board of directors approved an amendment to the
Incentive Plan to increase the number of shares reserved for issuance to 6,500,000 shares of class A
common stock. The Company's stockholders approved this amendment in December 2001. To the extent
that all or part of a stock-based award issued under the Incentive Plan is cancelled, the related shares are
available for future award grants. As of June 30, 2002, the Company has 1,956,075 shares of class A
common stock reserved for future grants under the Incentive Plan.

During fiscal 2000 and 2001, the Company granted options for 45,000 shares and 10,000 shares
of class A common stock, vesting over a three-year period, to certain non-employees. The Company
recorded approximately $62,000, $77,000, and $148,000 of expenses related to the issuance of these
options in fiscal 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

In fiscal 2001, the Company modified a stock option award relating to approximately 11,000
shares held by an employee and recognized a $234,000 non-cash charge resulting from this modification.
An additional modification to a stock option award for approximately 38,000 shares was made for certain
former employees who were allowed to retain their stock options and vesting rights beyond their
separation date. A charge of $181,000 was recognized in fiscal 2001 in connection with this
modification.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at June 30, 2002:
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Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Of Average Of
Range Of Contracted Exercise Shares Exercise
Exercise Prices Shares Life Prices Exercisable Prices
$2.50 i 803,448 2.87 $ 2.50 797,515 $ 2.50
$3.00- $ 8.00.... 563,869 5.52 $ 4.91 505,395 $ 4.72
$8.01 - $12.30 1,038,505 7.05 $ 12.30 645964 §  12.30
$14.24 - $18.56............. 1,299,606 7.00 $ 16.34 846,145 §  16.03
$20.00 - $21.31............. 1,090,895 8.09 $ 20.73 368,753 '§  20.73
$22.00 - $25.88.... 3,261,999 8.86 $ 24.64 1,223,602 §  24.27
$27.00 - $33.13.... 1,279,161 5.52 $ 31.93 10,104 § 2945
$33.14 - $56.00 1,400,000 5.46 $ 56.00 0§ 56.00

10,737,483 4,397,478

The Company, during the fourth quarter of fiscal 1999, made amendments to existing options
which resulted in a new measurement date. As a result, stock-based compensation expense was recorded
representing the difference between the exercise price of the options and the deemed fair market value of
the underlying stock at that time. In this regard, the Company recognized an expense of approximately
$22.4 million during 1999, approximately $3.6 million during fiscal 2000, approximately $983,000
during fiscal 2001 and approximately $589,000 during fiscal 2002 in connection with these stock options.

Had compensation cost for the Company's stock option issuances been determined based on the
fair value at the grant date for awards in each of the three years ended June 30, 2000, 2001 and 2002
consistent with the provisions of SFAS No. 123, the Company's net loss and basic and diluted net loss per
share would have been adjusted to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

Years Ended June 30,
2000 2001 2002
Net 1085—as TEPOTEd ......c.vvervveriereereieeeresesereesessenee s $(50,629,843) $ (38,511,724) $ (86,039,852)
Net 10ss—pro forma basis............ccceeeveeverrrruerernererennnenns $(52,552,660) $(38,917,336) $(92,609,642)
Basic and diluted net loss per share—as reported........... $ (1.83) $ (0.80) $ (1.61)
Basic net loss per share—pro forma basis....................... $ (1.90) $ (0.81) $ (1.73)

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of the grant using the "Black-Scholes
Option-pricing Model" with the following weighted average assumptions used for grants for each of the
years ended June 30, 2000, 2001 and 2002: zero dividend yield; no volatility for fiscal years 2000 and
2001 and 70% volatility in fiscal 2002; a weighted average risk-free interest rate of 6.18%, 5.50% and
5.31% respectively; and expected lives of 8.86, 9.46 and 10.00 years, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the weighted-average grant-date fair values of options granted:

Exercise Price Exercise Price Exercise Price
Equaled Fair Greater Than Less Than Fair
Value At Fair Value At Value At
Issuance Issuance Issuance
Weighted average exercise price of options
granted during the year 2002 ...................... $ 17.07 $ 25.00 NA
Weighted average exercise price of options
granted during the year 2001 ...................... $ 24.95 NA $ 1230
Weighted average exercise price of options
granted during the year 2000 ...................... $ 17.13 NA $ 1313
Weighted average fair value of options
granted during the year 2002 ...................... $ 17.07 $ 18.77 NA
Weighted average fair value of options
granted during the year 2001 ...................... $ 24.95 NA $ 2588
Weighted average fair value of options
granted during the year 2000 ...................... $ 17.13 NA $ 19.19

15. Income Taxes

There is no provision for Federal income taxes for the years ended June 30, 2000, 2001 and 2002,
since the Company has incurred net losses. The Company has provided approximately $603,000 and $1.0
million in fiscal 2001 and 2002, respectively for state and local taxes relating to jurisdictions that require
taxes to be recorded on bases other than income. Due to the uncertainty of the Company's ability to
realize the tax benefit of such losses, a valuation allowance has been established to equal the total net

deferred tax assets.

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities consist of the following:

June 30,
2001 2002
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforward............ $ 57,340,999 $111,627,715
Accrued liabilities...........cccceveevveereeenens 5,651,544 3,850,809
Stock Options .......ccoveeveeerieireireeienne 10,088,398 2,998,280
Amortization 199,595 4,851
Property and equipment .............ccccc.c.... 853,571 4,746,315
Total deferred tax asSets.........cceveeveeeveeceeecveeeeeeeereennens 74,134,107 123,227,970
Valuation alloWance .............ccceeveeveeeveeeeeeeeereeeeereeeveenens (74,134,107) (123,227,970)
Net deferred tax asset .....oovivvereeeeeereeereeereeereeereeereeeans $ -- $ --

For the years ended June 30, 2000, 2001 and 2002, the valuation allowance increased by

$14,570,051, $15,672,789 and $49,093,863, respectively.

At June 30, 2002, the Company had approximately $289.0 million of net operating loss
carryforwards available to reduce its future taxable income. Under current Federal income tax law,
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approximately $45.0 million of such carryforwards will expire between 2010 and 2018, approximately
$244.0 million will expire between 2019 and 2022.

16. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company provides a 401(k) and a 403(b) defined contribution plans for substantially all full-
time employees and teachers. The Company matches each participant's contribution up to 50% of the
first $1,000 contributed. Participants become fully vested in the match after one year. Contributions to
the 401(k) and a 403(b) plans made by the Company for each of the three years ended June 30, 2000,
2001 and 2002 amounted to $186,316, $334,191, and $416,440, respectively.

17. Commitments and Contingencies
Long Term Lease Obligations

The Company has entered into operating leases for five charter school facilities with lease terms
in excess of the initial term of the management agreement for the schools operating in those facilities.

The first facility, currently housing two schools, has been leased for an 18-year term expiring in
December 2016. The management agreement to operate in this facility expired in December 2001,
however, the Company continues to lease the facility to the former client. The annual lease payment is
approximately $1,000,000 per year through fiscal 2016.

The second facility, currently housing two schools, has been leased for a 15-year term expiring in
September 2013. The management agreement to operate in this facility expired in June 2002. The annual
lease payment is $782,400 through fiscal 2007 and increases to $932,400 for fiscal 2008 through fiscal
2013.

The third facility, currently housing one school, has been leased for a 20-year term expiring in
June 2020. The management agreement to operate in this facility expires in June 2003. The annual lease
payment is $36,000 through fiscal 2020.

The fourth facility, currently housing two schools, has been leased for a 20-year term expiring in
November 2020. The management agreement to operate in this facility expires in June 2005. The annual
lease payment is $362,000 per year and increases by 9% in fiscal 2006, 2011 and 2016 resulting in a final
year's annual rent of $468,800.

The fifth facility, currently housing two schools, has been leased for a 20-year term expiring in
June 2020. The management agreement to operate in this facility expires in June 2005. The annual lease
payment is $689,760 through fiscal 2004 and increases to $877,860 for fiscal 2005 through fiscal 2010
and increases to $1,065,960 for fiscal 2011 through fiscal 2020.

The Company's lease obligations noted above all exceed the length of the initial management

agreement. In the event that the management agreements are not renewed, the Company would be
obligated to continue paying rent on the facilities.
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Fundraising Agreements

Effective June 23, 2000, the Company entered into an agreement (the "Fundraising Agreement")
with Alliance Community Schools ("ACS"), an entity that holds charters for the two schools managed by
the Company in Ohio, pursuant to which the Company agreed to work together with ACS to raise $4.0
million in capital donations on behalf of ACS. Under the Fundraising Agreement, as amended, the
Company is required to transfer its interest in Alliance-Edison, $3.5 million included in other assets at
June 30, 2001, to ACS for $1 if (i) ACS raises $2.0 million by June 30, 2002 and (ii) if (a) the Company
fails either to raise or contribute $405,000 from sources outside of the Dayton, Ohio area by December
31, 2001, or (b) the Company fails to raise or contribute a total of $2.0 million by June 30, 2002. On June
7, 2002, the Company contributed $2.0 million in fulfillment of its obligation. The Company will
amortize this contribution over the remaining life of the contract (2 years) with ACS, as a reduction of
revenue in accordance with EITF 01-09.

The Company has entered into an agreement with one of its clients whereby it committed to raise
$10.5 million in unrestricted philanthropic funds, to be contributed over a two-year period ending June
30, 2003. The funds are to be used for schools the Company manages and are to be expended on agreed
upon costs including school facility, technology, curriculum material, etc. To date the Company has
obtained commitments from two philanthropic organizations to contribute approximately $3.9 million and
commitments from two senior Company officers for an additional $1.2 million. The Company will
amortize its commitment, net of third party donations received, over the contract life (5 years) as a
reduction in revenue in accordance with EITF 01-09. Contributions received from senior officers will
serve to reduce the Company's obligation and be credited to additional paid-in capital.

Employment Agreements

The Company has entered into employment agreements with certain of its executives. Such
agreements may be terminated by either the executive or the Company at any time and provide, among
other things, certain termination benefits. As of June 30, 2002, the aggregate termination benefits of the
executives and certain other employees approximated $2.5 million.

Additionally, the Company has a severance arrangement with its Chairman that provides for the
Chairman to terminate his employment for good reason, including not being reappointed to the position of
Chairman except for his death, disability, or terminated for cause. Included in accrued expenses at June
30,2001 and 2002 is approximately $3.2 million related to this severance arrangement.

Guarantees

The Company has guaranteed certain debt obligations of charter school boards with which it has
management agreements. As of June 30, 2002, the Company had provided guarantees totaling
approximately $20.9 million. These debt obligations mature from November 2003 to November 2005.

As of June 30, 2002, the debt obligations of the charter school boards are current. Under the
guarantor agreements, the Company is also required to maintain minimum cash balances that may
increase under certain circumstances, as well as satisfy certain financial reporting covenants. The
Company was not in compliance with a financial covenant under a guarantee of a charter school board
debt obligation with an outstanding balance of approximately $2.5 million at June 30, 2002. The
Company is in discussions with the lender to resolve this matter.
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Litigation

Between May 15, 2002 and July 3, 2002, ten class action lawsuits were filed against the
Company and certain of its officers and directors in the United States District Court for the Southern
District of New York. These lawsuits are largely identical and each alleges that the Company and certain
of its officers and directors violated Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
They seek an unspecified amount of compensatory damages, costs and expenses related to bringing the
actions, and in a few instances, injunctive relief. Plaintiffs allege that Edison's public disclosures from
November 1999 to March 2002 regarding its financial condition were materially false and misleading
because the Company allegedly improperly inflated its total revenues by including certain payments,
including payments for teacher salaries, that were paid directly to third parties by local school districts
and charter school boards that contracted with the Company. Several of the lawsuits also mention two
restatements of the Company's financial statements, one regarding a warrant purchased in 1998 by a
philanthropic organization and the other regarding a severance agreement between the Company and one
of its senior officers, made by the Company as a result of the May 14, 2002 cease-and-desist order. In
July 2002, several plaintiffs filed motions to be appointed lead plaintiff and also moved to consolidate the
ten lawsuits in one action. There has been no ruling by the court on these motions. The Company
believes that it has strong defenses to the claims raised by these lawsuits, however the outcome of this
Litigation cannot be determined at this time. If the Company were not to prevail, the amounts involved
could be material to the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Company.

The Company is also involved in various legal proceedings from time to time incidental to the
conduct of its business. For example, we are currently involved in lawsuits filed in Dallas, Texas,
Baltimore, Maryland, Peoria, Illinois and Las Vegas, Nevada questioning the authority of these school
districts to enter into management agreements with the Company. In addition, the school district of York,
Pennsylvania has appealed the decision of the state charter-granting authority to grant a charter to one of
the Company's customers. We currently believe that any ultimate liability arising out of such proceedings
will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

18. Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Company to credit risk consist primarily of
cash and cash equivalents, notes receivable and advances to charter schools, and accounts receivable. The
Company manages its credit risk by maintaining cash and cash equivalents with financial institutions that
it believes are financially sound and through the contractual arrangements that it has entered into with
each district and charter school.

Accounts receivable consist of primarily short-term and long-term receivables from various
district and charter schools. Credit risk is affected by changing conditions within the economy of
individual states and school districts in which the Company operates. Uncollectible accounts have been
isolated and not significant to date; as a result, an allowance for doubtful accounts is not deemed
necessary at this time. The Company will establish an allowance for doubtful accounts when it has
determined that factors surrounding the credit risk of specific customers, historical trends and other
information so warrant.

Notes receivable from charter schools are both short-term and long-term. Credit risk associated
with those amounts is affected not only by the economy of individual states and school districts in which

93



EDISON SCHOOLS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(CONTINUED)

the charter school operates, but on the continued existence of charter school laws. The Company has
established an allowance for loan losses based upon its assessment of the credit risk of the specific charter
schools, recent trends and other information.

19. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Summarized unaudited quarterly data for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 are as follows
(dollars in thousands, except for per share amounts):

Quarter
2002 First Second Third Fourth
NELTEVENUE .....oevveveeereereceeeereeere et $89,745 $115,637 $121,904 $137,772
9,373 19,726 21,749 24,070
(13,344) (10,538) (5,745) (47,112)
(12,672) (11,661) (12,783) (48,924)
(0.24) (0.22) (0.24) (0.91)
Quarter
2001 First Second Third Fourth
As As As As As As As As

Reported Restated* Reported Restated* Reported Restated* Reported Restated*

Net FeVeNUE .....vveeeeeeeeeeieveeeeeieee $60,299 $60,299 $95,538 $95,538 $92,815  $92,815 $101,856 $101,856
Gross site contribution................... 3,184 3,184 16,983 16,983 18,083 18,083 21,058 21,058
Loss from operations (20,808) (27,014) (4,067) (3,886) (6,616) 1,540 (9,541) (11,418)
NEt10SS .o (20,108) (26,495) (3,191) (3,191) (5,982) 1,997 (8,799) (10.¢
Loss per common share basic

and diluted........ocovvvrncniccieen (0.43) (0.57 (0.06) (0.06) 0.1 0.04 0.17 0.2

*  Restated data for fiscal 2001 reflects the quarterly impact of the restatement discussed in Note 3.
20. Subsequent Events

On July 31, 2002, the revolving credit agreement with MLMCI was amended to add School
Services as an additional lender and MLMCI as agent of the lenders, increase the line to $55.0 million,
and extend the term of the agreement and the line of credit provided thereunder to June 30, 2003. The
agreement and the line of credit were subsequently extended to July 15, 2003. The interest rate under the
amended credit facility was increased to LIBOR plus 7% or Prime plus 4.5% at the Company's option.

In addition, the Company separately entered into a Credit and Security Agreement, dated as of
July 31, 2002, with School Services, pursuant to which the Company has the right to borrow up to $20.0
million, at an interest rate set at 12.0 percent per annum. The Company borrowed $250,000 on July 31,
2002 under this facility. The facility will also be reduced by the amount of certain fees and costs which
the Company has agreed to pay School Services and its affiliates. This facility is collateralized by certain
real property owned by the Company and certain of its subsidiaries, notes payable from charter schools
and other debtors of the Company and substantially all other assets of the Company. This facility matures
on June 30, 2004 but has significant prepayment obligations tied to refinancings of notes receivable from
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charter schools and such other debtors and to any sale or transfer of any such real property. The
agreement requires the Company to observe certain financial covenants and restrictions including
minimum consolidated tangible net worth, a maximum consolidated debt to equity ratio and a minimum
EBITDA requirement for fiscal 2003.

In connection with the establishment of the credit facilities described above, the Company also
issued warrants for the purchase of up to an aggregate of 10,710,973 shares of class A common stock of
the Company, which equals 16.6% of the total outstanding shares of common stock of the Company,
including the shares issuable upon exercise of the warrants. The warrants have an exercise price of $1.00
per share and are exercisable at any time following their issuance and prior to July 31, 2007.
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Exhibit
Number

3.1%
3.0%
4.1%%

4.2%*

10.1%*

10.2%*#
10.3%*#
10.4%*4

10.5%*

10.6%*#

10.6.1#

10.7%*#

10.8%*

10.9%*

10.10%**

10.11**

10.12%*#

10.13*%#

10.14**#

10.15%*#

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

Sixth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant
Second Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Registrant
Specimen common stock certificate

See Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2 for provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws
of the Registrant defining the rights of holders of class A common stock of the Registrant

1998 Site Option Plan

1999 Stock Option Plan.

1999 Key Stock Incentive Plan
1999 Stock Incentive Plan

Amended Warrant Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 1, 1998, between the Registrant
and the D2F2 Foundation

Letter Agreement, dated as of June 20, 2000, between the Registrant and Benno C.
Schmidt, Jr.

Letter Agreement, dated May 8, 2002, between the Registrant and Benno C. Schmidt, Jr.

Letter Agreement, dated as of March 15, 1995, between the Registrant and John E.
Chubb

Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 2, 1999, between the Registrant
and Apex Online Learning Inc.

Amended and Restated Shareholders Agreement, dated as of December 16, 1999,
between the Registrant, Apex Online Learning Inc. and other parties

Lease Agreement, dated as of April 4, 1995, between the Registrant and 521 Fifth
Avenue Associates, as amended on June 6, 1996, December 8, 1997 and February 23,
2000

Office Lease dated as of March 19, 1999, between the Registrant and 529 Fifth Company

Management Agreement, dated as of March 14, 1995, between the Registrant and WSI
Inc., as amended on November 15, 1996, March 1, 1997 and December 31, 1997

Promissory note, dated as of June 5, 1992, from Benno C. Schmidt, Jr. to the Registrant.

Promissory note, dated as of January 23, 1996, from Benno C. Schmidt, Jr. to the
Registrant

Allonges, dated as of October 4, 1999, to promissory notes, dated as of June 5, 1992 and
January 23, 1996, from Benno C. Schmidt, Jr. to the Registrant
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Exhibit
Number

10.15. 7%=

10.15. 2%

10.16%*#

10.17*%#

10.18**#

10.19%**

10.20**

10.21%*

10.22%*

10.23*#

10.24*

10.25%
10.26*

10.27*

10.28*#

10.29%**

10.30%**

10.31%**

10.32%**

10.33%%*

10.34%%*

Description

Allonges, dated as of February 13, 2002, to promissory notes, dated as of June 5, 1992
and January 23, 1996, from Benno C. Schmidt, Jr. to the Registrant is incorporated herein
by reference to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
December 31, 2001.

Allonges, dated as of June 28, 2002, to promissory notes, dated as of June 5, 1992 and
January 23, 1996, from Benno C. Schmidt, Jr. to the Registrant.

Form of Letter Agreement between the Registrant and H. Christopher Whittle

Letter Agreement, dated as of July 1, 1999, between the Registrant and Christopher D.
Cerf

Loan Agreement between the Registrant and WSI Inc

Guaranty of Payment Agreement, dated as of September 3, 1998, between the Registrant
and NCB Development Corporation

Guaranty of Payment Agreement, dated as of November 25, 1997, between the Registrant
and BankBoston, N.A

Stock Subscription Warrant, dated as of October 18, 1999, issued to TBCC Funding Trust
II

Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 16, 1999, by and between
Apex Online Learning Inc., the Registrant and other parties

Promissory note, dated April 13, 2000, from H. Christopher Whittle to the Registrant

Contract of Sale, dated as of January 11, 2000, between the Registrant and Castle Senior
Living, LLC

Letter of Intent, dated as of June 8, 2000, between the Registrant and IBM
License Agreement, dated as of June 12, 2000, between the Registrant and IBM

Term Lease Master Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2000, between the Registrant and
Global Lyceum, Inc.

Promissory Note dated as of June 9, 2000 from Manuel J. Rivera to the Registrant

Fundraising Agreement, dated as of June 23, 2000, between the Registrant and Alliance
Facilities Management, Inc

Master Development Agreement between the Registrant and Ksixteen LLC

Master Agreement to Lease Equipment, dated as of June 30, 2000, between the
Registrant and Cisco

Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement of Alliance Edison LLC

Promissory Note, dated as of July 21, 2000, issued by the Registrant in the name of
Alliance Edison LLC

Payment Guaranty, dated as of July 21, 2000, between the Registrant and Keybank
National Association
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Number

10.35% %%

10.36%***

10.37%%%%

10.38%x#%

10.39%%#%

10.40% %%

10,41 %%

10.42% %%

10.43%3+%

10.44 %5

10.45% %

10.46%***

10.47%% 5

10.48%*%

10.49%**%4

10.50%%**

Description

Amended and Restated Purchase and Contribution Agreement, dated as of July 31, 2002,
between Edison Schools Inc., as Seller and Servicer, and Edison Receivables Company
LLC, as Buyer

Amended and Restated Credit and Security Agreement, dated as of July 31, 2002, among
Edison Receivables Company LLC, as Borrower, School Services LLC and Merrill
Lynch Mortgage Capital Inc., as Lenders, and Merrill Lynch Mortgage Capital Inc., as
Agent

Pledge Agreement, dated as of July 31, 2002, made by Edison Schools Inc., in favor of
Edison Receivables Company LLC

Agreement of Issuance, dated as of July 31, 2002, between Edison Schools Inc. and
Edison Receivables Company LLC

Warrant Agreement, for 2,152,959 shares of class A common stock, dated as of July 31,
2002, between Edison Schools Inc. and Merrill Lynch Mortgage Capital Inc.

Warrant, for 2,152,959 shares of class A common stock, dated as of July 31, 2002, issued
by Edison Schools Inc. to Merrill Lynch Mortgage Capital Inc.

Warrant Agreement, for 478,435 shares of class A common stock, dated as of July 31,
2002, between Edison Schools Inc. and School Services LLC

Warrant, for 478,435 shares of class A common stock, dated as of July 31, 2002, issued
by Edison Schools Inc. to School Services LLC

Warrant Agreement, for 8,079,579 shares of class A common stock, dated as of July 31,
2002, between Edison Schools Inc. and School Services LLC

Warrant, for 8,079,579 shares of class A common stock, dated as of July 31, 2002, issued
by Edison Schools Inc. to School Services LLC

Credit and Security Agreement, dated as of July 31, 2002, by and between School
Services LLC, Edison Schools Inc., 110th and 5th Associates, LLC and Bayard Rustin
Charter School, LLC

Pledge Agreement, dated as of July 31, 2002, made by Edison Schools Inc. in favor of
School Services LLC

Guaranty, dated as of July 31, 2002, made by 110th and 5th Associates, LLC in favor of
School Services LLC

Guaranty, dated as of July 31, 2002, made by Bayard Rustin Charter School, LLC in
favor of School Services LLC

Employment Agreement, dated as of September 30, 2002, between the Registrant and
Charles Delaney.

Letter Agreement, dated as of December 18, 2002, between the Registrant and H.

Christopher Whittle is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended December 31, 2001.
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Exhibit

Number Description
10.51%%** Purchase and Contribution Agreement, dated October 31, 2001, between the Company

and Edison Receivables Company LLC is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.01 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September
30, 2001.

10.52%*%* Credit and Security Agreement, dated October 31, 2001, between Edison Receivables
Company LLC and Merrill Lynch Mortgage Capital Inc. is incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.02 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended
September 30, 2001.

10.53%*** Letter Agreement, dated September 30, 2002, between the Registrant, Merrill Lynch
Mortgage Capital Inc. and School Services LLC.

A Rl Subsidiaries of the Registrant
23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
99.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section

906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

* Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-39516).
ok Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-84177).

ok Incorporated by reference for the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2000 (File No. 000-
27817).

*¥**%  Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2002.

# Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement filed in response to Item 14(a)(3) of the instructions to Form 10-
K.

80235693_2.DOC
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